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Financial Highlights
M IE

TERBTEBBESBEVREEZEE B
E-BEREOHE:

The following tables are summaries of the Group's results,
assets, liabilities and equity for the past five financial years:

Year ended 31 December

HENAMELEEE

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016

20205 2019 20184 20175 20164

Results ES RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

AREFR AREFx AR®TR ARETRT AR®TR

(Restated)

(K E=51)

Revenue comprising: WA BHE 441,570 446,236 1,045,414 1,557,652 904,168

MLCC business MLCCET 352,236 367,285 1,143,656 739,343 585,833
Investment and REHEHRSE

financial services 89,334 78,951 (159,011) 152,450 31,752

Other general trading Ht—HRE - - 60,769 665,859 286,583

Cost of sales HE A (290,784) (381,920) (584,723) (1,179,036) (794,668)

Gross profit eVl 150,786 64,316 460,691 378,616 109,500
(Loss)/Profit for the year KARBE ANEMG

attributable to owners of FE (B8 /FE
the Company (5,767) (125,976) 159,620 134,032 (68,874)
Basic (loss)/earnings per share SREKX (58 /BF (0.8)centsfll (16.9) cents{ll 214 centsfll  18.6 cents fll (12.8) cents 1Ll
As at 31 December
®12R318

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016

20205 20194 20184 20174 20165

Assets and liabilities BERER RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT AREFTR ARETRT AR®Fx ARETR

Total assets nEE 1,364,869 1,318,648 1,795,968 2,051,985 1,344,495

Total liabilities = 478,337 438,855 802,542 1,208,522 954,729
Total equity attributable to AAREE AEMG

owners of the Company i 870,683 867,888 987,020 832,175 376,165

TIANLI HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED XFZEREMERAE

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 ##



BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhou Chunhua (Chairman)

Mr. Pan Tong (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Chou, Benjamin Bang Yi

Ms. Du Weilin

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Chu Kin Wang, Peleus

Mr. David Tsoi

Mr. Xu Xuechuan

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Chu Kin Wang, Peleus (Chairman)
Mr. David Tsoi
Mr. Xu Xuechuan

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Xu Xuechuan (Chairman)
Mr. Chu Kin Wang, Peleus
Mr. Zhou Chunhua

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Chu Kin Wang, Peleus (Chairman)
Mr. Xu Xuechuan
Mr. Zhou Chunhua

REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive
PO Box 2681

Grand Cayman, KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Unit 907-909, 9th Floor
Three Pacific Place

1 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

Corporate Information

NEER

EFT

BITES

BEESLE (Z/F)
B RE (TTHAE )
BRI E
B £

BIJFAITES
RRERTE
BRERE
mEBNLE

BEZEEE
KREFKE (Z/FE)
BRERE
wEBINZE

HMEEE

wRIFLE (ZFE)
RBERFKE
B&EERXE

REEEE
KRRKE (Z/E)

mENgkE
BEERE

=S BE

Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive
PO Box 2681

Grand Cayman, KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

MMERERERETZERMES

BN
EERERIHR
Ao EH=ZE
918907-909=

TIANLI HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED XFZREMARASE
ANNUAL REPORT 2020 &%



Corporate Information
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PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN THE PRC

EYANG Building

No.13 Gaoxin North 4th Road
Songpingshan Community
Xili Subdistrict

Nanshan District

Shenzhen, the PRC
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LEGAL ADVISOR AS TO HONG KONG LAW

Junhe Law Offices

LEGAL ADVISOR AS TO CAYMAN
ISLANDS LAW

Conyers Dill & Pearman
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Certified Public Accountants
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Chairman’s Statement

EREHS

ANNUAL RESULTS OF 2020

For the 12 months ended 31 December 2020, the Group's
revenue amounted to RMB441.6 million, representing a
decrease of approximately 1.0% compared to last year, of
which the gross profit margin of the Multi-layer Ceramic
Chips (“MLCC") business increased significantly to 17.5%
from a loss-making state last year. The loss attributable to
owners of the Company for the year was approximately
RMB5.8 million, representing a 95.4% decrease from the
loss of last year.

MARKET TREND

After the destocking adjustment in 2019, the MLCC
market has gradually recovered during 2020. In the
first half of 2020, under the influence of the COVID-19
pandemic, part of the downstream electronic terminal
demand was impacted, resulting in reduced demand for
MLCC. In the second half of the year, with the pandemic
gradually under control, and the popularity of 5G
technology and the demand for domestic substitution
further enhanced, the MLCC market recovered and the
product demand rose significantly.

In the long term, the Group remains firmly optimistic about
the future of the MLCC industry. On the one hand, with
the rising demand for 5G infrastructure, smartphones,
home office and online classes, and the rapid growth of
automotive demand, the sales volumes of communication
equipment, PC, data center, Internet of Things, and
automotive electronics were also increased. The demand
for MLCC as a basic material for the entire electronic
information industry is also rising. On the other hand, in
the complex international political economic environment,
major electronic manufacturers are paying more attention
to supply chain security issues, and the domestic
substitution process is accelerating, bringing development
opportunities to domestic MLCC manufacturers. Overall,
although the COVID-19 pandemic had an the impact on
the global economy and has dampened demand in some
end markets to some extent, in the long run, the trend
of growing demand in the end markets of electronic
products will not change, and the use of MLCC will rise
with it. In addition, the performance and functionality of
end products continue to improve, driving MLCC to evolve
towards miniaturization, high capacity, high frequency, and
high reliability.

TIANLI HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED XFZEREMERAE
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The funds managed and invested by the Group mainly
invest in alternative products in mainland China and mature
overseas markets. The funds valuation is sensitive to the
overall global macroeconomic trend of the market. In
2020, the global outbreak of COVID-19 had a significant
impact on global social economy and livelihood, resulting
in a drastic fluctuation of the financial markets, which
posed certain challenges to the Group's asset management
operation. The global financial markets are expected to
bounce back as the outbreak is controlled, government
stimulus measures are implemented and economic activities
restart.

DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY

Since its establishment, the Group's MLCC business has
been cultivating the mobile communications market
and has developed deep technical deposits and unique
product advantages in the field of miniaturization and
small size. Currently, the Group's ultra-miniature 01005
series products have successfully entered the supply chain
of many domestic and overseas radio frequency front-end
chip manufacturers, and the relevant sales share is expected
to continue to increase in the future. In addition, the
Group successfully developed a series of high-power radio
frequency MLCC products for industrial applications such
as 5G base stations in 2020 and started to deliver them
in volume to our core customers. With the launch of the
new products, the capacity coverage of the Group's high-
frequency series products has been further expanded to
reach the international first-class standard.

Against the backdrop of extensive new infrastructure
investment and accelerated domestic substitution pushed
by the Chinese government, the Group will seize the
historical opportunity by realigning its resources, increasing
its input and enhancing the production capacity. In Eastern
China, the construction of the Group's new base in
Chuzhou, Anhui Province commenced at the end of last
year and is now in full swing. In Southern China, the Group
has reached an intention with the People's Government
of Fenggang Town, Dongguan City to expand and build
a new production base in Fenggang Town. In addition,
the Group is also looking for a suitable site in Shenzhen
to prepare for the construction of a high-end and highly
reliable industrial grade MLCC production base and pilot
R&D base. Upon the completion of these bases, the

Chairman’s Statement
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BOARATHETSEERRE E2EHE
HHSEERETRECEERARAHR 2020 F
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Chairman’s Statement

EREHS

Group's MLCC production capacity and product range
will be significantly enhanced, thereby consolidating the
Group's competitive edge in the market.

Pertaining to the asset management segment, the Group
will continue to integrate resources, strengthen compliance
and risk management, actively focus on key markets and
key projects, and enhance the value of its assets through
refined and active management.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Last year, under the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic, the
development of the Company was also affected negatively
to a certain extent. However, with the joint efforts of the
directors and colleagues of the Company, the operating
condition of the Company gradually improved and the
management standard was further enhanced. | would like
to take this opportunity to express my gratitude to all of
our directors and colleagues for their efforts and dedication
during the past year. Also, | would like to express my
gratitude to all shareholders, investors and customers for
their constant trust and support. You are our reason to
keep pushing on.

Zhou Chunhua
Chairman
Hong Kong, 31 March 2021
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the outbreak
of the coronavirus (COVID-19) has brought enormous
challenges and difficulties to the global macro economy
and the Group. As the MLCC business is the Group’s main
business and a major source of growth, the management
is committed to overcoming the challenges and resolving
the difficulties so as to grow and strengthen the MLCC
segment in accordance with the established plans. For
the year ended 31 December 2020, the investment and
financial services segment has remained stable, while the
other general trading segment has been temporarily halted.

MLCC

The outbreak of coronavirus (COVID-19) in 2020 has
imposed challenges to the global environment. In the first
half of 2020, as affected by the pandemic, the circulation
of industrial chain and supply chain were arrested, while
the growth of international trading has shrunk and end-
user demand was suppressed. In particular, the impact
on mobile phones and security were relatively higher. The
MLCC segment of the Group was also affected in terms of
sales, resulting in a decline in sales volume. In the second
half of 2020, since the pandemic had been under control
in China, the domestic electronics industry was on track to
recovery. The 5G technology has been popularized and the
domestic substitution has made great progress. Together
with the continuous development of industries of electric
vehicles and intellectual manufacturing, the demand for
electronic products has increased significantly, which led to
a recovery for the needs of MLCC. Meanwhile, the Group
is devoted to improving the sales team management
and enhancing sales agency network and market share
expansion. The sales volume and amount of the MLCC
segment boosted significantly with an increase of 121%
and 139% respectively, as compared to the first half of
2020.

BIEE W E‘zﬁ#ﬁ

EF5MIEE

HE2020F 12831 HIEEEHB > #HE SR
JRWEBE(COVID-19) 1B BRI EEH K EMAE
BHEREANNBEREHE EAMLCCEFERAR
EENTEXERNFIERRRFE EEERS
TORRME R RANE MR E ML BREEE &t
B AMEMLCCO BPEFE - B E20205F128
STHEEFE RELRSRRB O EFTFE
MmMEM—KESPHELEFEZE-

MLCC

20204 > #ﬁﬁu—tﬁkrﬂ(covm 19)H 2 B
ﬁ%%%%#ﬁf F¥E 22K EBE
&%ﬂ{ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁm’ﬁW%%&ﬁé
%’“ RIFERZEING > Hop LU F# A
ﬁ%%W%%%% xﬁlmmcﬂ%mﬁ%
TZEEENEE  ERHFESE TR -EAT
¥¢@’%%!mrm%@ﬁﬂ’ﬁm%¥ﬁ
EX¥SREWE> %&mMﬁ'&’HéﬁﬁL
Exﬁﬁm’mmniﬁ -~ BB EE
TEBANEE BEFEMPNEREHIRKNIE
EF BEFHMLCCEKREDIE > 02 A% B N84
THERBRUARERARNER  FEBAS
BIEE MLCCHOERHEEMIHEZEHRK2020
ELHEEDPAREBLEFAT121%M139% ©
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BIEESwmA D

In addition to the expansion of sales volume, the
Group also focused on improvement of product quality,
optimization of product structure and enhancement of
industry reputation. The production of the two plants
in Dongguan and Anhui is now stable and orderly.
The measures such as acquiring new equipments,
advancing technologies and enhancing automation and
informatisation levels on the early stage have all been
proved effective, which took the monthly production
capacity and yield of the MLCC segment to a new level and
helped to control the cost. Hence, despite the outbreak, the
gross profit of the MLCC segment of the Group boosted
significantly during the reporting period with an increase
in gross profit margin from gross loss of 4.0% in 2019 to
gross profit of 17.5% in 2020.

In order to seize the opportunity of MLCC localization
and to satisfy the needs of clients, the Group proposed
to expand its input in new production capacity in
the next few years. For the project of relocating and
expanding the current production base in Chuzhou,
Anhui Province, which locates in Chuzhou Economic
Development Zone, land acquisition, energy conservation
review, safety assessment and environmental impact
assessment was completed in the reporting period.
The construction has begun since 16 December 2020.
During the reporting period, the Group has set up a
new wholly-owned subsidiary, Dongguan Dong Eyang
Technology Development Co., Ltd,* (REHEFHEE
FRFEZEEARAT). On 28 July 2020, the Group
agreed on an intention with the People’s Government of
Fenggang Town, Dongguan City GREmBEEARK
[f¥) for the proposed establishment of a production base
in Fenggang Town, Dongguan City, so as to relocate
and expand the current production base in Donguan
City. In addition, the Group endeavours to look for
appropriate location in Shenzhen for the establishment
of production, R&D and pilot scale production base for
high-class and high reliance MLCC of industrial grade.
The production capacity and technology standards of the
Group will be notably improved after the completion of
the aforesaid construction.

*  For identification purposes only.

TIANLI HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED XFZEREMERAE
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Asset Management

Management Discussion and Analysis

As at 31 December 2020, the Group is managing 11

funds, each with a distinct focus. The Group derives asset

management fee income by providing asset management

services to the funds. The capital commitments from their

limited partners are listed in the table below. The Group,

being one of the limited partners, also directly invests into

six of the funds.

Unit: US$ million

BIEE W E‘zﬁ#ﬁ

BEEER

R2020F12831H AEBEEBI1EES
xlﬁﬁﬁi’—jﬁ/_[ﬂmﬁﬁ%i% $$@?&b?ﬁ%
SIS EEEREMAELEEEE
BWA - ZEEE2EREBAZEKEERT]
MRTIRAN - AEBIEAEF—LEBEREB AT
ERRERHEFPRNEES

B HGEET

Capital Commitment

EHAL

Fund Name Initial Total of  Total from
Closing Date Term (Year) Investment Focus the Fund”  the Group?
&0 MExER AR (F59) REEH 205 FEELHEY
1 Tianli China Opportunities Fund I L.P. January 2017 55 Project fund established for an investment 116.4 17.5
in Beijing
FRPEBBHEES 2017518 RAURBRN—EREREMRNEEE
%
2 Tianli SPC January 2017 36 Invest in a wide range of assets including 87.4 -
private equity investments, listed and
unlisted securities, debt securities and
other financial instruments
Tianli SPC 2017518 REREBER AFLERERE  LH
R LHESH BHEESREMSRTA
3 Tianli Private Debt Fund L.P. January 2017 5+1041¢ Invest in a wide range of private debt 300.0 35.0
instruments with regional focus primarily
in developed countries and China
FHMEEREES 2017518 RENLZBILERRIS REMETE
EhFEEARKKH
4 Tianli Private Debt Capital L.P March 2017 5430410 Invest predominantly across a wide range of 175.0 9.8
private debt instruments globally
FHMEERER 2017438 TEREREBEBIERETR
5 Tianli Global Opportunities Capital L.P? March 2017 7420 Invest globally across various sectors and 175.0 12.2
distressed assets
RRRIHBE A 2017438 RERE2BARTERIREE

TIANLI HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED X#ZREMARAR
ANNUAL REPORT 2020 &%

11



12

Management Discussion and Analysis

BIEESwmA D

Capital Commitment

EHEER
Fund Name Initial Total of  Total from
Closing Date Term (Year) Investment Focus the Fund”  the Group?
BEEAH MExRER HAR (459) RAEH BESEw FEEEEY
6 Tianli Special Situations Capital L.P. March 2017 7420410 Invest predominantly in global mergers 175.0 9.8
and acquisitions, private equity or other
corporate finance transactions
RRBBER 20174348 TERBER2RMHE AERENEME
£MERS
7 Tianli Public Markets Capital L.P March 2017 4420420 Invest predominantly in the secondary market 100.0 5.6
of publicly traded securities globally
KR ABEHIHBER 20174348 FEREREBR QTN LHES
8  Tianli M&A Investment L.P. March 2017 5+2¢ Invest predominantly in global mergers and 310.0 =
acquisitions or other corporate finance
related investments
KRIftEERERES 20174348 TERERRMHBIEAMECERBEERR
9 Tianli China Opportunities Fund Il L.P. March 2017 5+16414 Project fund established for an investment 80.4 =
in Shanghai
RRIPESBHEES 20174348 AR EEN—EREEAMRNBEER
&
10 Tianli UK Opportunities Fund L.P. March 2017 5+16414 Invest predominantly in projects located in 150.4 =
United Kingdom
FREEBEES 20174348 ERERUNEENEE
11 Tianli US Opportunities Fund L.P. April 2017 5+16414 Invest predominantly in projects located in 12.6 =
the United States
KR EERBEES 2017548 FERERURERNEE
Notes: Kzt
1. Extension upon recommendation of the general partner with 1. REBOEBAERZMRELZEGHEBIEE
approval of the investment committee
2. Formerly known as Tianli Real Estate Capital L.P 2. BB R A B ith E B A
3. Extension upon sole discretion of the general partner 3. REBREBAZENBFATERLES
4. Extension upon recommendation of the general partner with 4. KEBEBAERKEBEZEGMERIER
approval of the advisory committee
5. Extension upon approval of the limited partners 5. KEREBARERILER
6. Refers to investor lockup period 6. IEREERER
7. Including cross holdings among the funds 7. BIEEEZ BN XFER
8. Including direct capital 8. BEERER

TIANLI HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED XFZEREMERAE
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Management Discussion and Analysis

As at 31 December 2020, the total capital commitment of
the above funds (after eliminating the cross-holding effect)
was approximately US$1,057.8 million, among which the
Group had committed approximately US$89.9 million with
US$78.0 million capital invested. During the year 2020, the
six funds that the Group has invested contributed a net
gain of RMB35.2 million to the Group’s financial results, in
addition to the asset management fee income of RMB54.0
million.

Unit: US$ million

BIEE W E‘zﬁ#ﬁ

EA2020¢12531E| T E SN REES KB
B(RIEERINIFREZER) A951,057.88 8
%E’H$K$IMﬁ*ﬁ$%%w9§%%
T EBEPEREEARATSOBEEETTT 12020
FE BREEEEBERAARKS4. 088 T
G REBFRBENANEESAREE BB
XEEMFHRBBEARKIS 2EE T

EVi=N--F

Product
Em
Common Preferred Invested
Fund name Country/region Debt equity equity amount
BEE21E ER & (L BiEtEx BitE= KREEE
Tianli China Opportunities PRC - 107.7 - 107.7
Fund I L.P.
AP EEEREE SR s
Tianli Private Debt Fund L.P. Australia - - 18.0 18.0
RAALHEEREES BN
Korea 55 S S 55
R
UK 24.9 - - 249
e
Tianli M&A Investment L.P. Hong Kong 366.0 - - 366.0
RAHBRERES BE
Tianli Private Debt Capital L.P. Hong Kong 28.3 - - 28.3
RAAUFAEEEE K BB
Tianli China Opportunities PRC - 69.2 - 69.2
Fund Il L.P.
AP EHERE S 5 HHE
Tianli UK Opportunities Fund L.P. UK - 136.6 25.2 161.8
AA R B A S EE
Tianli US Opportunities Fund L.P. us - 13.8 - 13.8
KA EEWBILES ES50
Total 45t 424.7 327.3 43.2 795.2

TIANLI HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED X#ZREMARAR
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BRI

Consistent with prior periods, the investments made by
these funds were in six countries or regions, including
Australia, Hong Kong, Korea, PRC, UK and the US, and
these investments were in the form of debt, common
equity or preferred equity.

Investment

Following the investment strategy from previous periods,
the Group continues to hold two passive financial
investments, including one equity investment (classified as
financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income on the face of consolidated statement of financial
position), and one investment in an associate (classified
as interest in an associate on the face of consolidated
statement of financial position). The fair value of the
equity investment had been reviewed at the end of 2020
by the management using cash flow projections based on
a financial budget, and had been increased to RMB25.9
million due to better-than-expected present value of the
expected business return.

The investment in an associate refers to a private equity
fund established in Korea, which is 29.98% held by a
non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Group, a licensed
comprehensive asset management company in Korea. The
interests in an associate is accounted for by the Group in
the consolidated financial statements using equity method.

OTHER GENERAL TRADING

The Group’s general trading segment was severely affected
by the uncertain global economic environment. The Group
has temporarily suspended trading activities for the year
ended 31 December 2020 to avoid potential risks in the
adverse trading environment. As at 15 January 2021, the
Board has also resolved to cease other general trading
business.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS PROSPECTS

After the destocking stage in 2019, the MLCC market
has gradually recovered during 2020. Although the
outbreak of coronavirus (COVID-19) imposed a great
threat to the global economy and suppressed the end-
user demand in the first half of 2020, since the pandemic
was under control in China by the middle of the year, the
downstream markets like new infrastructure construction
and new energy sources were back on track. As the
demand of MLCC was increased, performance of the
MLCC segment of the Group has been notably improved.
In 2021, due to the continuing impact of COVID-19
pandemic, Sino-US trade war and other relevant factors,
the output of industries such as automobile, mobile
phone and security have been affected by the shortage of
upstream semiconductor components. However, after the
popularization of COVID-19 vaccine, the global economy
could gradually embrace an overall recovery. In China,
new infrastructure construction led by 5G technology
has been implemented rapidly, which will benefit the
MLCC business of the Group. As the leading company of
small and micro MLCC industry in China, the Group has
sharpened the competitive advantage of mobile terminal,
security, network communication, PC and other traditional
consumer markets. In this case, the Group will develop
more reliable series of products with higher accuracy
and proactively expand high-end markets and industrial
application such as chip embedding technology and 5G
base stations. Now there is a breakthrough in these fields
and aforesaid products will be expected to hold much
more market share. The Group will continue to enhance
automation and informatisation levels, tap the potential
of technology and increase production capacity, especially
to raise the production capacity of high-class products.
Meanwhile, the Group will accelerate the construction of
production bases. Therefore, the management will continue
to consolidate dominant resources, expand production
capacity, upgrade technology standards and seize the
opportunity of domestic production substitution so as to
strengthen the MLCC segment and meet the needs of the
market.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BIEESwmA D

In respect of investment and financial services, the
Group will reinforce the post-investment monitoring and
management of existing projects in its fund operation, take
various measures to prevent and mitigate potential risks,
through enhancing risk-control measures and reducing risk
exposure based on the terms of the existing agreements
in order to safeguard the interests of fund investors.
With most of its efforts directed towards the subsequent
management of existing projects, the Group will also start
developing new business when appropriate, exploring
value-added opportunities for investors in stable and
reliable investment projects.

For other general trading segment, the Group will cease
relative business in the year of 2021 and continue to focus
on its current business.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group's
revenue was solely derived from (i) MLCC segment;
and (ii) investment and financial services segment. As
aforementioned, the other general trading has been halted
for the year ended 31 December 2020. Total revenue of the
Group was RMB441.6 million, which represented a drop of
RMB4.6 million, or 1.0%, as compared to that for the year
ended 31 December 2019.

Revenue from the MLCC segment for the year ended 31
December 2020 was RMB352.2 million, representing a
drop of RMB15.1 million, or 4.1% from the year ended
31 December 2019, which was due to weakened market
circumstances in the industry in the first half of 2020.

Revenue from investment and financial services segment
for the year ended 31 December 2020 reached RMB89.3
million. Among this, asset management fee income
remained stable for the years ended 31 December 2020
and 2019, but with the Group’s investment in funds noting
fair values gains, together with higher dividend income
from a fund, total revenue recorded RMB35.6 million for
the year ended 31 December 2020 as compared to that of
RMB20.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2019.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Gross Profit Margin

Aggregate gross profit margin for the year ended 31
December 2020 was 34.1%, representing a growth of
19.7% as compared to the year ended 31 December 2019.

Specifically, the gross profit margin of MLCC segment
increased from gross loss margin of 4.0% for the year
ended 31 December 2019 to gross profit margin of 17.5%
for the year ended 31 December 2020. This was due to
effective cost control implementation during the year.

Other Income

The Group's other income amounted to RMB25.9 million
for the year ended 31 December 2020, representing a
increase of 6.8% from the year ended 31 December 2019.
The increase was mainly due to a one-off gain on reversal
of impairment loss of account receivables of RMB5.3
million and net off the effect of decrease in rental income
of RMB2.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Selling and Distribution Costs

The Group’s selling and distribution costs totalled RMB15.9
million for the year ended 31 December 2020, and this was
an increase of 27.0% from the year ended 31 December
2019. This was mainly due to an increase in staff salary for
sales department in the MLCC segment.

Administrative Expenses

The Group's administrative expenses for the year ended
31 December 2020 were RMB111.0 million, representing
an increase of RMB12.6 million from the year ended 31
December 2019. The increase was mainly because of an
increase in employees’ remuneration in MLCC segment.

Research and Development Costs

The Group incurred research and development costs of
RMB40.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2020,
representing a decrease of RMB27.1 million, or 40.1%
from the year ended 31 December 2019. The decrease was
mainly because the COVID-19 pandemic postponed the
delivery of new machinery, causing the delay in testing of
new products in MLCC segment.

Finance Costs

The Group's finance costs amounted to RMB21.4 million
for the year ended 31 December 2020 representing an
decrease of RMB10.7 million from the year ended 31
December 2019. The decrease was mainly due to further
repayment of other loan after fully settling the bond
payables in the second half of 2019.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BIEESwmA D

Property, Plant and Equipment

The net book values of the Group's property, plant and
equipment were RMB398.3 million as at 31 December
2020, increased by RMB147.8 million from the balance as
at 31 December 2019. The increase was mainly due to the
additions in plant and machinery used in the production of
MLCC, as well as the adoption of IFRS 16 where leases had
been capitalised.

Investment Property

The Group’s investment property was carried at RMB21.6
million as at 31 December 2020, comparable to the
carrying value of RMB22.2 million as at 31 December
2019.

Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss
As at 31 December 2020, the Group's financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL") had a carrying
value of RMB370.0 million, which was 3.6% decrease from
the balance as at 31 December 2019 which was classified
as financial assets designated at FVPL. This was mainly due
to a fair value gain of RMB18.8 million and net off the
return of capital of RMB16.4 million.

Accounts and Bills Receivables

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s accounts and bills
receivables amounted to RMB185.2 million, an increase
of RMB57.8 million or 45.3% from the balance as at 31
December 2019. The increase was mainly a result of an
increase in sales in the second half of 2020 compared to
the second half of 2019 in the MLCC segment.

Prepayments, Deposits and Other Receivables

As at 31 December 2020, prepayments, deposits and other
receivables amounted to RMB53.9 million, an increase
of RMB26.7 million as compared to the balance as at 31
December 2019. This was mainly due to the increase of
deductible value-added tax from the acquisition of fixed
assets in MLCC segment.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Cash and Bank Balances and Pledged Bank Deposits
As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s cash and bank
balances and pledged bank deposits totalled RMB60.3
million, down by RMB115.0 million from 31 December
2019. The decrease was mainly due to the acquisition of
new machinery and equipment during the year ended
31 December 2020.

Trade and Bills Payables

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s trade and bills
payables amounted to RMB71.6 million, an increase of
RMB27.0 million from 31 December 2019. This was mainly
due to an increase in production in the second half of
2020 compared to the second half of 2019 in the MLCC
segment.

Deferred Income, Accruals and Other Payables

As at 31 December 2020, total deferred income, accruals
and other payables amounted to RMB82.4 million, which
was an increase of RMB5.0 million from 31 December
2019. The increase was mainly due to the increase of
unpaid equipment costs.

Bank and Other Loans

As at 31 December 2020, the Group's bank and other
loans was carrying RMB220.1 million, which represented
an increase of RMB19.4 million from RMB200.7 million as
at 31 December 2019. The increase was mainly due to the
accrual of interests and the new bank and other loans from
independent third parties.

Contingent Liabilities
As at 31 December 2020, the Group had no material
contingent liabilities.

Capital Commitments

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had capital
commitments of RMB256.0 million, including undrawn
commitment to Tianli Private Debt Fund L.P. of
approximately US$13.2 million, or RMB87.0 million, Tianli
China Opportunities Fund | L.P of approximately US$1.4
million, or RMB9.0 million and capital commitment for
construction of plant of approximately RMB123.7 million
and addition of production equipment of approximately
RMB36.3 million.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BRI

Significant Investments

As at 31 December 2020, details of significant investments
(with individual investment value of 5 per cent or more of

ERKRE

2020 12H31H
(BIEREGMAEE:

AEBFAENEARE
EEHEBENS%IEI MU L)

the Group's total assets) held by the Group were set out as HIBEANT
follows:
Carrying
value
to total
Interests Total assets assets of
Nature of investments held Investment cost Carrying value of the Group the Group
FREES
FEE
REEH ERHE REMK REE FEEEEQRE BELE
e
(i) Tianli China Opportunities Fund | L.P. 15.04% USD 16,264,000 USD 19,492,000 1,364,869,000 9.4%
(approximately (approximately
RMB107,327,000) RMB128,632,000)
(i BREXFPERBREES 5% 15.04% 16,264,000% 7T 19,492,000% 7T 1,364,869,000 9.4%
AR WARE
107,327,0007T) 128,632,0007T)
(ii) Tianli Special Situations Capital L.P. 5.60% usD 9,800,000 UsD 25,400,000 1,364,869,000 12.3%
(approximately (approximately
RMB64,672,000) RMB167,616,000)
(ii) KHRBER 5.60% 9,800,000 7T 25,400,000 7T 1,364,869,000 12.3%
AR AR
64,672,0007T) 167,616,0007T)

(@)

Investment in Tianli China Opportunities Fund |
L.P (“REI")

The Group recorded investment in REl as “financial assets

at fair value through profit or loss”

. REl is a project fund

established for a property investment in Beijing.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, unrealised gain
of RMB9,451,000 on revaluation of the investment in REI
has been recorded by the Group. No realised gain or loss
and dividend have been received from this investment.

(i)

The Group recorded investment in SSC as
assets at fair value through profit or loss”.

Tianli Special Situations Capital L.P. (“SSC”)

“financial
SSC invest

predominantly in global mergers and acquisitions, private
equity or other corporate finance transactions.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, unrealised gain
of RMB34,329,000 on revaluation of the investment in SSC
has been recorded by the Group. No realised gain or loss
and dividend have been received from this investment.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The above significant investments are in line with the
assets management business segment’s strategy which will
continue to consolidate resources, strengthen compliance
and risk management control, and proactively focus on
key markets and projects, thereby improving the value
of investment assets through sophisticated, proactive
management.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

Net Current Assets

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had net current
assets of approximately RMB79.2 million (2019: RMB107.0
million), comprising of current assets of RMB477.8 million
(2019: RMB453.0 million), net off current liabilities of
RMB398.6 million (2019: RMB346.0 million).

The Group's current ratio was 1.2 as at 31 December 2020,
while this ratio was 1.3 as at 31 December 2019. The
decrease in current ratio was mainly due to the acquisition
of new machinery and equipment during the year ended
31 December 2020.

Banking Facilities

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had been granted
banking facilities of RMB20.0 million and utilised banking
facilities of RMB8.0 million (2019: Nil). The leasehold land
of the Group with a carrying value of RMB18,175,000
(2019: Nil) was pledged to an independent third party
which provided a guarantee to a bank in respect of the
bank facilities granted to the Group.

Gearing Ratio

The Group monitors its capital structure through gearing
ratio, which is net debt divided by capital plus net debt.
Net debt is calculated at the sum of bank and other
loans, obligations under finance lease, trade and bills
payables and accruals and other payables (excluding
deferred income and receipt in advance) less cash and cash
equivalents. Capital represents equity attributable to the
owners of the Company (excluding share capital). As at 31
December 2020 and 2019, the gearing ratios of the Group
were approximately 28.8% and 17.6%, respectively. The
increase in gearing ratio was a result of the decrease in
cash which was paid for the acquisition of new machinery
and equipment in MLCC segment during the year ended
31 December 2020.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BIEESwmA D

Financial Resources

With the amount of liquid assets on hand as well as credit
facilities granted by banks, the management is of the view
that the Group has sufficient financial reserves to meet its
ongoing operational requirements.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

In 2020, the Group's revenue were mainly denominated in
Renminbi, US dollars and HK$, whilst its purchases were
mainly denominated in Renminbi, US dollars, HK$ and
Japanese Yen. The trade receivables denominated in US
dollars were greater than the trade payables denominated
in US dollars, and the trade receivables denominated in
HK$ were smaller than the trade payables denominated
in HK$. Meanwhile, the Group is exposed to risks in
respect of trade payables denominated in Japanese Yen,
but is basically not exposed to risks in respect of trade
receivables denominated in Japanese Yen. In the event of
vigorous fluctuation of exchange rates, foreign exchange
risk will exist to a certain extent. The Group will adopt
corresponding hedging measures in relation to its foreign
currency exposure, with a view to providing protection
against future foreign exchange risk.

CHARGES ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2020, leasehold land of the Group with
carrying amounts of approximately RMB18.2 million (2019:
Nil) have been pledged as securities for banking facilities.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had a total of
1,255 (2019: 994) employees. The remuneration policy
and package of the Group’s employees are structured
in accordance with market conditions, the performance,
educational background and experience of individual
employees as well as statutory requirements where
appropriate.
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Board of Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Zhou Chunhua, aged 44, joined the Company as
an executive Director in January 2016 and was appointed
as the chairman of the Board of the Company in January
2018. Mr. Zhou was appointed as a member of the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee
of the Company in July 2018. He is also a director of
various subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Zhou holds a
Master of Business Administration degree in Finance
from Kellogg School of Management at Northwestern
University, a Master of Philosophy degree in System
Dynamics from University of Bergen and a Bachelor of
Science degree in Management Information Systems from
Fudan University. Mr. Zhou had held various executive
positions in a reputable investment bank and had worked
for various international financial institutions and business
organizations. Mr. Zhou has extensive experience in
financial management, investment and corporate finance.

Mr. Pan Tong, aged 49, was appointed as chief executive
officer of the Company and ceased to be chief risk officer
of the Company in April 2019. Mr. Pan is an executive
Director since August 2017. Mr. Pan is also a director
of various subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Pan holds a
bachelor’s degree in international finance from Hunan
College of Finance and Economics (currently known as
Hunan University). Mr. Pan had held various executive
positions at several banks and financial institutions in China
with extensive experience in the fields of risk management,
corporate banking and investment.

Mr. Chou, Benjamin Bang Yi, alias Zhou Bang Yi,
aged 41, joined the Group in July 2018 and has been an
executive Director and chief risk officer of the Company
since April 2019. Mr. Chou holds a Juris Doctor degree
from Cornell University Law School and Bachelor of Art
degrees in Economics and in Political Science from the
University of California, Los Angeles in the United States.
He is a solicitor admitted in Hong Kong and in the State
of New York of the United States. Mr. Chou has more
than 10 years of experience in providing corporate legal
and compliance advices and other professional corporate
services to Hong Kong listed and private companies.
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Board of Directors and Senior Management

EFEREREEAR

Ms. Du Weilin, aged 31, was appointed as executive
Director in November 2019. Ms. Du graduated from The
Great Wall University Beijing Q6 R RIRHFEEET) in 2008.
She has extensive experience in international trading,
investment and corporate management.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Chu Kin Wang, Peleus, aged 56, joined the Company
as an independent non-executive Director in April 2007.
Mr. Chu is also the chairman of the Audit Committee
and the Nomination Committee and a member of the
Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr. Chu holds
a Master of Business Administration degree from The
University of Hong Kong. Mr. Chu is a fellow of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (Practising).
Mr. Chu is also an associate of both The Chartered
Governance Institute (formerly known as The Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators) and The Hong
Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries. He has extensive
experience in corporate finance, audit, accounting and
taxation. Mr. Chu was previously a deputy chairman and
executive director of Chinese People Holdings Company
Limited (stock code: 681) until September 2020, and a
non-executive director of Perfect Group International
Holdings Limited (stock code: 3326) until March 2017, the
shares of which are all listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
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Board of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Chu is currently or used to be an independent non-
executive director of the following companies, the
securities of which are listed on the Stock Exchange:

o Mingfa Group (International) Company Limited
(stock code: 846) since November 2016;

o Madison Holdings Group Limited (formerly known
as Madison Wine Holdings Limited) (stock code:
8057) since September 2015;

o SuperRobotics Limited (formerly known as SkyNet
Group Limited) (stock code: 8176) since March
2012;

o Huayu Expressway Group Limited (stock code: 1823)
since May 2009;

o China First Capital Group Limited (formerly known
as China Vehicle Components Technology Holdings
Limited) (stock code: 1269) since October 2011;

o Xinming China Holdings Limited (stock code: 2699)
since April 2021,

o China Huishan Dairy Holdings Company Limited
(former stock code: 6863) until December 2017;

o Telecom Service One Holdings Limited (stock code:
3997 (former stock code: 8145)) until December
2017;

o PT International Development Corporation Limited

(formerly known as ITC Corporation Limited) (stock
code: 372) until September 2017; and

° Flyke International Holdings Limited. (former stock
code: 1998) until December 2020.
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EFEREREEAR

Mr. David Tsoi, aged 73, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director in August 2017. Mr.
Tsoi is also a member of the Audit Committee of the
Company. Mr. Tsoi obtained a master’s degree in business
administration from the University of East Asia, Macau
(currently known as the University of Macau) in 1986. He
is a certified public accountant registered with the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a chartered
certified accountant registered with the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants and a chartered
professional accountant and certified general accountant
certified by the Chartered Professional Accountants of
British Columbia, Canada, fellow member of The Institute
of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, The
Society of Chinese Accountants and Auditors and the CPA
Australia. He is also a certified tax adviser registered with
The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong. Currently, he is the
managing director of Alliott, Tsoi CPA Limited. Mr. Tsoi
is an independent non-executive director of Guru Online
(Holdings) Limited (stock code: 8121), Green International
Holdings Limited (stock code: 2700), VPower Group
International Holdings Limited (stock code: 1608), Universal
Technologies Holdings Limited (stock code: 1026) and
Everbright Grand China Assets Limited (stock code: 3699).
Mr. Tsoi was an independent non-executive director of
Enviro Energy International Holdings Limited (stock code:
1102) and Loto Interactive Limited (stock code: 8198), all
companies are listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Tsoi was
an independent non-executive director of Anxin-China
Holdings Limited (stock code: 1149), whose shares were
delisted on the Stock Exchange in December 2018.

Mr. Xu Xuechuan, aged 58, has been an independent
non-executive Director since July 2015. Mr. Xu is also
the chairman of the Remuneration Committee of the
Company and a member of the Audit Committee and the
Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. Xu holds a
bachelor's degree in economics from Peking University in
China, a Master of Arts in Economics degree and a Master
of Science degree in Marketing Research from University
of Guelph, Canada. Mr. Xu has extensive experience in
direct investment and corporate finance. Mr. Xu has held
senior management and consulting positions in various
international enterprises in Canada, Hong Kong and China.
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Board of Directors and Senior Management

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Liao Jie, aged 52, joined the Group in October 2001
and is currently the general manager of MLCC segment
of the Group. He is also a director of various subsidiaries
of the Company. He was previously an executive director
of the Company from April 2007 to September 2013. Mr.
Liao is in charge of the strategic planning and development
of MLCC business of the Group. He holds a master’s
degree of Engineering specializing in electronic materials
and components from Huazhong University of Science and
Technology.

Mr. Jing Wenping, aged 39, is currently the deputy
general manager of MLCC segment of the Group. He is
also a director of various subsidiaries of the Company. He
was previously an executive director of the Company from
May 2013 to July 2019. Mr. Jing is in charge of the Group's
MLCC product management, including development,
quality and production. He left the Group in April 2009
and rejoined the Group in January 2012. Mr. Jing holds
a master's degree in business administration from Peking
University HSBC Business School.

Mr. Zhuang Yixin, aged 56, joined the Group in January
2009 and is currently the general manager of MLCC
segment of the Group. He is also a director of various
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Zhuang is in charge of
the Group's MLCC product management in Eastern China,
including development, quality and production. Mr. Zhuang
holds a bachelor’s degree specializing in electronic ceramic
materials and components from South China University of
Technology.
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Corporate Governance Report

EEELAHRS

The board (the “Board”) of Directors (the “Directors”) of
the Company recognises the importance of maintaining
high standard of corporate governance to enhance the
long-term benefits and interests of the shareholders and
to strengthen the performance of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”).

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company strives to uphold recognised corporate
governance practices. Throughout the year ended 31
December 2020, the Company had complied with all
the code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code
(the "CG Code"”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”)
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”), save and except for the code provision E.1.2
which stipulates that the chairman of the board should
attend the annual general meeting.

Mr. Zhou Chunhua, being the chairman of the Board,
was unable to attend the annual general meeting held
on 24 June 2020 (the “2020 AGM") due to immigration
restrictions under the COVID-19 pandemic. The 2020
AGM was chaired by Mr. Pan Tong, the Executive Director
and Chief Executive Officer, with the consent of members
present.

The Board reviews and enhances the Group’s corporate
governance practices and business ethics on an ongoing
basis.

The below sets out the corporate governance principles
and practices adopted by the Group which indicate how
the Group has applied relevant principles in the CG Code.
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Corporate Governance Report

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Responsibilities of the Board

The Board is primarily responsible for the leadership and
control of the Group, and oversees the businesses, strategic
decisions and overall performance of the Group.

To facilitate effective management, the Board has
delegated to the senior management the authority
and responsibility for the day-to-day management and
operation of the Group. Besides, the Board has established
three Board committees, namely Audit Committee,
Nomination Committee, and Remuneration Committee,
and has delegated to these Board committees various
responsibilities as set out in their respective terms of
reference.

The Board is charged with promoting the success of
the Group by directing and supervising its affairs in a
responsible and effective manner. Each Director has a duty
to act in good faith in the best interests of the Company.
The Directors are aware of their collective and individual
responsibilities to all shareholders of the Group for the
manner in which the affairs of the Company are managed,
controlled and operated. A Director is required to keep
abreast of his responsibilities as a Director and of the
conduct, business activities and development of the Group.

The Board is also responsible for business activities
like acquisition and disposal transactions, connected
transactions, investments and capital expenditures and
discusses the related issues thoroughly.

The Board monitors the financial performance and the
internal control of the Group’s business operations.
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TEELHRS

Composition of the Board

The Board currently comprises four executive Directors and
three independent non-executive Directors. The executive
Directors of the Board participate in the Group's daily
operation and management and convey a clear picture
of the direction, business objectives and goals of the
Company to the staff.

The biographies of the Directors are set out in the section
headed “Board of Directors and Senior Management” of
this Annual Report. An updated list of Directors identifying
their roles and functions is maintained on the websites of
the Company and Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing
Limited.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Board
comprised the following Directors and the record of
attendance of meetings in 2020 of each Director is as
follows:
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Number of meetings attended/held during the year (Directors’ tenure)

FRME/ BONEERE ES2EH

2020
Annual
Audit Remuneration  Nomination General
Name of Directors Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting
20205
EEi4 EX8 BHRZET HFWZE8E€ REZET RRBEEAE
Executive Directors HiTER
Mr. Zhou Chunhua (Chairman) BEZELLE (F/E) 11/ 33 11 01
Mr. Pan Tong BYEE (TR 11/11 1
(Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Chou, Benjamin Bang Yi BB %L4E 1111 17
Ms. Du Weilin HEMZ L 6/11 0/1
Independent BiIEHTES
Non-executive Directors
Mr. Chu Kin Wang, Peleus KRELE 11/11 6/6 33 11 17
Mr. David Tsoi BARUESE 11/ 6/6 11
Mr. Xu Xuechuan HE)I|EE 11/1 6/6 3/3 17N Il

\
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Corporate Governance Report

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The chairman of the Board is Mr. Zhou Chunhua and the
chief executive officer is Mr. Pan Tong. The roles of the
chairman and the chief executive officer are separate and
are not performed by the same individual. Their respective
roles and responsibilities were set out in writing.

The chairman is responsible for providing leadership to,
and overseeing, the functioning of the Board and, with the
support of executive Directors and the company secretary,
seeking to ensure that all Directors are properly briefed on
issues arising at Board meetings and that they receive, in a
timely manner, adequate and reliable information. The chief
executive officer is responsible for overseeing the day-to-
day operations of the Group and the implementation of the
Board’s policies and decision.

Relationship between Board Members and
Independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors

None of the members of the Board has any relationship
(including financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationships) between each other. The Company
has received confirmation of independence from each of
the independent non-executive Directors pursuant to rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. Independence of each of the
independent non-executive Directors has been assessed
and reviewed by the Nomination Committee and the
Board continues to consider each of them independent in
accordance with the Listing Rules.
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TEELHRS

Mr. Chu Kin Wang, Peleus, an independent non-executive
Director, has served the Board for more than nine years.
Notwithstanding his length of tenure, in view of his wide
spectrum of knowledge, extensive business experience
and familiarity with the affairs of the Company, the Board
is of the opinion that he possesses the required character,
integrity and experience to ensure his independence
in order to objectively scrutinise performance of the
Company.

The independent non-executive Directors had been
expressly identified as such in all corporate communications
of the Company that disclose the names of Directors.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Under code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, all non-
executive directors of the Company have entered into
letters of appointment with the Company for a specific
term of one year unless terminated by either party in
writing. In accordance with the articles of association of
the Company (the “Articles of Association”), any Director
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold
office until the first general meeting of Company after
his or her appointment and be subject to re-election at
such meeting and any Director appointed by the Board
as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only
until the next following annual general meeting of the
Company and shall then be eligible for re-election. In
addition, at each annual general meeting of the Company
no less than one-third of the Directors for the time being
shall retire from office by rotation provided that every
Director (including those appointed for a specific term) shall
be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years. When an independent non-executive director
proposing for re-election has served the Company for more
than nine years, and if the proposed independent non-
executive director will be holding his or her seventh (or
more) listed company directorship, his or her re-election will
be subject to a separate resolution to be approved at the
annual general meeting of the Company. The directors who
shall retire from office at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company are set out on page 53 of this
Annual Report.
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Corporate Governance Report

Board Meetings

The Board meets at least four times each year or more as
required. Directors may participate in meetings either in
person or through electronic means of communication. At
least 14 days' notice of all regular Board meetings together
with the meeting agenda is given to all Directors such that
all Directors are given the opportunity to include matters
for discussion in the agenda. All accompanying Board
papers were sent to the Directors in a timely manner and at
least three days before the meetings (or such other period
as agreed). For other meetings, Directors are given as much
notice as reasonable and practicable in the circumstances.
Except for those circumstances permitted by the Articles
of Association and the Listing Rules, a Director would
abstain from voting on resolutions approving any contract,
transaction or arrangement in which he or she or any of
his/her close associates is materially interested in, and such
Director is not counted for determining a quorum.

The company secretary assists the Chairman in preparing
the agenda for the Board meetings and ensures that all
applicable rules and regulations regarding the proceedings
of the Board meetings are followed. Draft and final
versions of minutes of each Board meeting are sent to
all Directors for their comments and records respectively
within a reasonable time. All minutes are properly kept by
the company secretary and are available for the Directors’
inspection.

Directors at all times have full and timely access to
information of the Group. Directors also have independent
access to senior management for information on the Group
and unrestricted access to the services of the company
secretary. The company secretary advises the Board on
corporate governance matters and board procedures.
Directors can also seek independent professional advice
whenever deemed necessary by them at the expense of the
Company, as appropriate.
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DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Every director keeps abreast of responsibilities as a Director
and of the conduct, business activities and development
of the Company. Every newly appointed Director receives a
comprehensive induction package containing an overview
of the Group's businesses and the applicable statutory and
regulatory obligations of a director of a listed company. The
company secretary from time to time updates and provides
written training materials to the Directors on the latest
development of the Listing Rules, applicable laws, rules and
regulations relating to the duties and responsibilities of a
director of a listed company.

According to the Director’s training records provided to
the Company for the year ended 31 December 2020,
the training undertaken by all Directors during the year is
summarised as below:

EFEREERYER

BEFHARD THREIREFTHNBEUARER
ANEESFN - EHFLBRLER - BRNTEE
EFHEE - MEENARES REEES
EENEBHAA LT ATESENERETE
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Type(s) of
training
EaEE
(Note(s))
Name of Directors ERH4 (Hi&t)
Executive Directors WITES
Mr. Zhou Chunhua BEELE A, B
Mr. Pan Tong E A A B
Mr. Chou, Benjamin Bang Yi BIFFE A B
Ms. Du Weilin B £+ B
Independent Non-executive Directors BIERITES
Mr. Chu Kin Wang, Peleus KERFE A, B
Mr. David Tsoi BRMERSE A, B
&Mr. Xu Xuechuan RE)&E A, B
Notes: Hyat
A Participated in seminars/forums/conferences (including giving A BINWNE w8 €% (BERRED)
speeches)
B: Read seminar materials/journals/articles/business or industry B: FEMgER R, XE S EBRITERNE
updates i
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MODEL CODE FOR DEALING IN SECURITIES
BY DIRECTORS

The Board has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code") as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the
code of conduct regulating Directors’ dealings in securities
of the Company. Having made specific enquiry of all the
Directors, all Directors have confirmed that they have
complied with the required standards as set out in Model
Code regarding their securities transactions throughout the
year ended 31 December 2020.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three Board committees, namely,
the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and
the Nomination Committee for overseeing specific aspects
of the Company’s affairs. The Board committees are
accountable to the Board and will report their outcomes,
opinions, findings and recommendations arrived at the
committee meetings to the Board. All Board committees
are established with defined written terms of reference
which are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company for public information. The Board
committee memberships and the attendance records of
each member of the Board during 2020 is set out on page
30 of this Annual Report.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee consists of three members, all of
whom are independent non-executive Directors. During the
year and at the date of this report, the Audit Committee
comprises the following members:

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Chu Kin Wang, Peleus (Chairman)
Mr. David Tsoi

Mr. Xu Xuechuan

None of the members of the Audit Committee is a former
partner of the existing external auditor of the Company.
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EEELAHRS

The Audit Committee reports to the Board and holds
regular meetings to assist the Board in discharging
its responsibilities for effective controls over financial
reporting, risk management and internal control
systems. It monitors the integrity of the Company’s
financial statements, annual report and accounts
and half-year report and reviews significant financial
reporting judgements contained therein. It reviews,
makes recommendations and reports to the Board on
findings relating to the financial statements, reports and
accounts, risk management and internal control systems
and compliance issues. It also oversees the Company’s
relationship with the external auditor, reviews auditor’s
letter of engagement and makes recommendations to
the Board on the appointment and re-appointment of
external auditor. It is empowered to review and monitor
the external auditor’s independence and objectivity and
the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance with
applicable standards. It discusses with the management
about the internal control system and ensures that
management has discharged its duty to have effective
systems including the adequacy of resources, qualifications
and experience of staff of the Company’s accounting and
financial reporting function, and their training schemes and
budget. The Audit Committee meets at least two times a
year and is provided with sufficient resources enabling it to
discharge its duties.

During the year, the Audit Committee had held six
meetings. The following is a summary of the major tasks
carried out by the Audit Committee during the year ended
31 December 2020:

(i) reviewed and recommended to the Board for
approval of the annual financial results, both
management accounts and audited report, in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2019
and interim financial results and report for the six
months ended 30 June 2020;

(ii) reviewed the internal audit findings prepared by
outsourced internal auditor in relation to the risk
management and internal control systems of the
Group;
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(iii) reviewed the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems based on the internal
audit findings and recommended actions to the
Board when appropriate;

(iv)  reviewed the corporate governance practices in
order to comply with CG Code and disclosure in the
Corporate Governance Report; and

(v) reviewed the independence of the external
auditor and recommended to the Board on the re-
appointment of the external auditor.

There was no disagreement between the Board and
the Audit Committee on the selection, appointment,
resignation or dismissal of the external auditor.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are
published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.

Remuneration Committee
The Remuneration Committee comprises three members:

Executive Director
Mr. Zhou Chunhua

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Xu Xuechuan (Chairman)
Mr. Chu Kin Wang, Peleus

The majority of them are independent non-executive
Directors.

The Remuneration Committee reports directly to the
Board and the principal objectives include making
recommendations to the Board on the Company's policy
and structure for all Directors and senior management'’s
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy;
and reviewing and approving the individual remuneration
packages with reference to corporate goals and objectives
resolved by the Board from time to time. The Remuneration
Committee reports to the Board on the outcomes of their
meetings.

EEELRS

(i) RFEANLEZERBEREERAER
ERERFNARC IR BERERES
BZ1TH

(iv) BERECXELAERUBTEEEALRT
A TERECXELRTNZIKRE , &

(v) W EZBMZBIE  UHRERZ
EBZiEnBMOEETeRHEERR

o

EFEEINEZHMMMNEABE - SZE  BHENE

EFHBELRBELZETUETER K-

BEZEES
NCSIEEVEE

BY Bel A2 0 B # 5% Mk 5 P 4 Uk Ky AR

WINEE S

FNZETm =2 AN :

BITEE
BEELE
BUFRITEF
wEB)NEE (FE)
RREFE

REDUERBIULIFRTES

HMNEETERNESFEER HTEREE
ERE2RESThSREEABNFHFMBRR
R RWRILIERMABHERNRRRF GG #
MR MEFTRLESRZ, T2FEFT L
FZANABRE RER B L ERTRIR
BEMNBAFNEE - FHEETRAERS
BREANEZNHAEER -

TIANLI HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED X#ZREMARAR
ANNUAL REPORT 2020 &%

37



38

Corporate Governance Report

TEELHRS

The Remuneration Committee adopts the approach
of making recommendation to the Board on the
compensation packages of the Directors with reference to
the skill, knowledge, experience and the tasks assigned
and individuals’ performance and overall results of the
Company. In determining the remuneration package, the
Remuneration Committee also obtains reports, surveys
and relevant information from external sources for the
competitive level of remuneration and market trend for
the directors. The Remuneration Committee meets at
least once a year and is provided with sufficient resources
enabling it to discharge its duties.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are
published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.

The Remuneration Committee met three times during the
year and has performed the following duties:

(i) reviewed the existing remuneration policy and
structure for all the Directors and recommended to
the Board on their remuneration packages; and

(ii) reviewed and recommended to the Board for
approval of the revision of the remuneration
packages of the Chairman of the Board and senior
management.

No Director was involved in deciding his/her own
remuneration at the meeting of the Remuneration
Committee. Particulars of the Directors’ emoluments are set
out in note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.
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The number of the highest paid individuals other than
Directors and chief executive of the Group by band for the
year ended 31 December 2020 is set out below:

EEELRS

HE2020F 1283 1HIEFE AEBZES
AL (BEASHRTBRAERI) REEZ
AHHEBEHEHIWT :

/ Numbers of
Individuals

Remuneration bands HENEEE A
HK$6,000,001 to HK$6,500,000 6,000,00178 7T %6,500,00078 7T 1

(RMB5,356,411 to RMB5,802,778,
2019: RMB5,268,886 to RMB5,707,959)

HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000
(RMB4,463,676 to RMB4,910,043,
2019: RMB4,390,738 to RMB4,829,811)

HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000
(RMB4,017,308 to RMB4,463,675
2019: RMB3,951,665 to RMB4,390,738)

(AR #5,356,4117TE AR #5,802,7787%
20194 | AR 1&5,268,88670F A R #5,707,9597T)

5,000,001 75 5,500,000 75 1
(NR 4,463,676 AR 154,910,0437T »
20194 : AR 4,390,738 T E A R #£4,829,8117T)

4,500,001 75 £5,000,0005 75 1
(NEH£4,017,308TTE AR #£4,463,6757T
20194 : AR 3,951,66570 F A R #£4,390,7387T)

Nomination Committee
The Nomination Committee comprises three members:

Executive Director
Mr. Zhou Chunhua

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Chu Kin Wang, Peleus (Chairman)
Mr. Xu Xuechuan

The majority of them are independent non-executive
Directors.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for regularly
reviewing the structure, size and composition of the
Board with reference to the board diversity policy of the
Company and making recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the corporate
strategy of the Company. Its major duties include making
recommendations to the Board on the selection of
individuals nominated for directorships, the appointment or
re-appointment of Directors, assessing the independence
of independent non-executive Directors and reviewing their
annual confirmations on independence. The Nomination
Committee meets at least once a year and is provided with
sufficient resources enabling it to discharge its duties.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are
published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.
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Below is a summary of the major works performed by the
Nomination Committee during the year under review:

(i) reviewed the structure, size, composition of the
Board, including diversity based on a range of
perspectives with reference to the Company's
business model and requirements such as gender,
age, ethnicity, education background and
professional expertise, industry experience, skills and
knowledge and length of service with the Company;

(ii) assessed the independence of the independent non-
executive Directors; and

(iii) reviewed and recommended to the Board the
retirement and re-election of Directors at the 2020
annual general meeting of the Company, including
one of whom had serviced the Board for over nine
years and held several directorships in other listed
companies in Hong Kong.

Nomination Policy

The Board adopted a nomination policy (the “Nomination
Policy”) in December 2018 which sets out the nomination
procedures and the process and criteria adopted to guide
the Nomination Committee to select and recommend
candidates for the Board. The nomination will be in
pursuit of a balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives in the Board appropriate to the requirements
of the Company’s business as well as succession continuity.
The Nomination Committee will identify and nominate
qualified individuals for appointment as additional
Director(s) or to fill vacancies as and when they arise.

In assessing the suitability of a proposed candidate, the
Nomination Committee would consider factors including:

(a) reputation for integrity;
(b) experience in (i) investment and financial services
business; (ii) general trading business; and (iii) MLCC

business;

(c) accounting or related financial management
expertise as required under the Listing Rules;
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(d) diversity in all its aspects, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service;

(e) commitment in respect of available time and
relevant interest; and

(f) requirements in respect of independent non-
executive directors in accordance with the Listing
Rules and whether the candidate would be
considered independent with reference to the
independence guidelines as set out in the Listing
Rules.

These factors are for reference only, and not meant to
be exhaustive and decisive. The Nomination Committee
has the discretion to nominate any person, as it considers
appropriate.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board adopted the board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) in accordance with the requirement
set out in the CG Code. Such policy aims to set out
the approach to achieve diversity on the Board. The
appointment of new directors of the Company shall be
based on meritocracy, and candidates shall be considered
against objective criteria, having due regard for the
benefits of diversity on the Board. In selecting director
candidates, Board diversity shall be considered, including
but not limited to, gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. Directors with technical,
legal, financial, management and audit background will
provide various extensive business experiences to the
Company. Such factors will be considered by the Company
based on its business model and specific needs and
the ultimate decision will be based on merit, value and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the
Board. The Nomination Committee monitors, from time
to time, the implementation of the policy, and reviews, as
appropriate, the policy to ensure the effectiveness of the
policy. The Nomination Committee will continue to give
adequate consideration to these measurable objectives
when making recommendations of candidates for
appointment to the Board.
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EEERERS

Under the current Board combination, the Directors possess
managerial, accounting and legal professional qualifications
with sound experiences in diversified businesses. In
addition, no less than one-third of them are independent
non-executive Directors, of whom at least one of them has
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise.

The diversity profile of the Board as at 31 December 2020
is as follows:

BEREFEEMT ESHAEE G5t RZK
REXERKZBEBNEEER LI 1B
YHRATESHEFTERNEART LR =S
Z— MAEPRL-—LEBEENEXERN
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122020F 128318 EE2 N Z bR
B

Gender [ Female Male
]| E°4 3
Designation Executive Directors Independent Non-executive Directors
Le) HITEE BYFHITES
Ethnicity ¢ Chinese
&k FA

Age Group
EEER @ <39 40-49

Year of Service

N

o o n

Number of Directors

Company Secretary

The company secretary is a full time employee of the
Company and is appointed by the Board. He possesses
the day-to-day knowledge of the Company’s affairs and
is responsible for facilitating the Board’s processes and
communications among Board members, with shareholders
and with management. He complied with the professional
training requirement under the Listing Rules during the
year.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial reporting

The Board, with the assistance by the Group’s senior staff
of the Finance Department, is responsible for overseeing
the preparation of financial statements for each financial
period. The Directors acknowledge their responsibility
for the preparation of the annual report and financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2020, which
give a true and fair view of the financial affairs of the
Group. The Directors consider that in preparing financial
statements, the Group ensures statutory requirements are
met and applies appropriate accounting policies that are
consistently adopted and makes judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent in accordance with the
applicable accounting standards.

The Board is not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions which may cast significant
doubt over the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. Accordingly, the Board has continued to adopt the
going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.

EEELAHRS
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External Auditor

Crowe (HK) CPA Limited is primarily responsible for
providing audit services in connection with the annual
consolidated financial statements of the Company.
A statement by the external auditor of the Company
in respect of its reporting responsibilities is set out in
the section headed “Independent Auditor’s Report”
of this Annual Report. During the year, the total fees
payable to the Company’s external auditor amounted to
RMB1,881,000, with breakdown as follows:

SMES A% BhED

HEEE (BB EstMEFHRARATEE
BEMEALRAFEGRE M HRRIEHZHIR
HeARBIIBZEMAEBARERSE 2B
ENAERZBIZBEMRE) B -FR>
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1,881,0007c > E AW T

~

Fee paid/

Services rendered payable

gt/

FRiR (1 AR 75 FEfI&ER

RMB’'000

ARBFT

Audit services 2R TS 1,607

Non-audit services JEFZ B AR 7% 274

Total RBEt 1,881
= .

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS EEERHEE

The Board is responsible for determining the policy for the EEEAEIIEARANEEEA BZ iy

corporate governance of the Company and performing the TEEERTARENTIEEERRE

following corporate governance duties as required under
the CG Code:

1. to develop and review the policies and practices
of the Group on corporate governance aspects
pursuant to the Listing Rules requirements;

2. to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

3. to review and monitor the policies and practices of

the Group on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

4. to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
and compliance manual applicable to the employees
of the Group and Directors; and
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5. to review the compliance by the Company with
the CG Code and disclosure in the corporate
governance report.

During the year, the Board reviewed the compliance with
the CG code through the Audit Committee.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for devising and maintaining a
sound and effective internal control and risk management
systems to safeguard the value and assets of the Company
on an ongoing basis. In designing and implementing the
internal control and risk management systems, the Board
has to balance the benefits of a good control against
the additional costs while adopting a system that can
provide assurance to the Company that it lives up to the
expectation of the Board, the shareholders as well as the
regulatory bodies.

The risk management and internal control systems of the
Group comprise, among others, the relevant financial,
operational, compliance controls and risk management
procedures, a well-established organisational structure with
clearly defined lines of responsibility and authority. Each
department is accountable for its daily operations and is
required to implement the business strategies and policies
adopted by the Board from time to time.

With reference to the “Internal Control — Integrated
Framework” issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (“COSQ"),
the Group has established an Enterprise Risk Management
("ERM") framework to proactively manage the risks,
assisting the Board and the Audit Committee in discharging
its risk management responsibilities and integrating ERM
activities into our business planning process as well as daily
operations.
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EEELAHRS

The Group has been maintaining procedures in handling
and dissemination of inside information in an accurate
and secure manner, in order to avoid possible mishandling
of inside information within the Group. Also, in order to
comply with all applicable laws and regulations in relation
to the anti-money laundering and terrorist financing, the
Group has adopted an anti-money laundering and know-
your-client policy to combat money-laundering and terrorist
financing activities and to generate a level of awareness
of the obligations and responsibilities of staff on the anti-
money laundering and terrorist financing.

In order to comply with the applicable code provisions
set forth in the Corporate Governance Code contained
in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules, same as last year's
practice, the Company engaged an independent
professional firm as the outsourced internal auditor
(the “internal auditor”) to conduct a review on the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the internal
auditor conducted an annual review to assess the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group. The review covered financial and
operational controls of the major business segment
of the Group. No significant deficiency was identified
during course of review and the systems were operating
effectively and adequately. The internal audit findings
and recommendations were submitted to the Board and
rectification actions were taken based on recommendations
by the internal auditor.

Having considered the internal audit findings by the
internal auditor, the Board opined, with the concurrence
of the Audit Committee, that the Group’s internal control
system is adequate and effective during the year ended
31 December 2020 and no internal audit function is
considered necessary in consideration of the Group’s
current operation size and organisation structure. The
Board has also assessed the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the accounting and
financial reporting function, and their training programmes
and budget and considered that they are effective and
adequate.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has adopted a dividend policy which outlines
the principles of payment on dividend. The Dividend
Policy would be in the best interests of the Group and the
shareholders of the Company. The Board endeavours to
maintain a balance between meeting the Shareholders’
expectations and prudent capital management with a
sustainable Dividend Policy.

The Board shall also take into account the following
factors of the Group when considering the declaration and
payment of dividends, inter alia:

(a) the Company’s actual and expected financial
performance;

(b) retained earnings and distributable reserves of the
Group;

(©) the level of the Group’s debts to equity ratio, return
on equity and the relevant financial covenants;

(d) any restrictions on payment of dividends that may
be imposed by the Group’s lenders;

(e) the Group's expected working capital requirements
and future expansion plans;

) general economic conditions, business cycle of
the Group's MLCC business and other internal or
external factors that may have an impact on the
business or financial performance and position of
the Company; and

(9) any other factors that the Board deem appropriate.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

Shareholders Communication Policy

The Company has established Shareholders
Communication Policy to ensure that all shareholders have
ready and timely access to all publicly available information
the Company so as to enable the shareholders to engage
actively with the Company and exercise their rights as
shareholders in an informed manner.
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Shareholders’ Meeting

The annual general meeting of the Company provides
an important channel for shareholders to exchange ideas
with the Board. Notices and circulars regarding the annual
general meeting and other general meetings are given in
well advance to ensure that shareholders have sufficient
time and information to prepare for the meetings. During
the general meetings, the Directors will answer questions
and queries raised by the attending shareholders and the
Board believes that such face-to-face interaction with
shareholders can promote mutual understanding between
the Company and shareholders. The external auditor is also
invited to attend the annual general meeting to answer
guestions about the conduct of the audit, the preparation
and content of the auditor’s report, the accounting policies
and auditor’s independence.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

(a) Procedures for shareholders to convene an
extraordinary general meeting and putting
proposals at general meetings

Pursuant to article 58 of the Articles of Association,
extraordinary general meetings shall also be
convened on the requisition of one or more
shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of
the requisition, not less than one-tenth of the
paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company.
Such requisition shall be made in writing to the
Board or the company secretary of the Company
for the purpose of requiring an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for
the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition. Such meeting shall be held within two
months after the deposit of such requisition. If
within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board
fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the
requisitionist(s) himself/herself (themselves) may do
so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the
failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the
requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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Procedures for directing shareholders’ enquiries
to the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries
and concerns in writing to the company secretary of
the Company at the Company’s principal place of
business in Hong Kong at Unit 907-909, 9th Floor,
Three Pacific Place, 1 Queen’s Road East, Hong
Kong.

Procedures for shareholders to propose a
person for election as a director

Pursuant to the article 88 of the Articles of
Association, no person other than a retiring Director
shall, unless recommended by the Board for
election, be eligible for election as a director at any
general meeting, unless a written notice signed by a
shareholder (other than the person to be proposed)
duly qualified to attend and vote at the meeting
for which such notice is given of his intention to
propose that person for election as a director and
notice in writing by that person of his willingness to
be elected shall have been lodged to the Company
provided that the minimum length of the period,
during which such notices are given, shall be at least
seven days. The period for lodgment of such notices
will commence on the day after the dispatch of the
notice of the general meeting appointed for such
election and end no later than seven days prior to
the date of such general meeting.

The detailed procedures regarding the election
are published on the Company’s website under
Corporate Governance section.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There had been no change in the constitutional documents
of the Company during the year ended 31 December 2020.
A printed copy of the Company’s latest constitutional
documents is publicly available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company, respectively.
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Report of the Directors
EFEHRS

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of Tianli Holdings Group Limited (the “Company”, and
together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) are pleased to
present their annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out
in note 39 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Business review for the year and future business
development of the Group as well as the principal risks
and uncertainties of the Group are set out in “Chairman’s
Statement” on pages 6 to 8 and the “Management
Discussion and Analysis” on pages 9 to 22 of this Annual
Report. Also, the financial risk management objectives
and policies of the Group can be found in note 41 to the
consolidated financial statements. Particulars of important
events affecting the Group that have occurred since the
end of the year ended 31 December 2020, if applicable,
are provided in the “Chairman’s statement” on pages
6 to 8 and the “Management Discussion and Analysis”
on pages 9 to 22 of this Annual Report. An analysis of
the Group’s performance during the year using financial
key performance indicators is provided in the “Financial
Highlights” on page 2 of this Annual Report.

In addition, discussions on the Group’s environmental
policies, relationships with its key stakeholders and
compliance with relevant laws and regulations which have
a significant impact on the Group are contained in the
“Chairman’s Statement”, the “Management Discussion
and Analysis”, the “Corporate Governance Report” and
this report on pages 6 to 8, pages 9 to 22, pages 28 to 49,
and pages 50 to 62 of this Annual Report respectively, and
in the upcoming “Environmental, Social and Governance
Report” to be available on the websites of the Company
and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) respectively. The above discussions form part of
this report.
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RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2020 and the financial positions of the Group as at 31
December 2020 are set out in the consolidated financial
statements on pages 75 to 78 of this Annual Report.

DIVIDEND

The Board did not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: nil).

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted
from the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Company, is set out on page 2 of this Annual Report. This
summary does not form part of the audited consolidated
financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The Company's reserves available for distribution to
shareholders as at 31 December 2020 were the retained
earnings of approximately RMB652,836,000 (2019:
RMB670,199,000).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Movements in investment properties of the Group during
the year are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Movements in the share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in note 36 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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EFOHRS

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the percentage of purchases from the
major suppliers of the Group to total purchases of the
Group is as follows:

Percentage of purchases from the largest supplier of the
Group to total purchases: approximately 13%.

Percentage of purchases from top five suppliers of the
Group to total purchases: approximately 30%.

None of the Directors, nor their associates or any
shareholders (which to the best knowledge of the
Directors, holding more than 5% of the share capital of the
Company) has an interest in the above suppliers.

During the year, the percentage of sales from the major
customers of the Group to the total sales of goods of the
Group is as follows:

Percentage of sales from the largest customer of the Group
to total sales of goods: approximately 10%.

Percentage of goods sold by the Group to its top five
customers to total sales of goods: approximately 27 %.

None of the Directors, nor their associates or any
shareholders (which to the best knowledge of the
Directors, holding more than 5% of the share capital of the
Company) has an interest in the above customers.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Articles of Association or the laws of Cayman Islands where
the Company was incorporated, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
shareholders of the Company.

BORROWINGS

Details of the borrowings of the Group are set out in note
31 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to
the date of this report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhou Chunhua

Mr. Pan Tong

Mr. Chou, Benjamin Bang Yi
Ms. Du Weilin

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Chu Kin Wang, Peleus

Mr. David Tsoi

Mr. Xu Xuechuan

Pursuant to article 87(1) of the Articles of Association,
Mr. Zhou Chunhua, Mr. Chou, Benjamin Bang Yi and
Mr. Xu Xuechuan will retire from office by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

The Company has received written confirmation from
all independent non-executive directors of the Company
regarding their independence as required under rule 3.13
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). The Company considers all the
independent non-executive directors of the Company to be
independent.

The Directors’ biographical details are set out in the “Board
of Directors and Senior Management” section of this
Annual Report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries
which is not determinable by the Group within one year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).
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Report of the Directors

EFEHRS

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid to the Company's directors is
determined based on their respective terms of service
agreements (if any). The directors’ fee is reviewed annually
by the remuneration committee of the Company and the
Board is authorised by the shareholders at the annual
general meetings to approve the remuneration of the
Directors. Details of remuneration paid and to be paid
to the directors of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2020 are set out in note 10 to the consolidated
financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Related Party
Transactions and Balances” as set out in note 38 to the
consolidated financial statements, there were no other
transactions, arrangements or contracts that are significant
in relation to the businesses of the Company and its
subsidiaries to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party and in which a director of the Company or his
connected entity had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the Directors or their respective close associates
has any competing interests which need to be disclosed
pursuant to rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES'
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions
of each Director and chief executive of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter
571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO")) as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under
section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers contained in the Listing Rules were as follows:

Long position in the shares of the Company
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Mr. Zhou Chunhua Beneficial owner 1,400,000 0.19%
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Ms. Du Weilin Interest of controlled corporation (Note) 189,765,825 25.48%
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capital of Cosmic Riches Investments Limited, which in turn
the registered owner of 189,765,825 shares. Accordingly, Ms.
Du Weilin was deemed to be interested in the 189,765,825
shares held by Cosmic Riches Investments Limited by virtue of
Part XV of the SFO.
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Save as disclosed above, so far as was known to the
Directors, as at 31 December 2020, none of the Directors
and the chief executive of the Company had or was
deemed to have any interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations which were recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under
section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers contained in the Listing Rules.

SHARE AWARD SCHEME

The Company adopted a share award scheme (the “Share
Award Scheme”) on 14 July 2017 (the “Adoption Date”)
to provide any individual employees of the Company
proposed by the Board with an opportunity to acquire a
proprietary interest in the Company for the purpose of (i)
encouraging and retaining such individuals to work with
the Company; (i) providing additional incentive for them
to achieve performance goals which in turn increase the
value of the Company; and (iii) aligning the interests of
the beneficiaries of the Share Award Scheme directly with
that of the shareholders through ownership of interests
in the Company. Unless terminated earlier by the Board,
the Share Award Scheme shall be valid and effective for
a period of 10 years commencing on the Adoption Date.
The award shares are subject to conditions and vesting
schedules as determined by the Board in its sole discretion.
The aggregate number of shares to be awarded under the
Share Award Scheme throughout its duration shall not
exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company as
of the Adoption Date.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, no share of
the Company has been purchased from the open market
(2019: nil). At 31 December 2020, no share of the
Company was held in trust by the trustee (2019: nil).
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Movements in the number of awarded shares outstanding
during the years were as follows:

Report of the Directors

EFEHS

Number of awarded shares

®BRAYE
Balance at
31 December
Fair value Balance at Lapsed 2019 and Lapsed Balance at
Date of grant per share 1 January during 1 January during 31 December
Categories of awardees (Note 1) (Note 2) 2019 the year 2020 the year 2020
#2019
128318k
BRATHE 120195 20205 120205

ERBARR RHRE 1) (W#2)  1B1RZEH RERKXY  1B1HZES RERKY  12ANAZER

Directors of the Company (note 4) 14 July 2017 RMB1 5,958,000 - 5,958,000 - 5,958,000

KRATEE (1) 017578148 NP

Notes: Bt -

1 The date of award refers to the date on which the selected 1 2B H AR E R B R BRI R M AR B F
employees agree to undertake to hold the awarded shares on MR M IR =Z R0 RE T EIFRRAR
the terms on which they are granted and agreed to be bound HEfo
by the rules of the Share Award Scheme.

2 The fair value of the awarded shares are based on the fair 2 BRRN 2 ATFEREBEENEHERZ AT EE
value at the date of grant. E ©

3 The awarded shares granted to the beneficiaries during the 3 REZE2017F12A31B L FERTRE A Z 2R
year ended 31 December 2017 would be vested in three D =#EE > SHE71,986,00002 817 > & B
tranches of 1,986,000 shares each on the vesting date on HEA D BI2A20185F ~ 20195 52202038310 o ¥
31 March 2018, 2019 and 2020 respectively. Subject to the KRR RZENE B E W E 15 E 8RB R RIEIE[
expiration of the Share Award Scheme, in the event that the IBEFEZFEREB 2 BEMN > B (E S IR
specific vesting conditions cannot be fulfilled on a particular B BEEARMEMHEER - RDIEEFEEWE T
vesting date of any given year, the entire vesting schedule A1 81 R AT (6018 11 oK B B DY AR B AR 1D 8 B SR A R 2
shall be adjourned until such conditions are met. Upon expiry BIERD
of the Share Award Scheme, any outstanding but unvested
award shares shall lapse and become returned shares.

4 During the year, Mr. Zhou Chunhua, being the Director of the 4 KAREEFEELENFANDERD RS-

Company, participated in the Share Award Scheme.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the vesting
conditions cannot be fulfilled and the vesting schedule has
been adjourned.

REE2020F 12831 BHEEE  BREKHEE
FEER O OMREIEER -
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Report of the Directors

EFOHRS

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 December 2020, substantial shareholders of
the Company and other persons (other than Directors or
chief executives of the Company) who had interests or
short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO, or
which were notified to the Company, were as follows:

Long position in the shares of the Company

Name of shareholder Capacity and nature of interest

BB M BRkiEREE

FERRRHEMA TR RO RERRRZ
EmRRE

122020128318 REEFRMERME
XVEE2REIN B ZEX A AR FHKE 5L
RIBEEFRBEHRGFEIB6HEEARTETEFE
ZBEMASER ABENEEQE > ARFE
ERFEREMAL (FRATEFHARSTEHA
BN RERBRMBEBRMDTER Z#

mEKRAEWT -

REQXTRGBZER

Approximate

percentage of

the Company'’s

Number of ordinary issued share
shares held capital
HARE

BRITRA

FRiFEERHN#E B4 BE DL

(a) Substantial
shareholders

FERR

Cosmic Riches Investments Beneficial owner 189,765,825 25.48%
Limited

BB ERRAF BanEAA

Ms. Du Weilin Interest of controlled corporation 189,765,825 25.48%

g+ REGEE RS

(b) Other persons

Hith At

China Tian Yuan Beneficial owner 60,590,482 @ 8.13%
Manganese Limited

FEXTHERRAE BanEAA

Ningxia Tianyuan Interest of controlled corporation 60,590,482 @ 8.13%
Manganese Industry
Group Co., Ltd.

BEERTHFEERE REGEE S
BRAHF

Mr. Jia Tianjiang Interest of controlled corporation 60,590,482 @ 8.13%

BRRfkE REGEE RS

Ms. Dong Jufeng Interest of spouse 60,590,482 @ 8.13%

Bt BB m
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Notes:

M 189,765,825 shares are directly held by Cosmic Riches
Investments Limited which is wholly owned by Ms. Du Weilin.
As such, Ms. Du Weilin was deemed to be interested in
the 189,765,825 shares held by Cosmic Riches Investments
Limited by virtue of Part XV of the SFO.

) 60,590,482 shares are directly held by China Tian Yuan
Manganese Limited, a company wholly-owned by Ningxia
Tianyuan Manganese Industry Group Co., Ltd. which is in turn
wholly owned by Mr. Jia Tianjiang. As such, Ningxia Tianyuan
Manganese Industry Group Co., Ltd. and Mr. Jia Tianjiang
were deemed to be interested in the 60,590,482 shares held
by China Tian Yuan Manganese Limited by virtue of Part XV
of the SFO. Ms. Dong Jufeng was deemed to be interested in
the 60,590,482 shares held by China Tian Yuan Manganese
Limited by virtue of her being the spouse of Mr. Jia Tianjiang
for the purpose of Part XV of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020,
there were no other persons (other than Directors or
chief executive of the Company) who had interests or
short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO, or
which were notified to the Company.

EQUITY-LINKED ARRANGEMENTS

Saved as disclosed in the section headed “Share Award
Scheme”, no equity-linked agreements were entered into
during the year or subsisted at the end of the year.

ARRANGEMENT TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save for the Share Award Scheme as stated above, at
no time during the year ended 31 December 2020 was
the Company or any of its subsidiaries or the holding
companies of the Company or any of its subsidiaries,
fellow subsidiaries or its parent companies a party to any
arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

Report of the Directors
EFGHRS

Mt -
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HE -
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EFEHRS

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities during the year ended 31 December 2020.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, subject to the
provisions of the relevant statutes, every Director shall
be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the
Company against all losses and liabilities which he may
sustain or incur in or about the execution of his office or
otherwise in relation thereto. The Company has arranged
appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability insurance
coverage for the directors and officers of the Company
during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of any
business of the Company were entered into during the year
or subsisted at the end of the year.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions are set out in note 38 to the
consolidated financial statements.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year under review, there were no connected
transactions and continuing connected transactions
which are required to be disclosed in accordance with
the requirements of the Listing Rules. To the best of the
Director’s knowledge, information and belief having
made all reasonable enquiries, none of the related party
transactions as disclosed in note 38 to the consolidated
financial statements constitutes a connected transaction
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Company’s remuneration policy comprises primarily
a fixed component (in the form of a base salary) and a
variable component (which includes discretionary bonus
and other merit payments), considering other factors
such as their experience, level of responsibility, individual
performance, the profit performance of the Group and
general market conditions.

The remuneration committee of the Company will meet
at least once for each year to discuss remuneration related
matters (including the remuneration of Directors) and
review the remuneration policy of the Group.

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Details of the employee retirement benefits of the
Company are set out in note 34 to the consolidated
financial statements.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group had not made any donation.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company are set out in the Corporate Governance Report
on pages 28 to 49.

CHANGE IN INFORMATION OF THE
DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Rule 13.51(B)(1) of the Listing Rules, the
change in information required to be disclosed by the
Directors are as below:

(a) Mr. Chu Kin Wang, Peleus resigned as an executive
director and a deputy chairman of Chinese People
Holdings Company Limited, a company listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, on 1
October 2020; and resigned as an independent non-
executive director of Flyke International Holdings
Ltd., a company de-listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange, on 31 December 2020. Also, he
was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of Xinming China Holdings Limited, a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, on 16 April 2021.

Report of the Directors

EFEHS

A EL SR

FAABNFMBEREZAEEERD AR
BEAFE) RAPE D (BERNBTEAKHEAt
BHRE) O TEEERERENER EEEE
BAXRBR - AEBNBARFER—RHHRR
FHMEAZE-

FRABHFMEEESEELREIT—REE U
SNmFMERSE (BEEFEWNE) KB F
EEHFMER-

SR AEF

ERNTHNEERKEBHEBHINEEMBER
FHIEE34 0

=B

FR-EERREFERERNER

TtEER
ARGV TECLESAEREN XS
BREFE28EHEF49E o

EFENEH

R EHRAIBI3 516 () BT REZE
EENBHNT :

(a) REERLEN2020F1081HEET
EZERBER2E (RBXAERLTZ
NE) HATESERA TR ULKRR2020
F1I2E31HHEIRCERERBREAE]
(BB ERMGIE) BILIERNITE
Eo b4 2021 FA4B16HE S E
AWPATEZERERLE (RBRZFTE
WREMZRE) BIUFFHITESE -

TIANLI HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED XFZREMARASE
ANNUAL REPORT 2020 &%

61



62

Report of the Directors

EFOHRS

(b) As recommended by Remuneration Committee
and approved by the Board of Directors, the
remuneration of Mr. Zhou Chunhua, being executive
director and chairman of the Board, has been
revised as a remuneration mix comprising a fixed
pay which is payable monthly of HK$250,000,
and performance pay which is payable monthly of
HK$250,000 for the period from 1 September 2020
to 31 December 2021.

PUBLIC FLOAT

To the best knowledge of the Directors and based on
information which is publicly available to the Company, at
least 25% of the Company'’s issued share capital was held
by the public as at the date of this Annual Report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2020 have been reviewed
by the audit committee of the Company. The Group's
consolidated financial statements have been audited by the
auditor of the Company, Crowe (HK) CPA Limited.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2020 have been audited by Crowe (HK) CPA
Limited, who will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Zhou Chunhua

Chairman

Hong Kong, 31 March 2021
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Independent Auditors’ Report

Crowe

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
SHAREHOLDERS OF

TIANLI HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Tianli Holdings Group Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages
75 to 224 which comprise the consolidated statements
of financial position as at 31 December 2020, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2020, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

WAZ MR S

BEEEE &H gtMEBAERAR
Crowe (HK) CPA Limited

& SRE ISRETTR SR 08
9/F Leighton Centre,

77 Leighton Road,

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
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B\ EEN RS
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£) o
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Independent Auditors’ Report

VRS IR

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA").
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with
the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgement, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters.
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Independent Auditors’ Report

NON-CONSOLIDATION OF STRUCTURED
ENTITIES AND VALUATION OF FINANCIAL
ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT
OR LOSS

Refer to notes 2(i), and 19 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The Key Audit Matter
B %EIR

WAZ MR S

FFEHEEMEEREBEATES Al
NEMBEENGE

F2REREBRERME2() K190

How the matter was addressed in our audit

HAINEZMFAREZER

The management of the Group made significant
judgements to assess whether the Group has the power
over and is exposed to significant variable returns from
structured entities, mainly the private equity funds,
to determine whether or not it has control over the
structured entities, which the Group has accounted for
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.
AL EEEESHEBUER FERLERER
) EERNIREEZTEHEAEMLR EEEE
BEMFHTERAE UREHESHEE L ERHE
BEG#E SEEERZSEBIEERARIIBRA
TESFABTNEMEE -

The valuation of these financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss is based on unobservable inputs
which involves significant management judgement.
HZERATESABTENEREENGELER
RERRBABIE > BRI REKXEEEH -

Due to the significance of these structured entities
to the Group and the uncertainties inherent in these
judgements, this is considered as a key audit matter.
AR ZEEEEERY EEBNEZ M DU BRI B FrE
BENAREN AILERRARRELER

Our procedures to assess the recognition of interests in
structured entities as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss and their valuation included the followings:
HRBEBEERERRSEARATES ABTNER
BENKREMGE HANHEREFEENTRIA

o obtaining and evaluating the management’s
assessment regarding whether or not to consolidate
the structured entities that the Group holds an

interest;
ERNLFHEEEHARNEEERERRNG S

MERRS S HARFERGE

° reviewing the terms of the relevant contracts,
considered the returns of the underlying assets, and
assessed the Group’s power on and the exposure to
the variability of returns from the structured entities;
BREBSONGRIR ZEBEAEENDR > LT
LEERHEEUERBNEOIREZEABLER
AL RNEE ;

e  testing the controls over financial instrument
valuation process;

HEMTAGERRNEEERETIHE
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Independent Auditors’ Report
BAZEER S

NON-CONSOLIDATION OF STRUCTURED FEaHEBEBRREEAFEFAERE
ENTITIES AND VALUATION OF FINANCIAL NEMEENEE @)

ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT
OR LOSS (Continued)

The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

FRELSEIH BANEZMFAREZER

o selecting samples and checked the appropriateness
of the valuation methods used and evaluated the
assumptions used in those methods;

BRI A SR P A EE R EZNBEE S » LUk sTHh
ZE R AERANRE ;

o recalculating fair value estimates and comparing the
results to the Group’s valuations and investigating
significant differences, if any; and
ENSHELAATE SERASERANMGEET
BB WHEARER WNA) E1THE ; &

o performing audit procedures on selected financial
statements items of the private equity funds.

HWBEREESHEEMBRTEEBHEZER
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Independent Auditors’ Report
BIAZEERS

IMPAIRMENT OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND M B E KRR ERE

EQUIPMENT
Refer to notes 2(f), (p)(i), and 14 to the consolidated FE2RGEEMBHRERMEE2(F) (p)(i) /140

financial statements.

How the matter was addressed in our audit

HANELMAREZEER

The Key Audit Matter
REERER

Increase in costs of production including labour and raw  Our audit procedures to assess potential impairment of property,
plant and equipment included the following:

BT ENE - BEARRFBEEERENEZEFEENLTS

materials has negatively impacted the multi-layer ceramic
chips ("MLCC") manufacturing profit of the Group.

FEAK (BEFIAEMH) ENHEEEETRAZE B!

FEBRS ((MICCQ)) MRS BELEETE-

There is a risk that the carrying value of property, plant and
equipment of the MLCC segment may not be recoverable in
full through the future cash flows to be generated.
MLCCAEZ M BB RZENRBEFTAEREZER
RRELENRERERHUC 2 E g

Management reviews the performance of the MLCC segment
at the end of each reporting period to identify if there are
any negative performance criteria which could indicate
impairment or reversal of previously made impairment. The
recoverable amount of the property, plant and equipment is
determined by management at the higher of the value in use
and the fair value less cost of disposal of these assets.
BEENSBRSHABRAMICCOB2RF URERSE
FHRUEETAENEELAFIRAEZETEBARER
EoME-BERZBEZINCEEHEEBRAEEEY
FTREEEATEREERE URBER®E) BEE -

In determining the value in use of the cash generating units
where the property, plant and equipment belongs to, a
valuation is carried out by independent professional valuer
with reference to a discounted cash flow forecast prepared by
management.

EEEME - BEARBIBZREEEBUZER
BER BUSEGLEMZ2ZTEEERREZEERN
RBAETEE.

challenging the Company's impairment assessment model
by assessing the impairment indicators identified by
management and by considering whether the discounted
cash flow forecasts supported the carrying value of the
relevant assets;

FRTHERERR ZBETRRHEIRERITIRER
EEXFKHEREEZREE HEARZREN LR

IRHEEE

evaluating the methodology used by management in the
preparation of its discounted cash flow forecast and the
valuations performed by independent professional valuers
with reference to the requirements of the prevailing
accounting standards;
SERTEAEARETEEREETREREMINRE
RIS ERAN A Z R B EXEEMAELNGEE

comparing the most significant inputs used in the
discounted cash flow forecasts, including future revenue
growth rates, future margins and future costs, with
the historical performance of the cash generating unit,
budgets approved by management and agreements signed
subsequent to the reporting date;
RRERITFEBARERZREEZH AR (BIFERK
W RE SRR BRARAE) BREELEMZH
TRFE BEERECHEERRSBRERT 2 HEE
TSR ;
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VRS IR

IMPAIRMENT OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT (Continued)

The Key Audit Matter
FREZEIR

M BERRERE @

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BANERMAREZEER

In preparing the discounted cash flow forecasts, key inputs,
including future revenue growth rates, future margins and
future costs of the cash generating unit are determined by
management taking into consideration factors which include
changes in product mix and changes in expected customers
numbers, all of which involve the exercise of significant
management judgement.

ERHERERITRBAE  JTAFREARE (81
R EEBURRRW IS RT  RRFE R AR
) PHEEBELERZEREZREE -AREZEHA
RERIRTEEREERYHNERESETR
REAEF#E -

We identified the assessment for impairment of property,
plant and equipment as a key audit matter because
identifying impairment indicators and determining the
level of impairment, if any, involves a significant degree of
management judgement, particularly in forecasting future
cash flows and estimating the recoverable amounts of these
assets, both of which are inherently uncertain and could be
subject to management bias.

RPIREYE BB MR ERERNF LI SREEZ
F8 REEHBENRREEREKT WA) %
REXEENEERHE FHERARKRREERE
M fERFEEZAIREIZER  EMARS EE TR
M B EEENRRETZE -
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assessing the discount rates used in the discounted cash
flow forecasts by benchmarking against other similar
companies;
BBEEMB LA BT ER STEIRE R ERTERIPI A
ZIHEK;

obtaining sensitivity analysis of the significant inputs,
including future revenue growth rates, future margins and
the discount rates used in the cash flow forecasts prepared
by management and considering the resulting impact
on the recoverable amount and whether there were any
indicators of management bias; and

ENEEHAYE BEEEETRERERERAA
R A Z KRR IE R R RARFBRITRE) 09§
REDH HEBLEHRESB YR EREEFEE
BEERENIR; &

evaluating the experience, competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the independent professional valuer engaged
by management to carry out the valuations of property,
plant and equipment and to understand the methodologies
adopted and key inputs used in the valuation of property,
plant and equipment.
AEEEEMEREURYE  BE KR EETHERNE
VEXHEMNERE BB - BORTELE Uk THE
ME - -BERRBGLEBERARANG ERAERN
R E A BUE °



VALUATION OF INVENTORIES

Independent Auditors’ Report
BIAZEERS

FEE

Refer to notes 2(r) and 23 to the consolidated financial LSRG AEBEHRERMNEE2(r)&23 0

statements.

The Key Audit Matter
FEEZER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BANERMAREZEER

We identified the valuation of inventories as a key audit
matter due to the significance of the balance to the
consolidated financial statements as a whole and the
judgement associated with the determination of write-down
of inventories.

EMREEAEINABRERER RARGHRHEGRSRM
BRRERZEEN KEETEFE A EMZ FI -

As disclosed in note 23 to the consolidated financial
statements, the carrying amount of inventories is
RMB178,337,000 as at 31 December 2020.
HMAEMBRRMT23MMIRE > FEREER 2020512
B318% AK#178,337,0007T

In estimating the amount of write-down of inventories,
management reviews the net realisable value of inventories
periodically with reference to the condition of the inventories,
historical and current sales information, as well as the ageing
of inventories to identify slow-moving items to ascertain the
amount of write-down of inventories.
RibstZEE R TR BEEES2EFEN N - BEKLE
BHEERUREEREHFEN T B FEETR
M nFHEE R EFE RS-

In addition, the management carries out a review of its
inventories on a product-by-product basis with reference to
subsequent sales and usage, latest selling prices and current
market condition.

s EEEESEHRBERAR ?%ﬁ’%%&iﬁ
Thhk SRBFEEREENHFSETES

Our procedures in relation to evaluating the reasonableness of the
valuation of inventories included:

HAFHEFEAEGEENEFEEUTIE

o understanding the inventory allowance policy of the
Group in the identification of slow-moving inventories and
measurement of the write-down of inventories;

T \$@ﬁ€u‘é‘k5u/mﬁﬂ¥ SEFERCHAENES
BHEBR

. assessing whether the inventory allowance at the end of the
reporting period was calculated in @ manner consistent with
the Group's inventory write-down policy;
HMERBREPRNFEREEOSREEERESRLH
R—BNHAFE

. discussing with management and assessing the basis of
management’s estimations of subsequent selling price,
costs to completion and costs necessary to make the sale;
HEEENRLTHEEEMtEBRER THALRK
WESHERARMEE
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Independent Auditors’ Report

VRS IR

VALUATION OF INVENTORIES (Continued)

The Key Audit Matter
MREZEER

FELEGE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BANERMAEEZER

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND AUDITOR'S REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included
in the annual report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

TIANLI HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED XFZEREMERAE
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testing inventory ageing analysis, on a sample basis, to the
goods receipt documents and assessing the accuracy of
the base data used to determine the allowance/write down
and re-performing the allowance/write down calculation to
check arithmetic accuracy; and

AR A BB ENFEERE D LT EARE
TEE/RTHNERBENERY URBMETERE
SRS EURREEERE ; &

assessing the reasonableness of the estimation of the net
realisable value of inventories with reference to usage and
sales of inventories subsequent to the end of the reporting
period and latest selling prices, on a sample basis.
SEREPAEBEFENRRLBEEURRINER  #k
MEEER SRR EANSE] -

AR MR RMEZLBETR S UM ER

ESRAFHMBEN HMBEHQEFERST
BMER > BFBERS M B R R A% R
&£ o

APAHGEEVBERENERFIREEME
o MR AHZFEMERZEREAEZADN

fREE AT & ©

EERMANGEaMBRERNEZ HMANSHE
ERBHMEMN  FLHBED EEAMER
ERAGEVBERRAKXMEZTZBEERFR
THRNBRAEEEAT—BRAEMUFEFEE
REERRAAIB I

ERFEMEATHIF URZMAIZLSEME
HETEAERRL RAMAEEREZFE-
EERE RMRBEERMRS -



Independent Auditors’ Report

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with IFRSs issued
by IASB and the disclosure requirements of Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

WAZ MR S

EEMGEMBRRAKENTE

EADEFAEEREERSHARELZES
PR R B PR B B RS E R R B A QB R BY
REEERENAEBEMPENGEGMBFRE I
HERAABEEUHTBRRNBRAEFER
REFHERMENNERERRILTF N
REEFRE S

ERUGCU BRI EFE5TE 85
ERFEEENEN TEBERAB R TIRERR
BEEARANER UKREARBEER G
ER-BRIFEFARR SEEBEUFLE
OB EAMBEENERTR-

BERZEEMEERETES
BREBENSE-

EEENH

RHBMMEZEEMBRRARKEZERE

RPNEREHG M BRREEES AR
£ B 7S HR 5T SN $8 5R T B B A9 B A 85 5R Rt BY
SeERS THRAGRERMAERNZEBEMEK
HoAREEM BT (FRER) 2% Kit
ZHATERAREMBR KPR SHY
RE HENHMALEETHRKEEZREE-

EEREBESNKFHRE  EFERERRSE
AESFERETHER EE —EXREZRRL
FHERMBEZER BRI UHMFFHEER
SIE- MRS ERHCMEBIERER A
TERAOVMBREAEAERBZSIR VB
R PR AF H B AL R E 0 BB R $E SR PR A B) 4R
RB/EKR-
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Independent Auditors’ Report
BAZEER S

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we
exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

TIANLI HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED XFZEREMERAE
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Independent Auditors’ Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the group to express an opinion
on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence and communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence and, where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

WAZ MR S

*(2%%Eﬁ/‘ﬁ%*%%éﬂﬁ%%ﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁd%ZEEE

s FEGRGMBRRNERINKRSA G
BHNAT BREKRE UREEHMHRE
EETPERMRBBAIZMER-

s HMEEBRNEBEERENEFTIH2MBAEH
ERARBEZEZRE UEHKS
MBEBREXRBRR - AMEEEEESHE
ZRBEA-BEENMAT RMEHEZE
Hage

fREMEREIN RMEEREEGBE T 53
WEZEE KEZHF EXBEZERS G
EHRMAEEZTHNEABEFRNEFTEX
AR ©

RPERNBEZZESREBR RARMERF
BARBIENAERERESENR I M
BEBUECEMEISGRERMBILMY
MAFERGRNEMEE AREBBANER
T BEREE M REA 1T B SR RV 5 45
ifilks
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Independent Auditors’ Report
BAZEER S

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit
Committee, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

Crowe (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 31 March 2021

Fong Yat Sing, Cyrus
Practising Certificate Number PO7150
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
melRmkEMEERNER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & ZE2020F 128331 HIEEE

2020 2019
20205 20194
Notes RMB’'000 RMB’000
s ARBFRT AR®TT
Revenue WA 6 441,570 446,236
Cost of sales SHE R A (290,784) (381,920)
Gross profit EF 150,786 64,316
Other income Bz 7 25,920 24,262
Selling and distribution costs 5 & e 0 tH A A (15,916) (12,536)
Administrative expenses THER (110,990) (98,351)
Other expenses HMEx - (933)
Research and development costs BT 2% R B 25 BY 2 8(c) (40,482) (67,622)
Profit/(loss) from operations REEIEN S (5518) 9,318 (90,864)
Finance costs E=Y N 8(a) (21,354) (32,083)
Share of profit/(loss) of an associate FE(L— R AT
wmAl (B518) 5,034 (4,620)
Loss before taxation PRI ARS8 8 (7,002) (127,567)
Income tax credit TSRk s 9(a) 1,482 1,727
Loss for the year FEEHE (5.520) (125,840)
Other comprehensive income for FEHMEEUE
the year, net of income tax BRFRISIA
ltems that will not be reclassified to profit A EEHFEEER
or loss: MIEE :
Financial assets at fair value through BAEESAHEMEZE
other comprehensive income WENERMEE
("FVOCI") — net movement in fair — RN FEREEEFRE
value reserve (non-recycling) (R E) 15,836 10,237
ltems that may be reclassified HEBEENRHEEBG
subsequently to profit or loss: MIEE :
Share of other comprehensive income of FEIEEE AR HMEm|
associate, net of related income tax Wz O BRAEREPT 1213 1,030 -
Exchange differences on translation of MEBINEFBIE R EXE
foreign operations (1,612) 377
Other comprehensive income for the FEHMEEURE
year, net of income tax NBRFRISIA 15,254 10,614
Total comprehensive income/(loss) FEZ2EE (B518) 4858
for the year, net of income tax ERFAEA 9,734 (115,226)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
maiRmkEMEERNER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZE2020F 12831 H LEFE

2020 2019
20205 20194
Notes RMB’'000 RMB’000
s ARBFRT ARETT
Loss for the year attributable to: UTFALEGEEE
548 :
Owners of the Company KATEB A (5,767) (125,976)
Non-controlling interests FEIERGHE S 247 136
(5,520) (125,840)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for MUTATELEERHE
the year attributable to: Wk, (B548) 4B%E -
Owners of the Company ViN/NESTEZZ =N 2,417 (120,600)
Non-controlling interests FEERGHE R 7,317 5,374
9,734 (115,226)
RMB cents RMB cents
AR®ES ARED
Loss per share SREE
Basic and diluted BEARRREE 13 (0.8) (16.9)

The notes on pages 83 to 224 form part of these financial

statements.

TIANLI HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED XFZEREMERAE
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

R MFEIRR

At 31 December 2020 722020512831H

2020 2019
20205 20194
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
isE ARBTFRT AEETT
Non-current assets JERBEE
Property, plant and equipment EN Y 14 398,279 250,520
Investment property KREME 15 21,553 22,234
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, WL BB 2 ~ R PSS e B P A
plant and equipment and other non- e kHEMIERE
current rental deposit %H%?ﬁc% 25 28,661 145,720
Interest in an associate —EEEABE 2w 17 17,910 12,738
Financial assets at FVOCI ?Lt(’,&ilzfﬁ SFAEMEEWE
RS E 18 25,893 11,353
Financial assets at fair value through profit ~ #Z/AFEst A=A
or loss (“FVPL") TRBEE 19 369,519 383,269
Finance lease receivable FEW R B ERIE 20 - 12,437
Other intangible assets HihEAEE 21 1,304 1,568
Deferred tax assets RERBEEE 32(@a) 23,946 25,807
Total non-current assets JERENE ELE 887,065 865,646
Current assets MENEE
Inventories 75 23 178,337 115,556
Accounts and bills receivables e U R IE B FE I 4% 24 185,236 127,457
Finance lease receivable FE N R S FH E I8 20 - 7,508
Prepayments, deposits and TR ARIE s R EAM
other receivables FE W R I8 25 53,933 27,224
Cash and bank balances RE R IBITAEER 26 60,298 175,257
Total current assets MBEERE 477,804 453,002

TIANLI HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED XFiZREMARAR 77
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

R e MESIARR

At 31 December 2020 22020512H31H

2020 2019
20204 20194
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
zx AR®FT ARETT
Current liabilities mENAaE
Trade and bills payables FE B Z R B 248 27 71,570 44,550
Deferred income, accruals and other REWAESHER K
payables HAERIE 28 82,437 77,360
Lease liabilities HEAE 29 14,084 10,013
Tax payable FES TR 18 10,395 13,320
Bank and other loans RITREMER 31 220,136 200,742
Total current liabilities mENBEEE 398,622 345,985
Net current assets MBEEEE 79,182 107,017
Total assets less current liabilities BEEMERTRESEE 966,247 972,663
Non-current liabilities ERHEE
Lease liabilities HE&R 29 23,794 29,137
Deferred income 4 ST A 30 15,352 17,597
Deferred tax liabilities RERIEEaE 32(b) 40,569 46,136
Total non-current liabilities ERBEGEEE 79,715 92,870
Net assets EEFE 886,532 879,793
Capital and reserves BARMEE
Share capital N 36(a) 6,637 6,637
Reserves B 864,046 861,251
Total equity attributable to owners of ZAQTHEE AELLEEZ
the Company 870,683 867,888
Non-controlling interests JESTERG e 15,849 11,905
Total equity et 886,532 879,793

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of

Directors on 31 March 2021.

20213831 HEEESHET IRETIH -

Zhou Chunhua Pan Tong
BEE &R
Director Director

BF =

The notes on pages 83 to 224 form part of these financial FRIEEFE224EMN T BRI FEN B RRK

statements. B—2 5 o
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
iR E*EE?&EJ‘I%

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & ZE2020F 128331 HIEEE

Attributable to owners of the Company

FARREARKER
Share Exchange Fair value Non-
Share premium  Contributed ~ Shareaward  fluctuation Statutory ~ reserve (non- Retained controlling Total
capital account surplus reserve reserve reserve recycling) eamings Total interests equity
i Ex AT{aRfE

kE  RivEER B8R REARE REfE el (FURE) #EER BE  ERER B
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEBTR  ARBTR ARKTR  ARKTR  ARWTR  ARRTR  ARRTR  ARRTR  ARETR  ARETR  ARKTR

t 1 January 2019

Loss for the year

Exchange differences arising on translation of
foreign operations

Financial assets at FVOCI - net movement in fair
value reserve

201951818 6,637 491518 201,761 3062 1516 48314 (9,135) 3347 987,020 6,406 993,426
EEFE - - - - - - - (125,976) (125,976) 13 (125,840)
BEEMEBANERER

- - - - 209 - 3) - 18 191 37

RATES AL ARG
THEE-ATERGEES

B8 - - - - - - 5190 - 5190 5,047 10237
Total comprehensive (loss)income for the year ~ £E27E (B1) /U=EE - - - - 209 - 5167 (125,976) (120,600) 5374 (115,226)
Recogition of equity-settled share-based RNREEET KR
payment expenses under share award scheme  SEMRHARRZ 38R
(note 33(a)) (H533(0) = = = 1,535 - - - - 1,535 - 1,535
Change in ownership interests in a subsidiary A —FIKBAT 2 AR RS
without a change of control 8 (DAL ERIE) = = = = (67) = = = (67) 125 58
Transfer L - - - - - 39,805 - (39,803) - - -
At 31 December 2019 20195128318 6,637 491,518 201,761 4597 1,658 88,119 (3,968) 71,566 867,888 11,905 879,793
At 31 December 2019and 1 January 2020 120195128318 K
2000£1818 6,637 491518 201,761 4597 1,658 88,119 (3968) 77,566 867,888 11,905 879,193
Loss for the year FEFE S = = = = = = (5767) (5767) U1 (5.520)
Exchange differences arising on translation of ~ EEINERNER ZB
foreign operations - - - - (731) - 87) - 818 (794) (1612)
Share of other comprehensive income of EEREATENZENS 1
associte, net of related income tax Gl - - - - 973 - - - 973 57 1,030
Financial assets at FVOCI - net movement BATEAHMEENEN

in fair value reserve

2530 - - - - - - 8,029 - 8,029 7807 15836

Total comprehensive incomefloss) for the year ~ EE2EWE/ (5i8) B8 - - - - 1) - 7942 (5,767) 2417 7317 9,734
Dividends deciared by subsidiares to non- K& TWH’"M&M T

controling interests RS - - - - - - - - - (3373) (3373)
Recognition of equity-ettled share-based B RARE B TR R

payment expenses under share award scheme  £EELIRMARRZ

(note 33(@) AR (E3306) - - - 378 - - - - 378 - 378
At 31 December 2020 120205128318 6,637 491,518 201,761 4975 1,900 88,119 3974 71,79 870,683 15,849 886,532
The notes on pages 83 to 224 form part of these financial FIEEF 224NN BANILLFTHFRE
statements. B—E 57 e
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

n\7|-\ iﬁ%/}ll%%

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZE2020F 12831 H LEFE

2020 2019
20205 20195
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000
B 5E ARBFT ARET T
Operating activities KEES
Loss before taxation: PRI AIRSIE (7,002) (127,567)
Adjustments for: KRR
Finance costs A& R 8(a) 21,354 32,083
Interest income A E U A 7 (246) (5,340)
Gain on lease modification HEEE W (1,613) -
Depreciation e 8(c) 59,975 48,216
Amortisation of other intangible assets Htim i & E 8(c) 701 404
Write-down of inventories FERE 8(c) 18,743 19,053
Reversal of write-down of inventories FERCEE 8(c) (31,021) (6,198)
Reversal of impairment loss of FEWRIE B B k5185 0]
accounts receivables (5,775) (599)
Impairment loss of accounts receivables FEWERIE 2 R (B 1E 457 1,532
Release of government grants as income B REN R TERIRA 7 (2,748) (2,861)
Loss on disposal of property, HEYE BB RSB ZEE
plant and equipment 8() 985 994
Loss on deregistration of a subsidiary BUHsT —EM B A s 2 8 - 22
Net gain from financial assets at FVPL BATES BTN
TREENT RS 6 (35,184) (19,372)
Share of (profit)/loss of an associate FEE li—P/NE
wH) S EeiE (5,034) 4,620
Equity-settled share-based payment expenses Hﬂ&m BURMNAERZ
NENEE3 8(b) 378 1,535
13,970 (53,478)
Changes in working capital SEEEEY
(Increase)/decrease in inventories Z& 6gm R (50,503) 67,670
(Increase)/decrease in accounts and bills FEWEIE K R E 5
receivables (gm r (52,913) 148,511
Decrease/(increase) in fund investment EERERLD/ (8M) 23,343 (820)
Decrease in prepayments, deposits and BORENRZER
other receivables Hth e Wz g 32,750 23,788
Decrease/(increase) in finance lease receivable Rt SR ETIE
A () 19,945 (19,945)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and bills payables B ZERF K
FETERHRIZI, (AL 27,020 (100,365)
Increase/(decrease) in deferred income, FEWA B ERK
accruals and other payables HAE B, Git2L) 5,630 (63,976)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
FEaRERER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & ZE2020F 128331 HIEEE

2020 2019
2020 2019
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B sE ARBFT ARET T
Cash generated from operations RETHESX RS 19,242 1,385
Interest received BIF 2 246 5,340
Hong Kong tax paid BNEERIE (3,950) -
People’s Republic of China (“PRC") tax paid B REARILME (THE))
18 (280) (48,559)
Net cash generated from/(used in) mEEBEE FRA) 2
operating activities REFE 15,258 (41,834)
Investing activities BREEH
Cash receipts from dividend income RKEREWAZRERE 6,921 13,154
Deposit paid for acquisition of property, WEEI B &
plant and equipment REFIRE (25,709) (140,867)
Payment for purchase of property, BEYXE BRERZEZAM
plant and equipment (113,239) (37,000)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and HEME - -BERK
equipment HEERIA - 46
Net cash outflow on disposal of subsidiaries HERBAT ZFRERE 40 (240) =
Payment for purchase of other intangible assets ~ BE B HMER B E 2 (7 21 (437) (1,637)
Payment for acquisition of financial assets W R AT EF ABEN
at FVPL — unlisted debt instruments TRBEZNR
—FEREHIA - (672,419)
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets HERAFEFABEN
at FVPL - unlisted debt instruments TRBEEMSMRIE
—JFEBEHIA - 782,949
Proceeds from disposal of interest in HER—HBEATER L
an associate Frigaia - 8,644
Net cash used in investing activities KREZBMAZRE R (132,704) (47,130)
Financing activities REEE
Dividends declared by subsidiaries to non- M A Bl IFIE I Bk
controlling interests HRE (3,373) =
Capital element of lease paid ENHEEZERED (11,864) (9,329)
Interest element of lease paid ENHEEZF B (2,301) (3,115)
Proceeds from new bank loans MERITERERIE 8,000 -
Proceeds from new other loans HMmEMPETRIE 3,019 414,031
Repayment of bond payable BERMNES - (357,308)
Repayment of other loans BIEREMEDR - (225,082)
Interest paid BAFHE (150) (56,723)
Decrease in pledged bank deposits with original £ 88 A BF/R 237 B 838318 B
maturity of over three months when acquired Z BIRIRIRITE R D - 11,144
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

n\7|-\ iﬁ%/}ll%%

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZE2020F 12831 H LEFE

2020 2019

2020 20195

RMB’000 RMB'000

AREBFTRT ARETR

Net cash used in financing activities MEESMAZRERE (6,669) (226,382)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents IRERFEEBYZ R IFEE (124,115) (315,346)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January MB1BZRERREEEN 175,257 490,467
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net SMEEXRES) 22 E 558 9,156 136
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December #12831BZRERIFE L EY 60,298 175,257

The notes on pages 83 to 224 form part of these financial %83 E =
statements. B —E73 e
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Notes to the Financial Statements

AA 5 e R MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & ZE2020F 128331 HIEEE

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

Tianli Holdings Group Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 6 March 2007
as an exempted company with limited liability under
the Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised). The Company’s registered office
address is the office of Conyers Trust Company (Cayman)
Limited, Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, PO. Box 2681,
Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands, and the head
office and the principal place of business of the Company
in Hong Kong is located at Unit 907-909, 9/F., Three Pacific
Place, 1 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of the subsidiaries of the
Company are set out in note 39.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a) Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (”IFRSs”) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (the “IASB”) and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
The consolidated financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. Significant accounting policies adopted by the
Group are disclosed below.

The IASB has issued certain new and revised IFRSs which
are first effective or available for early adoption for the
current accounting period of the Group. Note 3 provides
information on any changes in accounting policies resulting
from the initial application of these developments to the
extent that they are relevant to the Group for the current
and prior accounting periods reflected in the consolidated
financial statements.

1. —/iRER

AAEREBRBRAB (TRKRXF) 1R20074F
3SE6EHEHEHERBERAEHEZAF22E
RNEE (1961 FFIFER» KEHF RLKIES])
AMRILAEREERAS  cARQBZFM
M E R A Conyers Trust Company (Cayman)
Limited Z ## S & > Ak A Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands> iz
NBEIZHBBREERDTATES EFMBB AR
EAERABRIFALTES = FE918907-
909F o

KRB ZITEEXZBRREER - RTANBE LR
Bl T BEBHBHNMEE3

2. EFEEHEE
a) SR EH

HEVMBREAERBEHABEREARERZE S
(THREFAREZET)) BHZEKRYE
BREEQ (TERVBHRESERN) REBRF
FOAZKRBREERR - REHWBEBRRTEEST
(BEBMEXRSMAERRAAZ S LHRA) Z
BRARBRX -FEBEFMRABZEIEGSHHR
BERTXHE-

BEREARELZECGEEME T REE
STERMBREER  BEENBHEREAERR
ERESHBERENI T HERRANE
Aot ERERAESEXANMELE G
HREFMEHHER  HEAFTHEEAERRNR
EMBRERPFARMRNER ARBTG5t HAM
el
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Notes to the Financial Statements

FAFsERAR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZE2020F 12831 H LEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2020 comprise the Company and its
subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”) and the
Group's interest in an associate.

ltems included in the financial statements of each entity in
the Group are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). These financial statements are
presented in Renminbi (“RMB”) which is the Company’s
functional currency and the Group’s presentation currency,
and all value are rounded to the nearest thousand RMB
except where otherwise indicated.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except that
the following assets and liabilities are stated at their fair
value as explained in the accounting policies:

- financial assets at FVPL (see note 2(i)); and

- financial assets at FVOCI (see note 2(i)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
IFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies
and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances,
the results of which form the basis of making the
judgements about carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

TIANLI HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED XFZEREMERAE
ANNUAL REPORT 2020 &%

2. FEEFHE (B

b) MBHRRZEREE

B E2020F12B31HLEFEZGREMBRE
BREARDREMNBRAE BHIAER)) > XU
REEBRBEAT 2 B o

AERETRERYHFRRANEESUE
REEMAMNEIELBRENEGR (T8
EBNFAE-ZFMBEREUAARE (AR
K125 MARBEREARININEGENA
EEMNESER BRIFZAFZH TRIFFA
KEOANBERBAZARE T T

FUTEERBEZAERFTEZS (BERFE
HINGHEBR) I MBREZRBRIGUE
EHREEEERSAEREE

— RBRATESFAEmzNEREE (RWE
2(i)) 5 &

— BAFTEFAEMEERENERIEE
(RBHEsE2())

RERBERVYBZREENREMBERRTEE
EJE R H B~ b5t R Rk 0 B R F T~ {55t
RBREXEHRNEANBEE BB WA
RAXHNZ/REEE ARG RBEBRRKRRKER
BUEKBRNEERABR TR A ENZE
HMARFL  HERBA T EERRA MR
KERSNNEEH S RREEFLF EB
BER -BRERIBHINBRME



Notes to the Financial Statements

AA 5 e R MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & ZE2020F 128331 HIEEE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(Continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of IFRSs that have a significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainly are
discussed in note 4.

Q) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interest

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. When assessing whether the Group has
power, only substantive rights (held by the Group and other
parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows and any
unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised
gains but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those interests
that meets the definition of a financial liability.

2. FEEFHEEK (B

b) MBERRZEREE (@)

ERGSRAARRERFECEREER
el EEH AT BIEEE  MAEITRERXE
ERERET NS HRE > @S EZ B AE
0 BUMESTHER MR KN ESt BN E R
2 R 7 1F A RE ST B B 8 e oK 2K HA fi e

=]
e ©

4T mEEEMBRARYBERR ARG
THRENZETERREEAFZENRRMYFH
¥R & 2 B P 1F 2 ) o

o MEBARRIFZERER

MBARERAEEEF 2 ER HWAEE
PEB2REABREEMSE A &0 HEF
UkERENHEREREEIMEERRHD
BoRAEBRBHEERERNE - RFGEEEER
ERERRIK EZZEEEREN (BEEHE
REMEFTHEAR) °

RNBARZKEBERRAGE R EEER
EREALEEHAGEMBTRR -EBAME
FRERFEEREREERRNERZEEZE

- EERNERZEEZRERBEMRA
IR D N R RS R R AER > BRI E S
BRI HIBRERE-

FEREDIELIFAASEENBEREGEN
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Notes to the Financial Statements

FAFsERAR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZE2020F 12831 H LEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interest
(Continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately
from equity attributable to the owners of the Company.
Non-controlling interests in the results of the Group are
presented on the face of the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
as an allocation of the total profit or loss and total
comprehensive income or loss for the year between non-
controlling interests and the owners of the Company.
Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance. Loans from holders of non-
controlling interests and other contractual obligations
towards these holders are presented as financial liabilities in
the consolidated statement of financial position.

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made to
the amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests
within consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative
interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no
gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former subsidiary
at the date when control is lost is recognised at fair value
and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset or, when appropriate, the
cost on initial recognition of an investment in an associate.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
loss (see note 2(p)), unless the investment is classified
as held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is
classified as held for sale).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

AA 5 e R MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & ZE2020F 128331 HIEEE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

d) Associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group has significant
influence, but not control or joint control, over its
management, including participation in the financial and
operating policy decisions.

An investment in an associate is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements under the equity method,
unless it is classified as held for sale (or included in a
disposal group that is classified as held for sale). Under
the equity method, the investment is initially recorded at
cost, adjusted for any excess of the Group's share of the
acquisition-date fair values of the investee's identifiable
net assets over the cost of the investment. The cost of the
investment includes purchase price, other costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of the investment, and any
direct investment into the associate that forms part of
the investment. Thereafter, the investment is adjusted for
the post acquisition change in the Group’s share of the
investee’s net assets and any impairment loss relating to
the investment. At each reporting date, the Group assesses
whether there is any objective evidence that the investment
is impaired. Any acquisition-date excess over cost, the
Group's share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of
the investees and any impairment losses for the year are
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
whereas the Group's share of the post-acquisition post-
tax items of the investees’ other comprehensive income is
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income.

When the Group's share of losses exceeds its interest in
the associate, the Group's interest is reduced to nil and
recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the investee.
For this purpose, the Group’s interest is the carrying
amount of the investment under the equity method,
together with the Group’s any other long-term interests
that in substance form part of the Group's net investment
in the associate.

2. FEEFHEEK (B

d HK=EQ8
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Notes to the Financial Statements

FAFsERAR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZE2020F 12831 H LEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

d) Associates (Continued)

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associate are eliminated to
the extent of the Group’s interest in the investee, except
where unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred, in which case they are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

If an investment in a joint venture becomes an investment
in an associate or vice versa, the retained interest is not
remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be
accounted for under the equity method.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have joint
control over a joint venture or significant influence over
an associate, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire
interest in that investee, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that
former investee at the date when joint control or significant
influence is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount
is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a
financial asset.

e) Acquisition of a subsidiary not constituting a
business

When the Group acquires a group of assets and liabilities
that do not constitute a business, the Group identifies and
recognises the individual identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed by allocating the purchase price first
to financial assets/financial liabilities at the respective fair
values, the remaining balance of the purchase price is then
allocated to the other identifiable assets/liabilities on the
basis of their relative fair values at the date of purchase.
Such a transaction does not give rise to goodwill or bargain
purchase gain.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

AA 5 e R MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & ZE2020F 128331 HIEEE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

f) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any accumulated impairment losses (see note 2(p)).
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss
in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where
the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for
a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount
of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of
property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced
at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual
assets with specific useful lives and depreciation.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment
to its estimated residual value over its estimated useful life.
The principal estimated useful lives and estimated residual
values used for this purpose are as follows:

2. FEEFHEEK (B

) HE-BERRE

FERIRIIN - ME -BERKRBDHEREE
BERFFERERARSBEBREIR (R
H2(p))  ME-BEARRBEERTEBEH
BEEKSZEEEERRERRZEFRK
MRMEFRESE 2 BERBE A -

ME - -BEARRBEEBERACRRBAEEZ
MERGRESAX—REEEZHBRRE
miAbRe T GRS E  RERERFZAIRN
EEROEBXR CREERLT -HYE -ME
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ZERIAHBERENRFRRFTEZBRE
Z o
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BFEHUBREMBEEMNAEZEH MG ERE
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Estimated

Estimated useful lives residual values

5t A st ER{E

Buildings 40 years or over the remaining term of 10%
¥ the lease, if shorter
A0FHHEEFIERFH UBEERE)

Leasehold improvements 3 years or over the remaining term of 0%
MHEMEEE the lease, if shorter
3FERHERGHFHR UBEERE)

Plant and machinery 5-10 years 10%
B P e 1% 23 5-10£

Office and other equipment 3-10 years 0%-10%
WA R 2 AtEE 3-106

Motor vehicles 4-10 years 0%-10%
AE 4-10%
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Notes to the Financial Statements

FAFsERAR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZE2020F 12831 H LEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

f) Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and
the depreciation method are reviewed and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at the end of each reporting period.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in the profit or loss in the period the
asset is derecognised is the difference between the net sale
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents plant and equipment
under construction, which is stated at cost less any
impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises
the direct costs of construction during the period of
construction. Construction in progress is reclassified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment
when completed and ready for its intended use.

9) Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are
owned or held under a leasehold interest (see note 2(0))
to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation.
Such properties are initially measured at cost, including
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are stated at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Depreciation is calculated on the
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of 40
years.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

AA 5 e R MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & ZE2020F 128331 HIEEE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

g) Investment properties (Continued)

Any gains or losses from the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the profit or loss.
Rental income from investment properties is accounted for
as described in note 2(w)(iii).

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-
occupied properties, the deemed cost of a property for
subsequent accounting is its carrying amount at the date of
change in use. If a property occupied by the Group as an
owner-occupied property becomes an investment property,
the Group accounts for such property in accordance with
the policy stated under “Property, plant and equipment” up
to the date of change in use.

h) Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in
the Group's statement of financial position when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets or financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

FAFsERAR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZE2020F 12831 H LEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

i) Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

All recognised financial assets are measured subsequently
in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value,
depending on the classification of the financial assets.

Classification of financial assets

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are
measured subsequently at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are
measured subsequently at FVOCI:

o the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling the financial
assets; and

o the contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

TIANLI HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED XFZEREMERAE
ANNUAL REPORT 2020 &%

2. FEEFHE (B

i) TREE

FFEUNERATAEENEREERRSBA
ERDRBOSESDB - UBR A ANEEBRANE
RATHEARENREARMNEEN R

BEEEEB-

FFEERITMEEHBRRZBREBHRE
HRATEFAE BFETHEENDEME °

EHMEENTE
MEUTHRANES T RERRE R
= .

DR ENRERERENMEB LR
BEENKEREATHANEREE , &

. THEENGNRRNIEERRELEN
REREERINEIERKREELTEE
HF S o

HETIHRANEFIRAERRATES A
HthemElmstE :

. DR ENREREREETHEER
BENMBEEENKEREA THAENE
MEE, &

. THEENGNRRNIEERRELEN
REREERINEETRAEETEHE
AR S o



Notes to the Financial Statements

AA 5 e R MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & ZE2020F 128331 HIEEE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

i) Financial assets (Continued)
Classification of financial assets (Continued)

By default, all other financial assets are measured
subsequently at FVPL.

Despite the foregoing, the Group may make the following
irrevocable election/designation at initial recognition of a
financial asset:

o the Group may irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in fair value of an equity
investment in other comprehensive income if certain
criteria are met (see (iii) below); and

o the Group may irrevocably designate a debt
investment that meets the amortised cost or FVOCI
criteria as measured at FVPL if doing so eliminates
or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch (see
(iv) below).

() Amortised cost and effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period.

For financial assets other than purchased or originated
credit-impaired financial assets (that is, assets that are
credit-impaired on initial recognition), the effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
excluding expected credit losses (“ECL"), through the
expected life of the debt instrument or, where appropriate,
a shorter period, to the gross carrying amount of the
debt instrument on initial recognition. For purchased or
originated credit-impaired financial assets, a credit-adjusted
effective interest rate is calculated by discounting the
estimated future cash flows, including ECL to the amortised
cost of the debt instrument on initial recognition.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

FAFsERAR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZE2020F 12831 H LEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

i) Financial assets (Continued)
Classification of financial assets (Continued)

() Amortised cost and effective interest method
(Continued)

The amortised cost of a financial asset is the amount at
which the financial asset is measured at initial recognition
minus the principal repayments, plus the cumulative
amortisation using the effective interest method of any
difference between that initial amount and the maturity
amount, adjusted for any loss allowance. The gross carrying
amount of a financial asset is the amortised cost of a
financial asset before adjusting for any loss allowance.

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for debt instruments measured subsequently at
amortised cost and at FVOCI. For financial assets other than
purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets,
interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset, except for financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired (see below). For financial assets
that have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset. If, in
subsequent reporting periods, the credit risk on the credit-
impaired financial instrument improves so that the financial
asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest income is
recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the
gross carrying amount of the financial asset.

For purchased or originated credit-impaired financial
assets, the Group recognises interest income by applying
the credit-adjusted effective interest rate to the amortised
cost of the financial asset from initial recognition. The
calculation does not revert to the gross basis even if the
credit risk of the financial asset subsequently improves so
that the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired.

Interest income is recognised in profit or loss and is
included in the “other income — interest income” line item
(note 7).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

AA 5 e R MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & ZE2020F 128331 HIEEE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

i) Financial assets (Continued)
Classification of financial assets (Continued)

(i) Equity instruments designated at FVOC/

On initial recognition, the Group may make an irrevocable
election (on an instrument-by-instrument basis) to
designate investments in equity instruments at FVOCI.
Designation at FVOCI is not permitted if the equity
investment is held for trading or if it is contingent
consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business
combination.

A financial asset is held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling it in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has evidence of a recent
actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative (except for a derivative that is a
financial guarantee contract or a designated and
effective hedging instrument).

Investments in equity instruments at FVOCI are initially
measured at fair value plus transaction costs. Subsequently,
they are measured at fair value with gains and losses
arising from changes in fair value recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the fair value
reserve (non-recycling). The cumulative gain or loss is not
reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the equity
investments. Instead, it is transferred to retained earnings.

Dividends on these investments in equity instruments are
recognised in profit or loss in accordance with IFRS 9,
unless the dividends clearly represent a recovery of part of
the cost of the investment. Dividends are included in the
‘other income’ line item in profit or loss.

The Group has designated all investments in equity
instruments that are not held for trading at FVOCI on initial
application of IFRS 9.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

FAFsERAR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZE2020F 12831 H LEFE

2.

i)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification of financial assets (Continued)

(if)

Financial assets at FV/PL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVOCI (see (i) to (iii) above)
are measured at FVPL. Specifically:

Investments in equity instruments are classified
as FVPL, unless the Group designates an equity
investment that is neither held for trading nor a
contingent consideration arising from a business
combination at FVOCI on initial recognition (see (iii)
above).

Debt instruments that do not meet the amortised
cost criteria or the FVOCI criteria (see (i) and (ii)
above) are classified as FVPL. In addition, debt
instruments that meet either the amortised cost
criteria or the FVOCI criteria may be designated at
FVPL upon initial recognition if such designation
eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement
or recognition inconsistency (so called ‘accounting
mismatch’) that would arise from measuring assets
or liabilities or recognising the gains and losses
on them on different bases. The Group has not
designated any debt instruments at FVPL.

Financial assets at FVPL are measured at fair value at the
end of each reporting period, with any fair value gains or
losses recognised in profit or loss to the extent they are not
part of a designated hedging relationship. The net gain or
loss recognised in profit or loss includes any dividend or
interest earned on the financial asset and is included in the
‘other income’ line item (note 7). Fair value is determined in
the manner described in note 41(a).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

AA 5 e R MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & ZE2020F 128331 HIEEE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

i) Financial assets (Continued)
Foreign exchange gains and losses

The carrying amount of financial assets that are
denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that
foreign currency and translated at the spot rate at the end
of each reporting period. Specifically;

o for financial assets measured at amortised cost that
are not part of a designated hedging relationship,
exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss
in the ‘other income’ line item (note 7);

o for debt instruments measured at FVOCI that are not
part of a designated hedging relationship, exchange
differences on the amortised cost of the debt
instrument are recognised in profit or loss in the
‘other income’ line item (note 7). Other exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income in the investments revaluation reserve;

o for financial assets measured at FVPL that are not
part of a designated hedging relationship, exchange
differences are recognised in profit or loss in the
‘other income’ line item (note 7); and

o for equity instruments measured at FVOCI, exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income in the fair value reserve (non-recycling).

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on
investments in debt instruments that are measured at
amortised cost or at FVOCI, accounts and bills receivables,
as well as on financial guarantee contracts. The amount of
ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in
credit risk since initial recognition of the respective financial
instrument.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

FAFsERAR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZE2020F 12831 H LEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

i) Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for accounts
and bills receivables. The ECL on these financial assets are
estimated using a provision matrix based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and
an assessment of both the current as well as the forecast
direction of conditions at the reporting date, including the
time value of money where appropriate.

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises
lifetime ECL when there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition. However, if the credit risk
on the financial instrument has not increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group measures the loss
allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal
to 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL represents the expected credit losses that will
result from all possible default events over the expected
life of a financial instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to
result from default events on a financial instrument that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

() Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument at the date of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers both quantitative and
gualitative information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or effort.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

AA 5 e R MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & ZE2020F 128331 HIEEE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

i) Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
) Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

o significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk for a particular financial instrument, for
example, a significant increase in the credit spread,
the credit default swap prices for the debtor, or the
length of time or the extent to which the fair value
of a financial asset has been less than its amortised
cost;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability
to meet its debt obligations;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

o significant increases in credit risk on other financial
instruments of the same debtor;

o an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its
debt obligations.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

FAFsERAR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZE2020F 12831 H LEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

i) Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
) Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
when contractual payments are more than 90 days past
due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information that demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the credit
risk on a financial instrument has not increased significantly
since initial recognition if the financial instrument is
determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date. A
financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk if:

(a) The financial instrument has a low risk of default,

(b)  The debtor has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term,
and

(c) Adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to
fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.

The Group considers a financial asset to have low credit
risk when the asset has external credit rating of ‘investment
grade’ in accordance with the globally understood
definition or, if an external rating is not available, the asset
has an internal rating of ‘performing’. Performing means
that the counterparty has a strong financial position and
there is no past due amounts.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

AA 5 e R MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & ZE2020F 128331 HIEEE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

i) Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
) Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

For financial guarantee contracts, the date that the
Group becomes a party to the irrevocable commitment
is considered to be the date of initial recognition for
the purposes of assessing the financial instrument for
impairment. In assessing whether there has been a
significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition
of a financial guarantee contract, the Group considers the
changes in the risk that the specified debtor will default on
the contract.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

(i) Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event
of default for internal credit risk management purposes
as historical experience indicates that financial assets that
meet either of the following criteria are generally not
recoverable:

o when there is a breach of financial covenants by the
debtor; or
o information developed internally or obtained from

external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely
to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collateral held by
the Group).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

FAFsERAR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZE2020F 12831 H LEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

i) Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
() Definition of default (Continued)

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset is more
than 90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

(i) Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event (see (i) above);

(0 the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

AA 5 e R MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & ZE2020F 128331 HIEEE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

i) Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
(iv) Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery,
for example, when the debtor has been placed under
liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings,
or in the case of trade receivables, when the amounts are
over two years past due, whichever occurs sooner. Financial
assets written off may still be subject to enforcement
activities under the Group’s recovery procedures, taking
into account legal advice where appropriate. Any recoveries
made are recognised in profit or loss.

) Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (that is, the magnitude of
the loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data adjusted by forward-
looking information as described above. As for the
exposure at default, for financial assets, this is represented
by the assets’ gross carrying amount at the reporting date;
for financial guarantee contracts, the exposure includes the
amount drawn down as at the reporting date, together
with any additional amounts expected to be drawn down
in the future by default date determined based on historical
trend, the Group’s understanding of the specific future
financing needs of the debtors, and other relevant forward-
looking information.

For financial assets, the ECL is estimated as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the
original effective interest rate. For a lease receivable, the
cash flows used for determining the ECL is consistent with
the cash flows used in measuring the lease receivable in
accordance with IAS 17 Leases.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

FAFsERAR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZE2020F 12831 H LEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

i) Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
v) Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

For a financial guarantee contract, as the Group is required
to make payments only in the event of a default by the
debtor in accordance with the terms of the instrument that
is guaranteed, the expected loss allowance is the expected
payments to reimburse the holder for a credit loss that it
incurs less any amounts that the Group expects to receive
from the holder, the debtor or any other party.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit
or loss for all financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss
allowance account, except for investments in debt
instruments that are measured at FVOCI, for which the loss
allowance is recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve, and
does not reduce the carrying amount of the financial asset
in the statement of financial position.

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there was objective evidence that a financial asset
or a group of financial assets was impaired. An impairment
existed if one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset had an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of
financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence
of impairment may include indications that a debtor or
a group of debtors was experiencing significant financial
difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation and observable data
indicating that there was a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

AA 5 e R MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & ZE2020F 128331 HIEEE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

i) Financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group
first assessed whether impairment exists individually
for financial assets that were individually significant, or
collectively for financial assets that were not individually
significant. If the Group determined that no objective
evidence of impairment existed for an individually assessed
financial asset, whether significant or not, it included
the asset in a group of financial assets with similar
credit risk characteristics and collectively assessed them
for impairment. Assets that were individually assessed
for impairment and for which an impairment loss was,
or continued to be, recognised were not included in a
collective assessment of impairment.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If
the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On the derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable is recognised in profit or loss. In addition, on
the derecognition of an investment in a debt instrument
classified as at FVOCI, the cumulative gain or loss
previously accumulated in the investments revaluation
reserve is reclassified to profit or loss. In contrast, on the
derecognition of an investment in equity instrument which
the Group has elected on initial recognition to measure at
FVOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated
in the fair value reserve (non-recycling) is not reclassified to
profit or loss, but is transferred to retained earnings.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

FAFsERAR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZE2020F 12831 H LEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

i) Financial liabilities and equity
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance
of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

k) Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are measured subsequently at
amortised cost using the effective interest method or at
FVPL.

However, financial liabilities that arise when a transfer of a
financial asset does not qualify for derecognition or when
the continuing involvement approach applies, and financial
guarantee contracts issued by the Group, are measured in
accordance with the specific accounting policies set out
below.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

AA 5 e R MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & ZE2020F 128331 HIEEE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

k) Financial liabilities (Continued)
Financial liabilities at FVPL

Financial liabilities are classified as FVPL when the financial
liability is (i) contingent consideration recognised by an
acquirer in a business combination; (ii) held for trading; or
(iii) designated at FVPL.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
repurchasing it in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of
short-term profit taking; or

° it is a derivative, except for a derivative that is a
financial guarantee contract or a designated and
effective hedging instrument.

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for
trading or contingent consideration recognised by an
acquirer in a business combination may be designated at
FVPL upon initial recognition if:

o such designation eliminates or significantly reduces
a measurement or recognition inconsistency that
would otherwise arise; or

o the financial liability forms part of a group of
financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which
is managed and its performance is evaluated on
a fair value basis, in accordance with the Group’s
documented risk management or investment
strategy, and information about the grouping is
provided internally on that basis; or

o it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and IFRS 9 permits the entire
combined contract to be designated at FVPL.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

FAFsERAR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZE2020F 12831 H LEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

k) Financial liabilities (Continued)
Financial liabilities at FVPL (Continued)

Financial liabilities at FVPL are measured at fair value,
with any gains or losses arising on changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss to the extent that they are not
part of a designated hedging relationship. The net gain or
loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates any interest
paid on the financial liability and is included in the ‘other
income’ line item (note 7) in profit or loss.

However, for financial liabilities that are designated at FVPL,
the amount of change in the fair value of the financial
liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of
that liability is recognised in other comprehensive income,
unless the recognition of the effects of changes in the
liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income would
create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or
loss. The remaining amount of change in the fair value
of liability is recognised in profit or loss. Changes in fair
value attributable to a financial liability’s credit risk that
are recognised in other comprehensive income are not
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss; instead, they are
transferred to retained earnings upon derecognition of the
financial liability.

Gains or losses on financial guarantee contracts issued by
the Group that are designated by the Group as at FVPL are
recognised in profit or loss.

Fair value is determined in the manner described in note
41(a).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

AA 5 e R MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & ZE2020F 128331 HIEEE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

k) Financial liabilities (Continued)

Financial liabilities measured subsequently at
amortised cost

Financial liabilities that are not (i) contingent consideration
recognised by an acquirer in a business combination; (ii)
held for trading; or (iii) designated at FVPL, are measured
subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where
appropriate) a shorter period, to the amortised cost of a
financial liability.

Foreign exchange gains and losses

For financial liabilities that are denominated in a foreign
currency and are measured at amortised cost at the end
of each reporting period, the foreign exchange gains and
losses are determined based on the amortised cost of the
instruments. These foreign exchange gains and losses
are recognised in the ‘other income’ line item in profit
or loss (note 7) for financial liabilities that are not part
of a designated hedging relationship. For those which
are designated as a hedging instrument for a hedge of
foreign currency risk, foreign exchange gains and losses
are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in a separate component of equity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

FAFsERAR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZE2020F 12831 H LEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

k) Financial liabilities (Continued)
Foreign exchange gains and losses (Continued)

The fair value of financial liabilities denominated in a
foreign currency is determined in that foreign currency
and translated at the spot rate at the end of the reporting
period. For financial liabilities that are measured at FVPL,
the foreign exchange component forms part of the fair
value gains or losses and is recognised in profit or loss for
financial liabilities that are not part of a designated hedging
relationship.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

When the Group exchanges with the existing lender
one debt instrument for another with substantially
different terms, such exchange is accounted for as an
extinguishment of the original financial liability and
the recognition of a new financial liability. Similarly, the
Group accounts for substantial modification of terms
of an existing liability or part of it as an extinguishment
of the original financial liability and the recognition of a
new liability. It is assumed that the terms are substantially
different if the discounted present value of the cash flows
under the new terms, including any fees paid net of any
fees received and discounted using the original effective
rate is at least 10 per cent different from the discounted
present value of the remaining cash flows of the original
financial liability. If the modification is not substantial, the
difference between: (1) the carrying amount of the liability
before the modification; and (2) the present value of the
cash flows after modification should be recognised in profit
or loss as the modification gain or loss within other gains
and losses.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

AA 5 e R MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & ZE2020F 128331 HIEEE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

1) Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.

m) Derivative financial instruments
Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as
forward currency contracts, to hedge its foreign currency
risk. Such derivative financial instruments are initially
recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured
at fair value. Derivatives are carried as assets when the
fair value is positive and as liabilities when the fair value is
negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of
derivatives are taken directly to the statement of profit or
loss, except for the effective portion of cash flow hedges,
which is recognised in other comprehensive income and
later reclassified to profit or loss when the hedged item
affects profit or loss.

n) Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired
in a business combination is the fair value as at the date of
acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed
to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite
lives are subsequently amortised over the useful economic
life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The
amortisation period and the amortisation method for an
intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least
at the end of each reporting period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

FAFsERAR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZE2020F 12831 H LEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

n) Intangible assets (Continued)

The following intangible assets with finite useful lives are
amortised from the date they are available for use and their
estimated useful lives are as follows:

— computer software 10 years straight-line

o) Leases

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. Control is conveyed where the customer has
both the right to direct the use of the identified asset and
to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from
that use.

(i) As a lessee

Where the contract contains lease components and non-
lease components, the Group has elected not to separate
non-lease components and accounts for each lease
component and any associated non-lease components as a
single lease component for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group recognises
a right-of-use asset and a lease liability, except for short-
term leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less
and leases of low-value assets which, for the Group are
primarily office and other equipment. When the Group
enters into a lease in respect of a low-value asset, the
Group decides whether to capitalise the lease on a lease-
by-lease basis. The lease payments associated with those
leases which are not capitalised are recognised as an
expense on a systematic basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is initially
recognised at the present value of the lease payments
payable over the lease term, discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, using a relevant incremental borrowing rate.
After initial recognition, the lease liability is measured at
amortised cost and interest expense is calculated using the
effective interest method. Variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or rate are not included in the
measurement of the lease liability and hence are charged
to profit or loss in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

AA 5 e R MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & ZE2020F 128331 HIEEE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

0) Leases (Continued)
(i) As a lessee (Continued)

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is
capitalised is initially measured at cost, which comprises the
initial amount of the lease liability plus any lease payments
made at or before the commencement date, and any initial
direct costs incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the
right-of-use assets also includes an estimate of costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore
the underlying asset or the site on which it is located,
discounted to their present value, less any lease incentives
received. The right-of-use asset is subsequently stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
(see notes 2(f) and 2(p)(i)), except for the following types of
right-of-use asset:

- right-of-use assets that meet the definition of
investment property are carried at fair value in
accordance with note 2(g); and

- right-of-use assets related to leasehold land and
buildings where the Group is the registered owner
of the leasehold interest are carried at cost in
accordance with note 2(f).

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change
in future lease payments arising from a change in an
index or rate, or there is a change in the Group’s estimate
of the amount expected to be payable under a residual
value guarantee, or there is a change arising from the
reassessment of whether the Group will be reasonably
certain to exercise a purchase, extension or termination
option. When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount
of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if
the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been
reduced to zero.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

FAFsERAR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZE2020F 12831 H LEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

0) Leases (Continued)
(i) As a lessee (Continued)

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is a change
in the scope of a lease or the consideration for a lease that
is not originally provided for in the lease contract (“lease
modification”) that is not accounted for as a separate
lease. In this case the lease liability is remeasured based on
the revised lease payments and lease term using a revised
discount rate at the effective date of the modification.

In the consolidated statement of financial position, the
current portion of long-term lease liabilities is determined
as the present value of contractual payments that are due
to be settled within twelve months after the reporting
period.

(i)  As a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease
inception whether each lease is a finance lease or an
operating lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease if it
transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
the ownership of an underlying assets to the lessee. If this
is not the case, the lease is classified as an operating lease.

When a contract contains lease and non-lease components,
the Group allocates the consideration in the contract to
each component on a relative stand-alone selling price
basis. The rental income from operating leases is recognised
in accordance with note 2(w)(iii).

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, the sub-leases
are classified as a finance lease or as an operating lease
with reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the
head lease. If the head lease is a short-term lease to which
the Group applies the exemption described in note 2(o)
(i), then the Group classifies the sub-lease as an operating
lease.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

AA 5 e R MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & ZE2020F 128331 HIEEE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

p) Impairment of non-financial assets
(i) Impairment of non-financial assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period to identify indications
that the following assets may be impaired or an impairment
loss previously recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

- property, plant and equipment, including right-of-
use assets;

- investment properties;

- interest in an associate;

- deposits and prepayments;
- other intangible assets; and

- investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s
statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount
is estimated.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of its fair
value less costs of disposal and its value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset. Where an
asset does not generate cash inflows largely independent
of those from other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets that generates
cash inflows independently (that is, a cash-generating unit).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

FAFsERAR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZE2020F 12831 H LEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

p) Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)
(i) Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)
- Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss whenever
the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-generating
unit to which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-generating
units are allocated to reduce the carrying amount of the
assets in the unit (or group of units) on a pro rata basis,
except that the carrying amount of an asset will not be
reduced below its individual fair value less costs of disposal
(if measurable) or value in use (if determinable).

- Reversal of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the asset’s
carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in
which the reversals are recognised.

(ij)  Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the Group
is required to prepare an interim financial report in
compliance with IAS 34, Interim Financial Reporting, in
respect of the first six months of the financial year. At the
end of the interim period, the Group applies the same
impairment testing, recognition, and reversal criteria as it
would at the end of the financial year (see notes 2(i) and

2(p)(@)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

AA 5 e R MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & ZE2020F 128331 HIEEE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

q) Research and development costs
All research costs are charged to profit or loss as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products
is capitalised and deferred only when the Group can
demonstrate the technical feasibility of completing the
intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale, its
intention to complete and its ability to use or sell the asset,
how the asset will generate future economic benefits,
the availability of resources to complete the project and
the ability to measure reliably the expenditure during the
development. Product development expenditure which
does not meet these criteria is expensed when incurred.

r) Inventories

Inventories are assets which are held for sale in the ordinary
course of business, in the process of production for such
sale or in the form of materials or supplies to be consumed
in the production process or in the rendering of services.

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the weighted average basis
and, in the case of work in progress and finished goods,
comprises direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of overheads. Net realisable value is based on
estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be
incurred to completion and disposal.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of
any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and
all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the
period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any
reversal of any write-down of inventories is recognised as
a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an
expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

FAFsERAR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZE2020F 12831 H LEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

s) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition. Cash and cash equivalents are assessed for
ECLs in accordance with the policy set out in note 2(i).

t) Employee benefits

(i) Short-term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present values.

(ij)  Share-based payment transactions

The Company operates a share option scheme, a share
award scheme and other share award agreement for
the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to
eligible participants who contribute to the success of the
Group's operations. Employees (including directors) of the
Group receive remuneration in the form of share-based
payment transactions, whereby employees render services
as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled
transactions”) of the Company.

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees
is measured by reference to the fair value at the date at
which they are granted. The fair value is determined by
an external valuer using a binomial lattice model or Black-
Scholes Option Pricing Model, if applicable.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

AA 5 e R MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & ZE2020F 128331 HIEEE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

t) Employee benefits (Continued)
(ij)  Share-based payment transactions (Continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised,
together with a corresponding increase in equity, over the
period in which the performance and/or service conditions
are fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-
settled transactions at the end of each reporting period
until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the
vesting period has expired and the Group's best estimate of
the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest.
The charge or credit to profit or loss for a period represents
the movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at
the beginning and end of that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately
vest, except for equity-settled transactions where vesting
is conditional upon a market or non-vesting condition,
which are treated as vesting irrespective of whether or not
the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided
that all other performance and/or service conditions are
satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified,
as a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms
had not been modified, if the original terms of the award
are met. In addition, an expense is recognised for any
modification that increases the total fair value of the share-
based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee
as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated
as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any
expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. This includes any award where non-vesting
conditions within the control of either the Group or
the employee are not met. However, if a new award is
substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as
a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the
cancelled and new awards are treated as if they were a
modification of the original award, as described in the
previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings/
loss per share.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

FAFsERAR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZE2020F 12831 H LEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

u) Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts
of tax are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period, and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax
bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses
and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal of
existing taxable temporary differences, provided that those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either in
the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary differences or in periods into which a tax loss
arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or
forward. The same criteria are adopted when determining
whether existing taxable temporary differences support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax
losses and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority and
the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a
period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be
utilised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

AA 5 e R MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & ZE2020F 128331 HIEEE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

u) Income tax (Continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets
and liabilities are those temporary differences arising from
the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not
part of a business combination), and temporary differences
relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that,
in the case of taxable differences, the Group controls the
timing of the reversal and it is probable that the differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of
deductible differences, unless it is probable that they will
reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of
the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow the related tax benefit to
be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent
that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution
of dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the
related dividends is recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

FAFsERAR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZE2020F 12831 H LEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

u) Income tax (Continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against
deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group has the
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and the following additional conditions
are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the

Company or the Group intends either to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each
future period in which significant amounts of
deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected
to be settled or recovered, intend to realise
the current tax assets and settle the current
tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and
settle simultaneously.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

AA 5 e R MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & ZE2020F 128331 HIEEE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

V) Provisions and contingent liabilities
(i) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed
as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.

(i)  Onerous contracts

An onerous contract exists when the group has a
contract under which the unavoidable costs of meeting
the obligations under the contract exceed the economic
benefits expected to be received from the contract.
Provisions for onerous contracts are measured at the
present value of the lower of the expected cost of
terminating the contract and the net cost of continuing
with the contract.

w) Revenue recognition

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it arises
from the sale of goods or the provision of services or the
use by others of the Group's assets under leases in the
ordinary course of the Group’s business.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

FAFsERAR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZE2020F 12831 H LEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

w) Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue is recognised when a performance obligation is
satisfied, that is, when control over a product or service
underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer, or the lessee has the right to
use the asset, at the amount of promised consideration
to which the Group is expected to be entitled, excluding
those amounts collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is after
deduction of any trade discounts.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance
as the Group performs;

o the Group's performance creates and enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

o the Group's performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the
Group has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when
the customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services that
the Group has transferred to a customer that is not yet
unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in accordance
with IFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable represents the
Group's unconditional right to consideration that is, only
the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

AA 5 e R MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & ZE2020F 128331 HIEEE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

w) Revenue recognition (Continued)

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to a
contract are accounted for and presented on a net basis.

Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing goods or
services to a customer, the Group determines whether the
nature of its promise is a performance obligation to provide
the specified goods or services itself (that is, the Group is
a principal) or to arrange for those goods or services to be
provided by the other party (that is, the Group is an agent).

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified good
or service before that good or service is transferred to a
customer.

The Group is an agent if its performance obligation is to
arrange for the provision of the specified good or service by
another party. In this case, the Group does not control the
specified good or service provided by another party before
that good or service is transferred to the customer. When
the Group acts as an agent, it recognises revenue in the
amount of any fee or commission to which it expects to be
entitled in exchange for arranging for the specified goods
or services to be provided by the other party.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

FAFsERAR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZE2020F 12831 H LEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

w) Revenue recognition (Continued)

Where the contract contains a financing component
which provides a significant financing benefit to the
customer for more than 12 months, revenue is measured
at the present value of the amount receivable, discounted
using the discount rate that would be reflected in a
separate financing transaction with the customer, and
interest income is accrued separately under the effective
interest method. Where the contract contains a financing
component which provides a significant financing benefit
to the Group, revenue recognised under that contract
includes the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method. The Group
takes advantage of the practical expedient in paragraph 63
of IFRS 15 and does not adjust the consideration for any
effects of a significant financing component if the period of
financing is 12 months or less.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income
recognition policies are as follows:

0] Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when the customer takes possession
of and accepts the products. If the products are a partial
fulfilment of a contract covering other goods and/or
services, then the amount of revenue recognised is an
appropriate proportion of the total transaction price under
the contract, allocated between all the goods and services
promised under the contract on a relative stand-alone
selling price basis.

(i) Advisory and management services

Revenue from the provision of advisory and management
services is recognised over the scheduled period on a
straight-line basis because the customer simultaneously
receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

AA 5 e R MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & ZE2020F 128331 HIEEE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

w) Revenue recognition (Continued)
(i) Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over
the periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable. Contingent rentals are recognised as income in
the accounting period in which they are earned.

(iv) Finance lease income

The income under finance lease is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss using the effective
interest rate implicit in the lease over the term of the lease.
Contingent rent is recognised as income in the period in
which it is earned.

v) Dividends

Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised
when the shareholder’s right to receive payment is
established.

(vi)  Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method. For financial assets measured
at amortised cost or FVOCI (recycling) that are not credit-
impaired, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross
carrying amount of the asset. For credit-impaired financial
assets, the effective interest rate is applied to the amortised
cost (that is, the gross carrying amount net of loss
allowance) of the asset (see note 2(i)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

FAFsERAR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZE2020F 12831 H LEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

w) Revenue recognition (Continued)
(vii))  Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the statement
of financial position initially when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received and that the Group
will comply with the conditions attaching to them. Grants
that compensate the Group for expenses incurred are
recognised as income in profit or loss on a systematic basis
in the same periods in which the expenses are incurred.
Grants that compensate the Group for the cost of an asset
are deducted from the carrying amount of the asset and
consequently are effectively recognised in profit or loss over
the useful life of the asset by way of reduced depreciation
expense.

x) Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the end of the reporting period. Exchange
gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.

The transaction date is the date on which the Group
initially recognises such non-monetary assets or liabilities.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies stated at fair value are translated using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value
was measured.

The results of foreign operations are translated into
RMB at the exchange rates approximating the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Statement of financial position items are translated into
RMB at the closing foreign exchange rates ruling at the
end of the reporting period. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated separately in consolidated equity in the
exchange fluctuation reserve.

TIANLI HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED XFZEREMERAE
ANNUAL REPORT 2020 &%

2. FEEFHE (B

w) AR (&)
i) ETAERL

EAUGEREAERREWI BT ML
EBTHNERGE eWFRMHERRTERA
HERBAmMAL - MEAEEMELER XML
REERXNERBBERARCEERESR
NESDBBA - HEXEER -—BEENENME
MEREENREETRHR ERERLERE
ENAERAFEHXAEHNRFTERINAR
I8 A FEST

x) SMNEBE

FRAEEMNIBERZHEXZBERZINE
EXME LUK EZEBREERBRERR
HEARBIINEE R T o BE % I K BRI 18

R
T M 5 o

BREEMAEUIINEAEZFEBREERER
BRXZAZHEERME -

REpARTEBRNEEISZEFIRE
BfEZH-

e

A

BEE

2

SN StERATFEIERZIFEREEREA
BERFAIEATFTEEHZIEERKRE-

O KRB REN R 7 B HE R RS
EXEENERRERARYS HBERRNE
5 B % 3R 5 9 5k O U Th S B B R B AR AR
M5 o B E E B BE R E BRUG BO EL (2 I Wk
2o LREERBRENGSBE DB R
Bt o



Notes to the Financial Statements

AA 5 e R MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & ZE2020F 128331 HIEEE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

X) Translation of foreign currencies (Continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, disposal
of the Group's entire interest in a foreign operation, or
a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an
interest in an associate/a joint venture that includes a
foreign operation of which the retained interest becomes a
financial asset), all of the exchange differences accumulated
in equity in respect of that operation attributable to the
owners of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

y) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready
for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the
cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in
the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of
a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the
asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of
borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially
all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for
its intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.

2) Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified
as a separate allocation of retained earnings within the
equity section of the consolidated statement of financial
position, until they have been approved by the shareholders
in a general meeting. When these dividends have been
approved by the shareholders and declared, they are
recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’s memorandum and
articles of association grant the directors the authority to
declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim dividends
are recognised immediately as a liability when they are
proposed and declared.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

FAFsERAR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZE2020F 12831 H LEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.
(Continued)

aa) Related parties aa)

(a) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, (a)

is related to the Group if that person:
i) has control or joint control over the Group; i)
ii) has significant influence over the Group; or i

i) is a member of the key management personnel of iii)
the Group or the Group’s parent.

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the (b)
following conditions applies:

i) The entity and the Group are members of the same i)
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

ii) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the i
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a

member).

iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third iii)
party.

iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the iv)

other entity is an associate of the third entity.

V) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for V)
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

AA 5 e R MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & ZE2020F 128331 HIEEE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

aa) Related parties (Continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies: (Continued)

Vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

viii)  The entity or any member of a group of which it is
a part, provides key management personnel services
to the Group or to the Group's parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

ab) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the
Group's board of directors (the chief operating decision
maker) for the purposes of allocating resources to, and
assessing the performance of, the Group’s various lines of
business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and are
similar in respect of the nature of products and services,
the nature of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute the products
or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

FAFsERAR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZE2020F 12831 H LEFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
new and amendments to IFRSs issued by the IASB:

Amendments to Definition of Material
IAS 1 and IAS 8

Amendments to Definition of a Business
IFRS 3

Amendments to Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
IFRS 9, IAS 39
and IFRS 7

The application of the Amendments to References to
the Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards and the
amendments to IFRSs in the current year had no material
impact on the Group’s financial positions and performance
for the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set
out in these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

AA 5 e R MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & ZE2020F 128331 HIEEE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities at the
end of the reporting period. However, uncertainty about
these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes
that could require a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

a) Judgements

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart
from those involving estimations, which have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements:

(i) Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases
on its investment property portfolio. The Group has
determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and
conditions of the arrangements, that it retains all the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of these
properties which are leased out on operating leases.

(ii)  Classification between investment properties
and owner-occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making
that judgement. Investment property is a property held to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore,
the Group considers whether a property generates cash
flows largely independent of the other assets held by the
Group.
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FAFsERAR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZE2020F 12831 H LEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(Continued)

a) Judgements (Continued)

(ii)  Classification between investment properties
and owner-occupied properties (Continued)

Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation and another portion
that is held for use in the supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes. If these portions could be
sold separately or leased out separately under a finance
lease, the Group accounts for the portions separately. If
the portions could not be sold separately, the property
is an investment property only if an insignificant portion
is held for use in the supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes. Judgement is made on an
individual property basis to determine whether ancillary
services are so significant that a property does not qualify
as an investment property.

(iif)  Control on structured entities

The Group’s management needs to assess whether the
Group has all the following: (a) power over the structured
entity; (b) exposure to significant variable returns from its
involvement with the structured entity; and (c) the ability
to use its power over the structured entity to affect its
returns. If such power, exposure and ability exist, the Group
has to consolidate such structured entity. When the Group
served as manager or trustee of the structured entity, the
Group uses the following judgement to determine whether
control exists in a structured entity: the scope of decision-
making as a manager or trustee, the power held by other
parties, the remuneration and the exposure to variability of
returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls a
structured entity if facts and circumstances indicate that
there are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control listed above.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

AA 5 e R MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & ZE2020F 128331 HIEEE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(Continued)

a) Judgements (Continued)
(iiij)  Control on structured entities (Continued)

For private equity funds where the Group involves as both
general partner and limited partner, the Group assesses
whether the combination of investments it holds together
with its remuneration creates exposure to variability of
returns from the activities of the fund that is of such
significance that it indicates that the fund manager is a
principal. The fund shall be consolidated if the Group acts
in the role of principal.

(iv) Classification of financial assets

The Group’s management needs to make critical
judgement in classifying financial assets based on the
purpose and nature on the initial recognition date. Due to
the differences of the subsequent measurement of financial
assets, the classification will affect the financial position
and operating results.

(v)  Impairment of financial assets

The loss allowance for financial assets are based on
assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates.
The Group uses judgement in making these assumptions
and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation,
based on the Group’s past history, existing market
conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end
of each reporting period. Details of the key assumptions
and inputs used are disclosed in the tables in note 41(b).

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed below.
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FAFsERAR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZE2020F 12831 H LEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(Continued)

b) Estimation uncertainty

i) Estimated useful lives and estimated residual
values of property, plant and equipment
and investment property (Carrying amount:
RMB419,832,000 (2019: RMB272,754,000))

In determining the estimated useful lives and estimated
residual values of items of property, plant and equipment,
and investment property the Group has to consider various
factors, such as technical or commercial obsolescence
arising from changes or improvements in production, or
from a change in the market demand for the product or
service output of the asset, expected usage of the asset,
expected physical wear and tear, the care and maintenance
of the asset, and legal or similar limits on the use of the
asset. The estimation of the useful life of the asset is based
on the experience of the Group with similar assets that
are used in a similar way. Additional depreciation is made
if the estimated useful lives and/or the residual values of
items of property, plant and equipment are different from
the previous estimation. Useful lives and residual values
are reviewed at the end of the reporting period based on
changes in circumstances.

i) Fair value of financial instruments
(Carrying amount: RMB395,412,000 (2019:
RMB394,622,000))

The Group uses valuation technique for financial
instruments which are not quoted in an active market.
Valuation techniques include the use of discounted cash
flows analysis or other valuation methods as appropriate.
To the extent practical, models use only observable data.
However, areas such as cash flows, credit risk, volatilities,
discount rates and correlations require management to
make estimates. Changes in assumptions about these
factors could affect the estimated fair value of financial
instruments. As at 31 December 2020, the total fair value
of level 3 financial assets that are measured at fair value
on a recurring basis amounted to RMB395,412,000 (2019:
RMB394,622,000).
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 & ZE2020F 128331 HIEEE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(Continued)

b) Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

iiij)  Deferred tax assets (Carrying amount:
RMB23,946,000 (2019: RMB25,807,000))

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences and unused tax losses to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences and
losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement
is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets
that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and
level of future taxable profits together with future tax
planning strategies.

iv)  Impairment assessment of non-financial assets
(Carrying amount: RMB504,583,000 (2019:
RMB447,570,000))

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators
of impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of
each reporting period. Non-financial assets are tested for
impairment when there are indicators that the carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment exists
when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating
unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher
of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use.
The calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal is
based on observable market prices less incremental costs
for disposing of the asset. When value in use calculations
are undertaken, management must estimate the expected
future cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit
and choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value of those cash flows.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZE2020F 12831 H LEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(Continued)

b) Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

v) Write-down of inventories to net realisable
value (Carrying amount: RMB178,337,000
(2019: RMB115,556,000))

Write-down of inventories to net realisable value is made
based on the estimated net realisable value of inventories.
The assessment of the required write-down amount
involves management’s judgement and estimates. Where
the actual outcome or expectation in future is different
from the original estimate, such difference will have an
impact on the carrying amounts of inventories and the
write-down charge/write-back amount in the period in
which such estimate has been changed.

vi)  Provision of ECL for accounts and bills
receivables (Carrying amount: RMB 185,236,000
(2019: RMB127,457,000))

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECL for
accounts and bills receivables. The provision rates are based
on days past due as groupings of various debtors that have
similar loss patterns.

The provision matrix is based on the Group’s historical
default rates taking into consideration forward-looking
information that is reasonable and supportable available
without undue costs or effort. At every reporting date,
the historical observed default rates are reassessed and
changes in the forward-looking information are considered.
In addition, accounts and bills receivables with significant
balances and credit impaired are assessed for ECL
individually.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates.
The information about the ECL and the Group's accounts
and bills receivables are disclosed in notes 41(b) and 24
respectively.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 & ZE2020F 128331 HIEEE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(Continued)

b) Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

viij)  Tax payable (Carrying amount: RMB10,395,000
(2019: RMB13,320,000))

The subsidiaries of the Company are subject to income
tax in the PRC and Hong Kong. Significant judgement
is required in determining the provision for income tax.
There are many transactions for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of
business. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the current tax and deferred
tax provisions in the financial period in which such
determination is made.

5. SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which are
organised by business lines. In a manner consistent with
the way in which information is reported internally to the
Board (the chief operating decision maker) for the purposes
of resources allocation and performance assessment,
the Group has presented the following three reportable
segments. No operating segments have been aggregated
to form the following reportable segments.

i) MLCC: manufacturing and sale of MLCC;

ii) Investment and financial services: including but
not limited to (i) direct investments in debt, equity
and/or any other asset; (ii) asset management; (iii)
provision of financial advisory services; and (iv)
financial technologies; and

iii) Other general trading: trading of goods other
than MLCC, including but not limited to electronic
components and commodities such as metals,
minerals and petroleum products.
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FAFsERAR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZE2020F 12831 H LEFE

5. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

a) Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Board monitors
the results, assets and liabilities attributable to each
reportable segment on the following basis:

Segment assets include all tangible assets, intangible assets,
deferred tax assets and current assets with the exception
of corporate assets. Segment liabilities include all payables,
deferred income and deferred tax liabilities attributable to
the activities of the individual segments and borrowings
managed directly by the segments.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to sales generated by those
segments and the expenses incurred by those segments or
which otherwise arise from the depreciation or amortisation
of assets attributable to those segments.

The measure used for reporting segment profit/(loss) is
earnings and loss of each segment without allocation of
corporate interest income, other corporate income, central
administrative expenses, central finance costs and income
tax.

In addition to receiving segment information concerning
segment profit/(loss), the Board is provided with segment
information concerning revenue, interest income,
depreciation and amortisation, write-down of inventories,
reversal of write-down of inventories, impairment losses
of accounts receivables, reversal of impairment losses
of accounts receivables, finance costs, share of profit/
(loss) of an associates, income tax and additions to non-
current segment assets (other than financial instruments
and deferred tax assets) used by the segments in their
operations.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group's accounting policies.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 & ZE2020F 128331 HIEEE

5. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 5.
a) Segment results, assets and liabilities a)
(Continued)

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers
by the timing of revenue recognition, as well as information
regarding the Group’s reportable segments as provided
to the Board for the purposes of resources allocation and

assessment of segment performance for the years ended
31 December 2020 and 2019 is set out below:

DEEWE (E
DEEE-BERER (@

BRBRABRRIFEE D Z2EFELEHWA > UKIE
HFEESTUETERDPERHEE20205F
F22019F 12831 HIEEE 2 DB FRIBETT
HZEAEBZIE2HRDIERFHIIOT -

Year ended 31 December 2020

B F2020F128310LLEE
Investment Other
and financial general
MLCC services trading Total
KRB Hith
MLCC SRR —KES Mmat
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFRT ARBFR AR®BFRT AR®BFR
Segment revenue SEUA
Disaggregated by timing of B AR EEE 2
revenue recognition
Point in time BBFRESR 352,236 35,554 - 387,790
Over time PERF R FE SR - 53,780 - 53,780
Revenue from external customers 3R 5 4MERE A 2 LA 352,236 89,334 - 441,570
Segment profit/(loss) SEEF (F5i8) (25,791) 68,964 (25) 43,148
Corporate interest income EERNBUA 784
Central administrative expenses I R{TE & A (32,031)
Central finance costs AR B AR S (18,903)
Consolidated loss before taxation [RIRET4R & E51E (7,002)
Segment assets NEMEE 784,878 565,213 1,618 1,351,709
Cash and bank balances W& RIRITHEER 13,089
Unallocated corporate assets AP ExEE Al
Consolidated total assets REBERE 1,364,869
Segment liabilities ABER 256,126 5,333 887 262,346
Other loans Hth&Em 212,136
Other unallocated corporate Htk D rtxaE
liabilities 3,855
Consolidated total liabilities FENEN=KE 478,337
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZE2020F 12831 H LEFE

5. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 5. DEERE (&
a) Segment results, assets and liabilities a) DEESE - BEREE @)
(Continued)
Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020E12831H L EE
Investment Other
and financial general
MLCC services trading Total
BREH Hith
MLCC &Rl AR TS —RES it
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
Other segment information ~ H{th &8 &}
Additions to non-current assets B IFTHEIEE 233,057 - - 233,057
Unallocated Nl -
233,057
Interest in an associate R—RE#MEAD 2 Em - 17,910 - 17,910
Depreciation and amortisation 37 & K 4 (54,320) (5.627) - (59,947)
Unallocated FNBC (28)
(59,975)
Interest income AISUYON 183 57 - 240
Unallocated corporate interest kD ECRZEF] EUA
income 6
246
Finance costs B AR (2,240) (211) - (2,451)
Unallocated XnBC (18,903)
(21,354)
Income tax credit/(expense) FrisiEeE,/ B%) 4,088 (2,606) - 1,482
Unallocated ROEC -
1,482
Reversal of impairment loss of  F&USRR IR (B 538 5 [0]
accounts receivables 5,318 - - 5,318
Write-down of inventories ZERE (18,743) - - (18,743)
Reversal of write-down of EFE R B[R
inventories 31,021 - - 31,021
Share of profit of an associate ~ FE{5—F& k= A 5@ Al - 5,034 - 5,034
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 & ZE2020F 128331 HIEEE

5. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 5. DEERE (&
a) Segment results, assets and liabilities a) DEESE - BEREE @)
(Continued)
Year ended 31 December 2019
HE20195128310LEEE
Investment Other
and financial general
MLCC services trading Total
REM Hth
MLCC ERARTS —REBZ HE st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT ARETT ARETT
Segment revenue DERUIA
Disaggregated by timing of R IN AR E R
revenue recognition
Point in time BB RESD 367,285 20,327 - 387,612
Over time P e S R 2 - 58,624 - 58,624
Revenue from external customers 3R B 9MEFZ P 2 U A 367,285 78,951 - 446,236
Segment (loss)/profit A5 (F518) iEF (120,523) 42,237 1) (78,377)
Corporate interest income EEFSWA 861
Central administrative expenses I R{TE & A (21,083)
Central finance costs AR B Y s (28,968)
Consolidated loss before taxation [&iRBI4r & E518 (127,567)
Segment assets DEEE 717,923 578,347 1,702 1,297,972
Cash and bank balances & KIRTTE R 18,449
Unallocated corporate assets AR EEE 2,227
Consolidated total assets FAEBEEMEE 1,318,648
Segment liabilities AEBER 213,799 9,044 932 223,775
Other loans HE® 200,742
Other unallocated corporate HMKDEEEXEERE
liabilities 14,338
Consolidated total liabilities FEEaEEsT 438,855
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZE2020F 12831 H LEFE

5. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 5. DEERE (&
a) Segment results, assets and liabilities a) DEESE - BEREE @)
(Continued)
Year ended 31 December 2019
HE2019F12831HILEE
Investment Other
and financial general
MLCC services trading Total
KEH HAth
MLCC ERUARTS —REZ M5t
RMB'000 RMB‘000 RMB‘000 RMB'000
ARBFT AREFT AR¥EFT ARBEBF T
Other segment information ~ Hfth &8 &}
Additions to non-current assets B IERBEE 181,388 700 = 182,088
Unallocated ROEC -
182,088
Interest in an associate R—EEE B 2 R - 12,738 = 12,738
Depreciation and amortisation & K (42,722) (5,889) - (48,611)
Unallocated RoEC )
(48,620)
Interest income FEWA 4,108 370 1 4,479
Unallocated corporate interest kD BECEZEF] EUA
income 861
5,340
Finance costs B R (2,758) (357) = (3,115)
Unallocated FDBC (28,968)
(32,083)
Income tax credit/(expenses) FSmiEsE,/ ) 3,698 (1,971) - 1,727
Unallocated vl -
1,727
Impairment loss of accounts FEUGRIE R B A58
receivables (1,532) - - (1,532)
Reversal of impairment loss of P& RIS 6 B K5 18 135 2]
accounts receivables 599 - - 599
Write-down of inventories Z5RE (19,053) = - (19,053)
Reversal of write-down of EFE R B[R
inventories 6,198 - - 6,198
Share of loss of an associate e — R & A B B 1R = (4,620) = (4,620)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

AA 5 e R MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & ZE2020F 128331 HIEEE

5. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

b) Geographical information
i) Revenue from external customers

The geographical analysis of the Group's revenue from
external customers by geographical location based on
where the goods are sold and delivered or the services were
provided is as follows:

5.  OEBERE (F
b) HEHK
i) KEIHEEZHKA

REmtERRXNIABRBREZHMEBEUEY
AEBRBIIEER Z WA EH B
mE

2020 2019

20205 20194

RMB’000 RMB'000

AREFT AR¥TT

Mainland China (place of domicile) A RE (&8P 1Eih) 281,965 118,546
Hong Kong 58 50,825 212,524
Other countries HEz 108,780 115,166
441,570 446,236

ii) Non-current assets

No non-current assets information is presented for the
Group’s geographical location, as over 90% of the Group’s
non-current assets (excluding financial instruments and
deferred tax assets) is located in Mainland China.

Q) Information about major customers

Revenue from customers contributing 10% or more of the
Group's revenue are as follows:

i)  FRBEE

MRAEEFRBEE TEEEMIARE
IEFRIAE E) #190 % (il i* H7 B A [ - [ It IF %
MAEEZMBUEZERBEEEN -

0 BAREEFRZEH

HAEAEBEBZIRATRIONHUA LERZER
mE

2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBT T
MLCC MLCC
— Customer A —EZRH N/ATRE R * 71,212
— Customer B —EBRZ N/ATREFH* 45,353
& The corresponding revenue did not contribute 10% or more * MEFEW AT BB FE B A EEARUA10%3K,

of the Group's total revenue during the corresponding year.

k-
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Notes to the Financial Statements

FAFsERAR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZE2020F 12831 H LEFE

5. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 5. DEHE &
d)  Revenue from major products and services d) REBFEERKRHFEZVRA
The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue from its UTARATXEEBRBEFEELARBZBRAD
major products and services: Mo
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’'000 RMB‘000
ARETFT AR¥TT
Sale of MLCC MLCCIHE 352,236 367,285
Interest income from financial investment KETRBEENFE WA - 97
Finance lease interest income MEREHN SUWA 370 858
Asset management fee income BESE&KA 53,780 58,624
Net gain from fund investments HeLE Wz $28 35,184 19,372
Revenue from investment and financial services R E & B HAERIARFEHIW A 89,334 78,951
441,570 446,236
6. REVENUE 6. KA
The principal activities of the Group are the manufacturing AEBZFEXEBARERIHEMLCC KRE
and sale of MLCC, investment and financial services and HEMRBREM—KRES -
other general trading.
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers REIZERARFENEADZ2ERGHOUWRA
by major products or service lines is as follows: W
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AREFT AR¥TT
Revenue from contracts with customers R & BIPR R 755k 5 2 B S5 1558
within the scope of IFRS 15 HENEL SHUWA
Sale of MLCC MLCCIHE 352,236 367,285
Asset management fee income BEEBEEBENRA 53,780 58,624
406,016 425,909
Revenue from other sources HAhaoR 2 WA
Investment interest income KREFBIA - 97
Finance lease interest income MERERN EWA 370 858
Net gain from financial assets at FVPL BATESFABTENEREE
Wz % ER 35,184 19,372
35,554 20,327
441,570 446,236

'I 46 TIANLI HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED XFZEREMERAE
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Notes to the Financial Statements

AA 5 e R MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & ZE2020F 128331 HIEEE

REVENUE (continued)

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers by
the timing of revenue recognition and by geographic markets
is disclosed in note 5.

Revenue expected to be recognised in the future arising from
contracts with customers in existence at the reporting date

All sales contracts with customers for MLCC and other general
trading are for periods of one year or less. As permitted under
IFRS 15, the transaction price allocated to these contracts
for the remaining unsatisfied performance obligations is not
disclosed.

Contracts for asset management service typically have the
same terms with the funds managed by the Group, which
ranged from 3 to 7 years and are subject to extension of
2 to 4 years, in which the Group bills a fixed amount for
service rendered. The Group elected to apply the practical
expedient by recognising revenue in the amount to which
the Group has the right to invoice. As permitted under IFRS
15, the transaction price allocated to these contracts for
the remaining unsatisfied performance obligations is not
disclosed.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the total amount of
interest income on financial assets measured at amortised
cost, including bank interest income (note 7), was
RMB616,000 (2019: RMB3,367,000).

Mt -

WA &)

BB AEDEBRREETSZE D Z2ERELQUA
NN

RBREEHEENER SAPTELERRRT Q&
BZUIA

MLCCREM—RBEZNMARFHESHNZHIR
BR—F LT o 0B BR B 75 ¥Rk &5 22 A 851558 P
HFP TR PARBTTZBRANEEMAEEZEEH
ZRGEBRRT UIRE

BEEBERFCNBRESHAAERMEEZATAS
HEZEH > B3FEETF > WAER2FEFAF > HAE
EEMAIREZIRBRENEEZE 2 ER AEH
EERAOTEED R REEEBFERAER
B B8 P SRS o 60 0 B PR i 5 3R 5 22 R 35 1 598 P
B R T RBTZEBNEEMAIREZFTEMN
ZRBEBR T LUIREE

HE2020F12831HILEFE B HEM AT ENE
BhEEF B AAREE (B3ERTA BURA) (FsE7)
2 ANR#616,0007T (20194 : AR #83,367,0007T) ©
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Notes to the Financial Statements

FAFsERAR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZE2020F 12831 H LEFE

7. OTHER INCOME

7. Hfthlym

2020 2019
20205 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETT
Interest income on financial assets R ASTEZ
measured at amortised cost ETHBEENBUWRA
— bank interest income —iR1TH] B WA 246 2,412
Interest income on financial assets BAFESAER
measured at FVPL SREENBWA
— wealth management products —HEEEER - 2,928
Gross rental income from investment properties 2R B & B ZEAIFE & UL A 4258 4,429 6,648
Government grants (note) BT MR RL (AaE) 8,551 4,522
Release of government grants B2 TRUEUAT fr B VE A3 A
as income (note 30) (#13%£30) 2,748 2,861
Sale of materials THEM R - 188
Other management fee income HBRE WA 460 927
Net foreign exchange gain PE 2% W i - 2,774
Gain on lease modification HEEE W m 1,613 =
Reversal of impairment loss of & WL R I R B 5 18 122 ]
accounts receivables (note 41(b)) (M15£41b)) 5,318 =
Sundry income HMIF A 2,555 1,002
25,920 24,262

Note:

Government grants represented the subsidy to the Group
by the government of the PRC as incentive primarily
to encourage the development of the Group and the
contribution to the local economic development.

In 2020, the Group successfully applied for funding support
from the Employment Support Scheme under the Anti-
epidemic Fund, set up by the Hong Kong Government. The
purpose of the funding is to provide financial support to
enterprises to retain their employees who would otherwise
be made redundant. Under the terms of the grant, the Group
is required not to make redundancies during the subsidy
period and to spend all the funding on paying wages to the

ez -

B IEPEIBUN S B 2 20 EZERH
BN AT S B AN 2 38 R D 3t 5 ISR B R AR B

20205 > AE BRI E BEFRILPEEE
T FRMESEIRRFE TEEZF -ZEEZ
BENERCEREHMBR UBETEEHEZ
EE -REZEMZIFHRE > AEEEEME
FMREGTHE LARMEZSETRAN X ES

employees.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

AA 5 e R MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & ZE2020F 128331 HIEEE

8. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 8. PR AIES 1R
Loss before taxation is arrived at after charging the PR AIBEESNETIIESR !
following:
a) Finance costs a) E= D%
2020 2019
20205 20194
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®EFT AREEF T
Total interest expense on financial liabilities TIEEAFESTABRZ
not at fair value through profit or loss: THEEN SRR
Interest on bank loans (note 26(b)) IRITERZHE HiaE26(b) 150 =
Interest on other loans (note 26(b)) HthERZHE (HaE26(b)) 18,903 11,594
Interest on bond payable (note 26(b)) eI &2 M E (Hrzt26(b)) - 17,374
Interest on lease liabilities (note 26(b)) HEaGZFE Ha26)) 2,301 3,115
21,354 32,083
b) Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments) b) BT (BEEEME)
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AREFT AR¥TT
Salaries, wages and other benefits e TEKMEMER
(notes i and i) (B &£ %) 164,649 137,475
Contributions to defined contribution ERBHIER ARG B Z Rk
retirement plans (notes i and ii) Gz 4,642 10,377
Equity-settled share-based payment expenses REGEURMDASER
IR 378 1,535

169,669 149,387
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FAFsERAR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZE2020F 12831 H LEFE

8. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION (Continued) 8. [PRMAIESIE (&
) Other items [9) Hitlg g
2020 2019
20205 20195
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
b= AR®FT ARET T
Carrying amount of inventories sold BHEFSRAE 301,007 364,788
Write-down of inventories FERR 18,743 19,053
Reversal of write-down of inventories FERECER] (B a2i)

(note iii) (31,021) (6,198)
Cost of inventories (note ) FERAK (i) 288,729 377,643
Depreciation charge TERZ

— owned property, plant and equipment —BEBY¥ -MEKEE 45,203 36,245

— investment property —KREY= 681 681

— right-of-use assets —fERAEEE 14,091 11,290
Depreciation (notes i and i) HE (W14 %ii) 148& 15 59,975 48,216
Amortisation of other intangible assets Htmp & E s 21 701 404
Research and development costs: PSR FAEE A A -

Current year expenditure (note i) KEERZ (Wati) 40,482 67,622
Short term lease fSHRFEE 2,406 1,749
Auditor’s remuneration ZELEMBN =

— audit services —IZH AR 1,607 1,778

— non-audit services — I BARTS 274 268
Net foreign exchange loss/(gain) FERIFEE . (&) 4,828 (2,774)
(Reversal of impairment loss)/impairment  FEUTRIE CRI{EEIEREE])

loss of accounts receivables, net* B RS EE* 41(b) (5,318) 933
Loss on disposal of property, HEME -BEKRKEZEE

plant and equipment 985 994
Rental income on investment properties & &YW AR E

less direct outgoings of RMB230,000 X H A E1230,0007¢

(2019: RMB339,000) (20194 :

AR #339,0007T) (4,199) (6,309)

* The reversal of impairment loss of accounts receivables
are included in “other income” (2019: impairment loss
"“other expenses”)

of accounts receivables are included in

of the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

AA 5 e R MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & ZE2020F 128331 HIEEE

8. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION (Continued) 8. PRIRAIESIE (&
Notes: itz -
i) Cost of inventories includes depreciation of RMB39,603,000 i) FERABERTE ARK39,603,0007T (20194 :
(2019: RMB32,672,000) and staff costs of RMB78,568,000 ANE#32,672,0007T) K& T A& A R#78,568,000
(2019: RMB72,441,000), which are also included in the 7T (20194 : AR#72,441,0007T) » IMEEAESE
respective total amounts disclosed separately above. K EX BB EZ ARRERN o
i) Included in research and development costs are depreciation i) HERBEERASBEITE AR3,705,0007T
of RMB3,705,000 (2019: RMB6,367,000) and staff costs of (20194 : AE*6,367,0007T) :x E TR A AR H#E
RMB18,036,000 (2019: RMB14,237,000), which are also 18,036,0007T (20194F : AK#514,237,0007T) > 7N EL
included in the respective total amounts disclosed separately BESBR EXERREAEA -
above.
i) During the year ended 31 December 2020, there was a i) REE2020F12831HLIEFE > AR BEFRA R
reversal of write-down of inventories of RMB31,021,000 EREFEELEFE RLERARE31,021,0005T
(2019: RMB6,198,000) due to subsequent usage and sale of (20194F : 6,198,0007T) ©
obsolete inventories).
0. INCOME TAX CREDIT 0. ERfEiiig %
a) Income tax recognised in the consolidated statement a) RixzcsEahEMthE2EKRERAESRD 2
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income FRr8F 15 -
represents:
2020 2019
20205 20195
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BTT AREF T
Current tax BPHRIR I8
— Hong Kong Profits Tax for the year —KRFEFANER 2,409 2,419
— PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT") —KREEFRDEFRER
for the year (note (iv)) (TEZEFT1EHR)
(Hf£(iv)) 197 133
— Over provision of Hong Kong Profits Tax —BEFERENER
in prior year HBERR A (383) (104)
— Under/(over) provision of EIT in prior year —IBEFEREMER
BERR (BEEH 7 (4,651)
Deferred taxation IRIERRIE
— Origination and reversal of “HEMEENES KEE
temporary differences (note 32(a) & (b)) (H13£32(a) (b)) (3,712) 476
Income tax credit for the year REFEEPRSRIER (1.482) (1,727)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

FAFsERAR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZE2020F 12831 H LEFE

a)

Notes:

iii)

INCOME TAX CREDIT (Continued)
(Continued)

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on
profits arising in or derived from the jurisdictions in which
members of the Group are domiciled and operate.

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2020 is calculated
at 16.5% (2019: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits
for the year, except for one subsidiary of the group which is
a qualifying corporation under the two-tiered Profits Tax rate
regime.

For this subsidiary, the first HK$2 million of assessable profits
are taxed at 8.25% and the remaining assessable profits are
taxed at 16.5%. The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for
this subsidiary was calculated at the same basis in 2019.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands
and the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”), the Group is not
subject to any income tax in the Cayman Islands and the BVI
respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, all PRC subsidiaries
were subject to EIT at the standard rate of 25% (2019: 25%)
on their respective taxable profit during the year, except
that FINITEFHRIZZERBRAF (literally translated
as Shenzhen Eyang Technology Development Co., Ltd.),
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, was
recognised as High and New Technology Enterprise on 16
October 2018 and is subject to income tax rate of 15% for
three consecutive years commencing in 2018.

TIANLI HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED XFZEREMERAE
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a)

Mt -

iii)

FRSHIER (&

()

KEBMANSERN B RBNIEKREE 2 BE#
BEEZABEREREEGNIMER-

REEGEHERIRFEI216.5% (20194 : 16.5%)
ZRER2020EFBAGREH  EAERZ —
WEBATEBR MBI SRREGNE T ZEERE
B A BRI o

PMZMEAB S > B 12,000,000 70 2 FERTRF]
H128.25% IR EIR > HERERIRNFHIZ16.5%
IR - Z B AR 2 BB REHEH2019
FLEREESH

BREEENERABRELHE RARRE K%
BEAS R RS R B R LB BRI
B

HE2020F12831HLEFE > FiEFEK B AR
25% (20194 : 25%) IZEMER BB ZAEE
FERMAE M ERER R HFER 5
BERAT (S RFZEEE2EWEAR) 1120184
10816 ERDASHEMEE WA 20184
78 18 = (F E EHARS 1 5% 2 IR RSP 1SH



9. INCOME TAX CREDIT (Continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements

AA 5 e R MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & ZE2020F 128331 HIEEE

b) Reconciliation between tax credit and accounting

loss at applicable tax rate:

FRiSHER (&

MEBELAZBEBARXFAEN GBI
BV IR -

2020 2019
20205 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AT
Loss before taxation PRI RIS 1R (7,002) (127,567)
Tax at the statutory tax rate BEAEMREFEZIRNE (146) (31,892)
Tax effect of: UTFBREBEZREZE .
Lower tax rates for specific districts or countries 4 E & o FR 2 RIBIREK (1,750) 455
Share of loss of an associate FE (s — RS Gl Sgis! 2,976 3,911
Income not subject to tax HIEZRR A (15,822) (21,431)
Expenses not deductible for tax ENEIEL Ak 7,568 23,365
Tax losses not recognised KRIESE 2 HIERT 18 13,229 23,506
Tax incentives RIBEE (1,267) (2,604)
Statutory tax concession EERBE R R (147) 10,673
Utilisation of tax losses FAERIEEE (2,185) =
Overprovision in prior years BEEEBEEE (383) (4,755)
Effect of withholding tax on the distributable TR E A EE 2 PR B
profits of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries REA DA EZ & (944) (5,875)
Others H (2,611) 2,920
Income tax credit for the year REEPISRIER (1.482) (1,727)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

FAFsERAR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZE2020F 12831 H LEFE

10. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1)
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation are as follows:

10. E5FM=E

RIBEFBRBKRAEIMNFERRE (REE
FEMHmER) ROAF2BREZESTMEUT:

Year ended 31 December 2020 8 F2020F128318HLLEE
Retirement
Salaries and benefit Discretionary Share-based Total
Fees  allowances contributions bonus Sub-total ~ payments emoluments
&K WRRA
e HEREE GBS BETA hgt ERZA® Ll b
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
i ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR AREFR ARETR AREFR
Executive directors: HTES.
Mr. Zhou Chunhua BEELE
(Chairman) (E35)) - 5,142 16 179 5337 378 5715
Mr. Pan Tong (Chief BV RE
Executive Officer) (e &) (i - 2,151 16 179 2,346 - 2,346
Ms. Du Weilin ity G (iv) - 1,616 16 45 1,677 - 1,677
Mr. Chou Bang Yi, Benjamin B %k4E (v) - 580 - - 580 - 580
Independent B FHITES:
non-executive directors:
Mr. Chu Kin Wang, Peleus  kEREE 161 - - - 161 - 161
Mr. David Tsoi BRUESLE 161 - - - 161 - 161
Mr. Xu Xuechuan #8|1%E 161 - - - 161 - 161
483 9,489 48 403 10,423 378 10,801
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Notes to the Financial Statements

AA 5 e R MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & ZE2020F 128331 HIEEE

10. DIRECTORS’' EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
Year ended 31 December 2019

10. EFMM=E @

HZE2019F12831HIEEE

Salaries  Retirement
and benefit  Discretionary Share-based Total
Fees  allowances  contributions bonus Sub-total payments  emoluments
IR MURAA
e HEREE  BAER RETA NGt BREZAR il
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
i AR%Trn AR%Trn AR%ETn AR%Tn AR%ETn AR%Tn AR%Tn
Executive directors: HEs.
Mr. Zhou Chunhua BEERE
(Chairman) (FR) - 5,269 16 176 5,461 1,535+ 6,99
Mr. Jin Zhifeng E ol -y (i - 1,381 4 - 1385 - 1,385
Mr. Pan Tong B rE
(Chief Executive Officer) ~ (FTBU4EH) (il - 2,108 18 176 230 - 2302
M. Jing Wenping MY TRE (i) - 602 2 - 623 = 623
Ms. Du Wellin TR (iv) = = = = = = =
Mr. Chou Bang Yi, Benjamin - B85 4E v) - 1,137 12 - 1,149 - 1,149
Independent B FRTES .
non-executive directors:
Mr. Chu Kin Wang, Peleus & EHEE 158 - - - 158 = 158
Mr. To Yan Ming, Edmond ~ #t RIE4%4E (vi) 105 = = = 105 = 105
Mr. David Tsoi EXfRt 158 - - - 158 - 158
Mr. Xu Xuechuan =8 |1%E 158 - - - 158 - 158
579 10,497 Al 352 11,499 1,535 13,034
* No outstanding awarded share in respect of the Share * BHERSHE #IEA AR REN S8 2 B RITEE

Award Scheme has fulfilled the vesting conditions or vested
to any awardee up to the reporting date. The awarded
shares granted to the beneficiaries during the year ended 31
December 2017 would originally be vested in three tranches
of 1,986,000 shares each on the vesting date at 31 March
2018, 2019 and 2020 respectively. According to the notice
of award issued by the Company on the date of grant, as
the specific vesting conditions cannot be fulfilled on 31
March 2020. As at the date of this annual report, the vesting
schedule has adjourned.

RERM EERBBHFTSERE T EMERBA -

REE2017F12A31BELFERE TR

AN Z 52

IR RER D =HLEF BB > &L #1,986,0008% f& 15
SREHEAD BIA20185 ~ 2019 %2020 234831
HeRIBARBDRIEFHEBEHZ BB AR
202063 B3 HE L EM B EHRBIEM  NAER

BER BRERERE LR
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FAFsERAR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZE2020F 12831 H LEFE

10. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Notes:

(i) Resigned as Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer on
31 March 2019

(ii) Resigned as Chief Risk Officer and appointed as Chief
Executive Officer on 12 April 2019

(iii) Resigned as Executive Director on 29 July 2019

(iv) Appointed as Executive Director on 22 November 2019

(v) Appointed as Executive Director, Chief Risk Officer and ceased
as Company Secretary on 12 April 2019

(vi) Passed away on 28 August 2019

Certain directors were granted award share during the year
ended 31 December 2017 in respect of their services to
the Group under the share award scheme of the Company
adopted on 14 July 2017, further details of which are set
out in note 33(a) to the financial statements. The fair value
of such award shares which was recognised in profit or loss
over the vesting period was determined as at the date of
grant. During the year ended 31 December 2020, equity-
settled share-based payment expenses of RMB378,000
(2019: RMB1,535,000) were recognised.

11. INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS

The five highest paid individuals during the year included
two directors (2019: two directors), details of whose
emoluments are set out in note 10 above. Details of the
emoluments of the remaining three (2019: three) non-
director and non-chief executive highest paid individuals for
the year are as follows:

10. EEM=E (2

(i) 1220193831 H B ERNTES RITHHARH

(ii) PR2019F4R N2AREERARE RELZERTH
BmE

(iii) 20197 B 290 B ENITES

(iv) R2019F MB22BEZERMITES

(v) R201954B N2HEZEARTES BREARE
BABETATME

(vi) 120196828 H Attt

BE2017F12B31HLtEE - ETESZTAR
EARERRFMBBEASATN2017F78
TARRMZ RO BRI ERTHEBRMD
BERE—THBEHNY B HRRMEEI3(a) o
ZERBRNZATE (HEREBHBMNIE
mAER) ERNREEHAETE -#ZE20205F12
B3 BLEEE ERIRELEEURGSAE
BB AR ¥378,0007T (20194 : A
R #1,535,0007T) °©

11. BEi#TAT

FRNLLEREHFALTEEMBES (20194F
MBESE) 2HWFBEHN EXWF10-FRX
Hif =% (2019F ! =%) FESF - RiT
BABZEREHALZHMFBEOT :

2020 2019

20204 20194

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®FT AREF T

Salaries and allowances e RoRRL 14,801 12,782
Retirement benefit contributions RIABENHER 121 54
14,922 12,836
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following bands are as follows:

Notes to the Financial Statements

AA 5 e R MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & ZE2020F 128331 HIEEE

R

11. INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST 1. ERE#HALE

EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

The number of non-director and non-chief executive and
highest paid employees whose emoluments fell within the

BEHEWT:

HFMBUTHBEZFESF - FaRITHAERK

2020 2019
20205 20194
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
A¥ AH
HK$6,000,001 to HK$6,500,000 6,000,001 75 %6,500,00078 7T
(RMB5,356,411 to RMB5,802,778, (NE 55,356,410 E
2019:RMB5,268,886 to RMB5,707,959) ANER#85,802,77875° 20194
AR #85,268,886752
AER#5,707,9597T) 1 1
HK$5,500,001 to HK$6,000,000 5,500,00178752£6,000,0007% 75
(RMB4,910,043 to RMB5,356,410, (NE4,910,04370F
2019:RMB4,829,812 to RMB5,268,885) ANER#85,356,41075 2 20194 :
ANER#84,829,8127 08
AR #5,268,8857T) - 1
HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000 5,000,0017875£5,500,0007% 75
(RMB4,463,676 to RMB4,910,043, (NE 54,463,676 F
2019:RMB4,390,738 to RMB4,829,811) ANER#84,910,04375° 20194 :
AR #84,390,73802
ANE#4,829,8117T) 1 -
HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000 4,500,001 75 &5,000,00078 7T
(RMB4,017,308 to RMB4,463,675, (NE4,017,3087cE
2019: RMB3,951,665 to RMB4,390,738) ANER#84,463,67575° 20194
AR #83,951,665752
ANEE#4,390,7387T) 1 -
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 75 £ 3,000,00078 7T
(RMB2,231,838 to RMB2,678,205, (NE2,231,8380F
2019: RMB2,195,370 to RMB2,634,443) ANER#82,678,20575° 20194
ANER#82,195,370702
ANER#2,634,4437T) - 1
3 3
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FAFsERAR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZE2020F 12831 H LEFE

11. INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, no
emolument was paid by the Group to the directors or any
of the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
office. None of the directors or any of the five highest paid
individuals has waived or agreed to waive any emolument
for the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

12. DIVIDEND

No dividend was paid or proposed during the years ended
31 December 2020 and 2019, nor has any dividend been
proposed since the end of the reporting period.

13. LOSS PER SHARE

(a) Basic loss per share

The calculation of the basic loss per share is based on
the loss attributable to the owners of the Company of
RMB5,767,000 (2019: RMB125,976,000) and the weighted
average number of 744,750,000 (2019: 744,750,000)
ordinary shares in issue during the year, calculated as
follows:

11. Ba#HAL &

HE2020FEK2019F 1283 1B IEEE» K&
BrEINFM FESHAENRELESH A
THEAMAREB RS RIEABEREE-
REE2020F K2019F12B31HBIEFE > I
BEEEYAMALESHF ALTHERIREK
E (A FBN o

12. BRR

HE2020F K2019F12B31H L EE > I i&#
TR EEEARE  RBRSEHRBITNERES
{EIRR B o

13. BkEGE
() BREXHE

BEREXBEENIREAABDERE AEMLE
BARKS, 767,0007% (20194 : AR
125,976,0007T) X F N BT Z @K INEF
)8 744,750,000 (20194 : 744,750,000
i) TE > WM TR

Weighted average number of ordinary shares: Sl METIEE
2020 2019
20204 20194
'000 ‘000
Fhe Fh&
Weighted average number of P12A31BZ EER
ordinary shares at 31 December Nt 744,750 744,750

(b) Diluted loss per share

Diluted loss per share is the same as the basic loss per share
as there were no potential ordinary shares outstanding
during the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019
respectively.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 & ZE2020F 128331 HIEEE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. ME-BERSZE
Office and
Plant and other Motor  Construction ~Leasehold ~Right-of-use
Buildings  machinery  equipment vehicles in progress improvements assets Total
HAR HEnZ

BF  HRRHE M3 nE HEIR ke GRERE it
RVBOOD  RMBOOO  RVBOOD  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RWBOOD  RMBOOD  RVBIONO
AERTn  \RBTn  \RETn ARBTn ARETn ARETn ARETn ARETR

At 1 January 2019, net of accumulated 120191818

depreciation and impairment NBREHTEREE 5278 123,703 20030 2,551 103 275 80,542 233402
Additions HE 2636 45,676 12,805 - - 700 2774 64,591
Construction expenditure capitalied ~ BAMHNESEES - - - - 170 - = 170
Transfers B - (506) 506 = = = = =
Disposals HE - (980) 61) - - - - (1,041)
Deregistration of a subsiclary RHER—REAT = = (22) = = = = 22)
Depreciation provided during the year —~ ERMTEE(E (130 (25,906) 9,041) m) = (451) (11,200 (47,535)
Fffect of foreign curency exchange ~~ NEERZEZ2
differences - - 8 3 - - 868 955
At 31 December 2019, net of R2019E128318
accumulated deprediation and MBRHERAE
impairment 1,780 141,987 24301 1841 1193 524 72,89 250,520
At 31 December 2019: R019E1831E :
Cost fi& 1,936 399,862 48,738 4,758 2,698 2,304 83316 549,612
Accumulated depreciation and EMERAG
impairment (156) (257875) (24.431) 2.917) (1,505) (1,780) (10422) (299,092)
(arrying amount KEfE 1,780 141,987 24301 1841 1,193 524 72,894 250,520
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZE2020F 12831 H LEFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. ME-BERRE &
(Continued)
Office and
Plant and other Motor Construction ~ Leasehold Right-of-use
Buildings ~ machinery  equipment vehicles in progress improvements assets Total
AR LS
BY HERRS  HtRE 8 HRIR £ EREEE st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
A\EETR  ABBTR ARETR ARETR ARETn ARETn ARETn ARETR
At 31 December 2019, net of R2019E128318
accumulated depreciation and MBEHERAE
impairment 1,780 141,987 24301 1841 1193 524 72,89 250,520
Additions hE - 9R478 7,762 4 - 5225 11,007 122,883
Transfer from prepayment SEENEEIN 6,099 49,646 1018 - - = 26,546 83309
Construction expenditure capitaied ~ BAMHEERER - - - - 79 - - 719
Lease modification fg8d - - - - - - 2038 2038
Tansfers Bg - 1,144 (1,144 - - - - -
Disposals tE - (381) (604) - - - - (985)
Depreciation provided during the year AT ER (134 G (139 (131 - @) (1409 (5929
Effect of foreign curency exchange~ NEERZEZE
differences - - B) - - - (908) (911)
At 31 December 2020, net of 120205128318
accumulated depreciation and MBEHHERAE
impairment 13,745 258752 19,931 1521 1912 4932 97 486 398279
At 31 December 2020: R020E128318
Cost A 14,035 549,845 54,548 5,169 3417 7529 122,510 157,113
Accumulated depreciation EHEREE
and impairment (290) (291,093) (34617) (3.648) (1,505) (2,597) (25,084) (358,834)
Carying amount KEE 13,745 258752 19,931 1521 1912 493 97,486 398,279
a) The Group'’s buildings are held under medium term a) KEB ZBF R A EARELPIELSRE
leases in Mainland China. Bo
b) At 31 December 2020, one of the Group’s land b) MR2020F12B31H Z"EEKREES
with a carrying value of RMB18,175,000 (2019: Nil) AR ¥18,175,0007t (20194 : #) B9
was pledged to an independent third party which — T HEIRRA—BILFE=F &%
provided a guarantee to a bank in respect of a bank ZEFMBERAETEAEERZRITERAR
loan of RMB8,000,000 (2019: Nil) granted to the M8 000,0007C (20194 . #f) HIE A IR
Group. TRMEER
Q) Certification of ownership in respect of certain c) R2020F 12831  AEBEKRAEFE

buildings of the Group located in Luodin with
net carrying amount of RMB8,735,000 as at 31
December 2020 (2019: RMB2,635,000) had not yet
been issued by relevant PRC authorities.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 & ZE2020F 128331 HIEEE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. ME-BERRE &
(Continued)

31 December 31 December

2020 2019

20204 20204

128318 1818

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

izt AR®FT ARETT

Ownership interests in leasehold land and ~ FAIRITEE B 2%/ BR 2 5 1

buildings held for own use, carried at BREMEL M RIEFT

depreciated cost, with remaining mEERLD Hif NEHA .

lease term of:

— between 10 and 50 years —10E504F (i) 73,264 42,030

Other properties leased for own use, carried ¥Z#TE8 A7 IR 2

at depreciated cost HhBREEY= (ii) 36,961 38,644

110,225 80,674
Ownership interest in leasehold land RERITEMATIRZ

and investment property, carried MELT M RIREES

at depreciated cost, with remaining AR Hef NEHA

lease term of:

— between 10 and 50 years —10&505 22,559 22,234
132,784 102,908
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FAFsERAR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZE2020F 12831 H LEFE

14.

Note:

(@)

(ii)

(iii)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

Ownership interests in leasehold land and buildings
held for own use

The Group owns several commercial buildings where its
operating facilities are primarily located with office buildings.
The Group is the registered owner of these property interests,
including the underlying leasehold lands. Lump sum payments
were made upfront to acquire these property interests. The
leasehold land components of these owned properties have
been presented separately

Other properties leased for own use

The Group has obtained the right to use other properties as its
offices use through tenancy agreements. The leases typically
run for an initial period of 3 to 6 years. Lease payments are
usually increased every 3 to 6 years to reflect market rentals.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, additions to right-
of-use assets were RMB37,553,000 (2019: RMB2,774,000).
This amount included the purchase of leasehold land of
RMB27,190,000 (2019: Nil). The remainder primarily related
to the capitalised lease payments payable under new tenancy
agreement.
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14.

Wt -

(i)

(i)

(iii)

ME- -BER=E (&

RFERMEE LM REF 2 BER gD

FEBRBEAESEBEET  HEBERMEZ AN
ARB-AEBMAZEYHE D (BFEEMEEL
#) 2 BEFA A  REB—RIETFENRIBEUERE
ZEYFERG - ZFEAMECHETHENEE
‘25

HithEAHEEME

FEECEBHEER RIS EREMYEFREM
AENERE - BEBEND HHB3EF - HEN
HEBEIECFIRMURMAIGIESE

HE2020F 128318 IEFE AEFTRAEEEAR
#£37,553,00077 (20194F : AR1£2,774,0007T) ° %
HREOSEERE Tt ARK27,190,0007T (2019
£ H) FHFERMAEREZE NENMNERL
ZHENRER-
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 & ZE2020F 128331 HIEEE

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTY 15. KREYE
RMB’000
ARETT
At 1 January 2019: 20191818 -
Cost B 7 25,078
Accumulated depreciation EEtine (2,163)
Carrying amount IREE 22,915
At 1 January 2019, 72019 181H »
net of accumulated depreciation MRERFTITE 22,915
Depreciation provided during the year FRITELEE (681)
At 31 December 2019 7R2019E12831H 22,234
At 31 December 2019 and at 1 January 2020: 1220199128318 %20205F1 818 -
Cost DN 25,078
Accumulated depreciation KREtifeE (2,844)
Carrying amount IRMEE 22,234
At 1 January 2020, 720201818 »
net of accumulated depreciation MRERTITE 22,234
Depreciation provided during the year FERITEREE (681)
At 31 December 2020 7202012 831H 21,553
At 31 December 2020: 720205128318
Cost DN 25,078
Accumulated depreciation EEtineE (3,525)
Carrying amount IRMEE 21,553
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZE2020F 12831 H LEFE

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTY (Continued)

a) The Group’s investment property is held under
medium term leases and is situated in Mainland
China.

b) At the end of the reporting period, the Group did
not have any changes on investment property and
the certificate of ownership was custodied by the
bank.

Q) Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the details of the Group's
investment property and information about the fair value
hierarchy as at 31 December 2020, categorised into the
three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in IFRS 13 Fair
Value Measurement. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with reference to
the observability and significance of the inputs used in the
valuation technique as follows:

o Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only
Level 1 inputs, that is, unadjusted quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date

o Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level
2 inputs, that is, observable inputs which fail to
meet Level 1, and not using significant unobservable
inputs. Unobservable inputs are inputs for which
market data are not available

o Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs

At 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019, the
fair value of the Group’s investment property was
approximately RMB143,700,000 (prepaid land lease
payment: RMB92,240,000; and building: RMB51,460,000)
and RMB143,700,000 (prepaid land lease payment:
RMB89,370,000; and building: RMB54,330,000)
respectively, based on the valuations performed by Roma
Appraisals Limited, an independent professionally qualified
valuer.
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15. REWE @)

a) AEEZREMEHRBEFHBENES
AT S R K o

b) RESTHPR ZEEZREVEILEAE
A& PREEZRRITRE -

o RFERE

TREJNKREBEN2020FE12831HZ2EEY

ERARBATFERBEHNZFE  WLIRERERE
MBEBRSENFI3RKATFEFERMREZL
FERED R =BATEXRBE - AFEFES
2ELEREFFRBABRBZUEREER
EEMIADATEEROT :

. F—EBREE: AERF—ERBARK

B (HEERPBEREENERAER
B EREHBEZRE) stERTE

. BE_EBRMLE : ﬁﬁﬁﬁi Z AR A BUR
(BIAREFE—EBRZ2IBEGAY
B)STEAFTE" ﬁ'ﬁT@)ﬂEEE’JTT
BEERAREBE - TIHREHAHBREE
ERMT IS BB AR

. FEZEBHREE: EREENITIERRER
ABIEFERTE

$2020F12831H &2019%F12831H >
AEBREYMEZRAFEINNA AR
143,700,0007c (T A EFENHIE | AR
92,240,0007t ; Mi#EF : ARK®¥51,460,000
70) R AR ®143,700,0007C (T A S B X
5. AR%89,370,0007T ; RIEF : ARUE
54,330,0007C) * AR EBER I BEXESEKEE
MEEEERTEERABEHMNGE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 & ZE2020F 128331 HIEEE

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTY (Continued)
Q) Fair value hierarchy (Continued)
The details of fair value of the investment property as at

31 December 2020 and 2019 determined by the external
valuer is as below:

REME (@)

DFERE(

.
=

R2020F K%2019F12H31H > BHIMNEB G EED
BEZREYEANAFENEBNOT

Fair value measurements
at 31 December 2020 using
1220205128318 AT EHEL X IEB

Quoted
prices in
active Significant
markets for other Significant
identical observable unobservable
assets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
HREER HtEERN BER
TER TS AR REJER
HIR1E A BB WA BE
(E—E#HR) (BZBE4%) (B=B4R)
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
Description EH AR®BTT AR®TT ARBTT
Investment property BEME - - 143,700
Fair value measurements
at 31 December 2019 using
20191231 BN A EtE A KA
Quoted
prices in
active Significant
markets for other Significant
identical observable unobservable
assets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
HESB ET HMMEZH BEMN
EEET % B ERE NEJERE
RERE o A Bis DN 6
(E—EH) (EZE®R (B=EH)
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Description EB ARBEFIT ARBTF T ARBT T
Investment property BEY*E - = 143,700

For the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, the
valuation for the investment property located in Shenzhen
was based on income capitalisation approach (term and
reversionary method) which use unobservable inputs (Level
3) at 31 December 2020 and 2019 respectively. The key
inputs are term vyield, reversionary yield and market unit
rent. An increase in the unit sale price adopted would
result in an increase in the fair value measurement of the
investment property by the same magnitude, and vice
versa.

HE2020F K2019F 12831 IEEE > it
FYNZ R EYEZEELDIREREERN L (FH
KRERE) D AERR2020F 2019412
B31HZAOERG ARE (E=EH) #17
sHE o EEEg A Bk A& £ H O] 3k X - 18 57 0] 3R
REHHEBEUES AN EBELEBIZ NG E
é&z&%%%ﬁ@@%ﬁ%%ummﬁrgiDD ' |7
ZINEA o
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZE2020F 12831 H LEFE

16. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 16. THFAETEHFIE
2020 2019
20205 20195
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FT ARET T
Carrying amount at 1 January K1B1BZREE - 35,421
Impact on initial application of IFRS 16 (note 14) & =X FE FREIPREA F53R & #E 8
Br6esE & (Wf5214) - (35,421)
Adjusted carrying amount at 1 January R1B1B 2 & AEREE - -
17. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 17 R—lEBEQTZ#ES
2020 2019
20204 20194F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBT T
Unlisted investment: Share of net assets ELEHRE | ELEEZFE 17,910 12,738

Details of the Group’s interest in an associate, which is
unlisted limited partnership whose quoted market price is miZHRE
not available and accounted for using the equity method in BUWF
the consolidated financial statements, are as follows:

> M6 4R 1

Proportion of ownership interest

D LUPN =

ZHMERBDBFLTERGRBERE WA ERE
M mER o 5F

WERLH
Place of Contributed and Group's Held by
establishment/ ~ committed amount/Issued and ~ effective  the Held by
Name of company operation paid up registered capital interest Company  subsidiaries Principal activities
BRIRAEE/ rEE HEAE  EREAR
NGRS M/ SEn% BROKBRTHMES ERfEnz HA 5] TERK
Logan Pass Private Equity Fund ~ Korea/Korea Contributed and committed 29.98% - 29.98% Asset management
%E,/%E amount of KRW5,965,384,000  (2019: (2019; (note 1)
BARAETEAS 965,384,008 29.98% 2998%)  BEEE (Hit1)
(20196 (2019
29.98%) 29.98%)

Notel: Logan Pass Private Equity Fund was acquired by the Group
through acquisition of subsidiary which engaged in asset
management business in Korea.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 & ZE2020F 128331 HIEEE

17.

Summarised financial information of an associate, Logan
Pass Private Equity Fund, adjusted for any differences in
accounting policies, and reconciled to the carrying amounts

INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued) 17 ®
LU B H = A FLogan Pass Private Equity
Fundz B ERBE > HE BB M 5T
RER THAREVBERRINEEDEHK

R E AR Z

in the consolidated financial statements, are disclosed

(48)

below:
2020 2019
20204 20194F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREF T
Gross amounts S RE
Current assets MENE E 60,450 44,312
Non-current assets FERIEE 5,081 1,876
Current liabilities mEas (5,791) (2,953)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE - (746)
Equity fEx 59,740 42,489
Revenue WA 32,727 10,423
Profit/(loss) from continuing operations FEKEER RN, (518 13,817 (14,430)
Other comprehensive income Hih2miam 3,435 -
Total comprehensive income/(loss) 2EWE S (B18) 485t 17,252 (14,430)
Reconciled to the Group's interest in an associate: EAZAREBER —fEE AT 2
R HHER
Net assets BEFE 59,740 42,489
Proportion of the Group’s ownership interest NEEBER LA 29.98% 29.98%
17,910 12,738
Carrying amount of the Group's interest AEE#GHREE 17,910 12,738
18. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 18. HATEFAAHMZAWKEZNERE
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE =
INCOME (“FVOCI”)
2020 2019
20205 20195
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREBT T
Unlisted investment in equity securities, BATESBEZRARES
at fair value EEHRE 25,893 11,353
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZE2020F 12831 H LEFE

18. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME (“FVOCI") (Continued)

The above unlisted equity investment represents an
investment in the unlisted equity securities issued by a
private entity incorporated in Hong Kong. This investment
was irrevocably designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income as the Group considers the
investment to be strategic in nature.

The fair value of the unlisted equity securities was arrived
at by reference to the valuation performed by management
by using cash flow projections based on the financial
budget prepared by the board of directors of the investee
entity.

19. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (“FVPL")

18. BAFESIAHMEZERENERE
E (&)

3 9E b T B A A 2 B — R T 5 R AR
VWA EERETHE L TRAES B
HomRAEERARRE L MEBEES
B R E R T O RE A E 2 A T
PEES- TR

ZEFLTRAEAESHNAFTEH2SEEERE
BEUAREHKRBERZEFTTRENYBERE
BERAERENRERERAMETHNLEMR
4o

19. BAFESABRmNEREE

2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBT T

Unlisted equity investments outside Hong Kong ~ &EBLUIMNIIE LB RERE
— fund investments —EEKE 369,519 383,269
Non-current portion JERNHAER 15 369,519 383,269

All of the Group’s unlisted fund investments were
designated as financial assets at FVPL. The fair values of the
investments were measured with reference to the audited
net assets value as reported by the funds management.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 & ZE2020F 128331 HIEEE

20. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLE

20. BKEMEBEHEERIEA

Minimum lease payments Present value of minimum

receivable lease payments receivable
RIEEKEEHRE RIEEWHEMRIERE
2020 2019 2020 2019
20205 20195 20205 20195
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000

AEBBTFRT AR®BTT ARETR AREBTR

Finance lease receivable comprises: FEWRIEFR EZIEEIE

Within 1 year 1R - 8,882 - 7,508
After 1 year but within 3 years 1% B3R - 13,322 - 12,437
- 22,204 - 19,945
Less: Unearned finance lease B RBRINZREHASWA
income - (2,259) - -
Present value of minimum lease R {KFEUNFA EFIEIRE
payments receivable - (19,945) - 19,945
2020 2019
20205 20194
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥FT AR¥T T
Representing: (AVE
Current TREN - 7,508
Non-current JER N - 12,437
- 19,945
Effective interest rate B GRS
Finance lease receivable PR & E =R IE - 8%

The ageing analysis of finance lease receivable, determined
based on the age of the receivable since the effective date
of the relevant lease contracts, as at the reporting date, is
as follows:

RREBH BKAREEERBERERRIES
MEABOEMHBREZREEE ZRE D
mF

2020 2019

20205 20194

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETFT AR¥TT

Within 1 year 18R - 19,945

Finance lease receivable is secured by lease assets.
Additional collaterals may be obtained from customer to
secure the repayment obligations under finance lease and
such collaterals include property, plant and equipment,
guarantee of the customer and/or its related parties.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the finance
lease was fully settled.

RUERMEBEERBUEEE EFIEI - BAINE
HERJEERIE UAMBEEEETZEM
SEEFEF AREAREEYE -BERR
B BRI/ ERB S ZHER

REZE2020F 12831 HIEFE MEHEER
EEE2IEN-
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21. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

21. HthEWREE

2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BTT ARBTF T
Cost D%
At 1 January R1B1H 5,372 3,735
Additions NE 437 1,637
At 31 December ®12831H 5,809 5,372
Accumulated amortisation REH#H
At 1 January B1A18 3,804 3,400
Amortisation provided during the year FAEHEEE 701 404
At 31 December R12H31H 4,505 3,804
Carrying amount REE
At 31 December M12831H 1,304 1,568
Other intangible assets represent computer software held HtEFEEEAEBFAZERIR MG - AF

by the Group. The amortisation charge for the year is
included in “administrative expenses” in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

22. INTERESTS IN UNCONSOLIDATED
STRUCTURED ENTITIES

To determine whether control exists in a structured entity,
the Group uses the following judgements:

For private equity funds where the Group involves as both
general partner and limited partner, the Group assesses
whether the combination of investments it holds together
with its remuneration creates exposure to variability of
returns from the activities of the fund that is of such
significance that it indicates that the fund manager is a
principal. The fund shall be consolidated if the Group acts
in the role of principal.

The Group served as general partner, manager of
structured entities and therefore had power over them. In
the opinion of the directors of the Company, the variable
returns the Group is exposed to over the structured entities
that the Group has interests are not significant. The Group
therefore did not consolidate these structured entities.
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22. INTERESTS IN UNCONSOLIDATED
STRUCTURED ENTITIES (Continued)

The Group classified the investments in these
unconsolidated structured entities as financial assets at

FVPL.

The size of assets under management, carrying amount and
maximum exposure to loss of the Group’s investments to
unconsolidated structured entities are as follows:

22. RIFEHEEEERZEDR (B

FERBNRZFFeHERUEERNRED
BRBAFTESFAEaNEMEE-

FEBRHIFFEHERBLEERNRENEES
EFRE REEARKREGERRNOT :

31 December 2020

2020%12H31H
Size of Maximum Income from
assets under Carrying exposure  structured
management amount to loss entity  Income type
B RX KRE&GHEK
BERE REE BRER BENBA BABE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEBTT ARBTR ARBTR ARBT:R
Private equity funds hWEREESE 7,557,842 369,519 369,519 88,964
53,780  Management fee
income
BEEWA
35,184 Investment gain
REWE
31 December 2019
2019F12831H
Size of Maximum  Income from
assets under Carrying exposure structured
management amount to loss entity  Income type
BB RA  REGEEKN
BERR REE BERR BBENBA  BWARE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEETT ARBTFR AREFT ARBTR
Private equity funds hEREES 7,938,752 383,269 383,269 77,996
58,624  Management fee
income
EEERA
19,372 Investment gain
REWE
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23. INVENTORIES 23. F&
2020 2019
20205 20194
RMB’'000 RMB‘000
AR¥EFT ARBKEF T
Raw materials [RA7 34,942 34,716
Work in progress EE S 40,994 41,540
Finished goods &pk 186,603 135,780
262,539 212,036
Provision against slow-moving inventories THiHTF R (84,202) (96,480)
178,337 115,556
24. ACCOUNTS AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 24. BIRFIBEREKRERE
2020 2019
20205 20194
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFT
Accounts receivables (note a) FEW TR IE (fata) 169,623 137,733
Less: loss allowance (note 41(b)) B ESIEEsE (BYaE410b)) (8,268) (13,707)
161,355 124,026
Bills receivables (note b) RN ZER (IaEb) 23,881 3,431
185,236 127,457
a) Accounts receivables a) FEURFRIE

Accounts receivables consist of trade receivables
and asset management fee receivables. The Group’s
trading terms with its customers are mainly on
credit. The credit periods for accounts receivables
of MLCC segment are generally one to four
months. The credit periods for accounts receivables
of investments and financial services segment
and other general trading segment are due from
the date of billing. The asset management fee is
received or receivable at the end of each quarter.
Each customer is assigned a maximum credit limit.
The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its
outstanding receivables and has a credit control
policy to minimise its credit risk. Overdue balances
are reviewed regularly by management. The
accounts receivables are non-interest-bearing.
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24. ACCOUNTS AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

a) Accounts receivables (Continued)

24. BERRIEREBKRERE (&)

a) BWRIE @)

if) An ageing analysis of the accounts receivables as i) MREREHAFX > BEBEWABRTBHRZEK

at the end of the reporting period based on the MIERE2TAOT :
revenue recognition date is as follows:

2020 2019

20204 20194

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®B T ARBT T

Within 90 days 90H R 79,901 47,087

91 to 180 days 912 180H 17,584 24,608

181 to 360 days 181E360H 19,892 20,204

1 to 2 years 1224 23,498 20,465

2 to 3 years 2FE3F 18,513 18,796

Over 3 years 3FE E 10,235 6,573

169,623 137,733

b) Bills receivables

The bills receivables were all due within one year
from the end of the reporting period.

As at the end of the reporting period, the ageing
analysis of bills receivables based on bills issue date
is as follows:

b) RBKRE

i) PRERWERIHREMRESIER
| H -

i) RESHR RERFILEHRSEEZ
B RBZREDTOT :

2020 2019

20204 20194

RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR®ETT AR¥T T

Within 90 days 90HA 22,721 1,551
91 to 180 days 91&180H - 1,880
181 to 360 days 1812360H 1,160 -
23,881 3,431

Further detail on the Group’s credit policy and credit
risk arising from accounts and bills receivables are
set out in note 41(b).

BRAEEEEHRRUKLERRIERE
WERBEEZEERBHNE—FFEH
M EE41(b) °
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25. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND

OTHER RECEIVABLES

25. FAfTRRIA B REMEKRRIE

2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’'000 RMB‘000
AREBTFT ARETT
Prepayments to suppliers TP HRERZFBNRIE 6,731 1,518
Other prepaid expenses HMMFA IR 5,799 5,253
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, WY 2~ R Ko sk B P #2 &
plant and equipment 25,709 140,867
Rental deposits HEeme 5,566 5,116
Other deposits Eis 513 2,526
Other tax receivables HAh U 18 21,219 5,230
Other receivables H e =IE 17,908 13,285
83,445 173,795
Impairment (note) BB (H1EL) (851) (851)
82,594 172,944
Representing: (AVE. I
Current BNHER 53,933 27,224
Non-current JERPHER 28,661 145,720
82,594 172,944
Note: Hrat -
The movements in the provision for impairment of other receivables HMEWRIEREEEEHUT -
are as follows:
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT
At 1 January and 31 December R1B1HKR12831H 851 851

Included in the above provision for impairment of other receivables is
a provision for individually impaired other receivables of RMB851,000
(2019: RMB851,000) with a total carrying amount of RMB851,000
(2019: RMB851,000). The individually impaired other receivables relate
to debtors that were in financial difficulties and are credit impaired.
The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements

over these balances.
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26. CASH AND BANK BALANCES AND 26. HRERRITEGREMRESREER
OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION
a) Cash and bank balances a) RERIBITLEER
2020 2019
20205 20194
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARETRT ARETT
Cash and bank balances 8% RIRITAS ER 60,298 175,257
Notes: W -

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s cash and bank
balances and time deposits denominated in RMB amounted
to RMB26,938,000 (2019: RMB68,988,000). Although
RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to
conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earn interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Short-term time deposits are made for
varying periods ranging from three months to one year
depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group
and respective time deposit rates. The bank balances are
deposited with creditworthy banks. The carrying amounts of
the cash and bank balances approximate their fair values.

R|EAR > ZEB AR KEIIEZ RS EIRITE
R E BT R 2R 23 A R 1526,938,0007T (20194
AE#568,988,0007T) ° AR B H R R HAM
S 28 RBEPBIRREZ GMNEERIRG)) K (4
BB EERVEEERE)  tEREEBBERE
EITINEEFZRITAARBRIAEMER

IRITIRETHIRBEE HIRITHERA KR T A KR
BF 2 B RERBRNINEEE1ERE
5 7 52 [ B9 R B 3R <5 7R SRAD M B & HA = 7R R
ERITEFFRNEERFZRITAN - HERIE
Tt REERE AT ERES-
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26. CASH AND BANK BALANCES AND 26. RERBPTEHREMREREER
OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION (&
(Continued)

b)  Reconciliation of liabilities arising from b) RBIEBFFELEGEZHI

financing activities

Obligations
under
Lease Bank and Bond finance
Liabilities  other loans payable lease Total
RITK HERE
HEaE Hth&E & &S i Mt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETrT ARETR AR®TR ARE®TR AR®ET:T
(Note 29) (Note 31)
(Hi5¥29) (fi5¥31)
At 1 January 2019 201918 1H - - 387,874 291 388,165
Impact on initial application of ERNEE SR e
IFRS 16 EABIRZ T E 45,412 - - (291) 45,121
New lease entered HINVE ik 2,774 - - - 2,774
Changes from financing cash flows FIZEREHREZ
=50 (12,444) 188,949 (414,031) - (237,526)
Exchange adjustments fE AR 293 199 8,783 - 9,275
Interest expenses (note 8(a)) FIEZH #13#86)) 3,115 11,594 17,374 - 32,083
At 31 December 2019 and #2019 128318 KR i?
at 1 January 2020 20201818 39,150 200,742 - - 239,892
New lease entered EIVE gicE| 10,363 - - - 10,363
Changes from financing cash flows FIZEREHREZ
28 (14,165) 10,869 - - (3,296)
Lease modification HESE 425 - - - 425
Exchange adjustments ERAEE (196) (10,528) - - (10,724)
Interest expenses (note 8(a)) FEZH (#8a) 2,301 19,053 - - 21,354
At 31 December 2020 2020 12H31H 37,878 220,136 - - 258,014
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27. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES
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27. BYEBESREREBNERE

2020 2019

20204 20194

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBETT ARETT

Trade payables FE(T B Z I8 63,771 40,819
Bills payables FEI R 7,799 3,731
71,570 44,550

a) An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the
end of the reporting period based on the suppliers’

statement date is as follows:

a) MBREPR HHUEDHE
HEZBNESRIBEZIRE

BRAMAE
DFWMT

2020 2019

20204 20194

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®B T ARBT T

Within 90 days 90H ™ 58,453 39,220
91 to 180 days 912 180H 5,011 1,164
181 to 360 days 181Z2360H - 1
1 to 2 years 1FEE25F 163 62
Over 2 years 28 E 144 372
63,771 40,819

b) The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are

normally settled within 30 to 120 days.

b) ENEBZMERTFR

1200 REAT -

—BR30E

©  An ageing analysis of the bills payables as at the end 0 REBEFHEFR REBXLHRASEEZ

of the reporting period based on bills issue date is as ENEHRZREDTUT
follows:

2020 2019

20204 20194

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TT ARETT

Within 90 days 90HA 7,799 3,375

91 to 180 days 91E180H - 356

7,799 }.7/31
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZE2020F 12831 H LEFE

28. DEFERRED INCOME, ACCRUALS AND 28. IRIEWA - FEETE R R HMEIRIE
OTHER PAYABLES
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT
Accruals FEstE R 2,205 6,560
Salary payables INE 36,374 36,751
Other payables for acquisition of WS REM2E ~ RS Re 58 8 2 HLMFE (=R 1B
property, plant and equipment 27,326 10,433
Other payables H At F& (S =RIE 10,232 16,296
Dividends payable FETAR S 88 88
Due to a non-controlling party of FET—MIEEEWB AR IFERS
a non-wholly-owned subsidiary 197 205
Financial liabilities measured at MEE AT 22 EMER
amortised cost 76,422 70,333
Deferred income (note 30) BIEUW A (H152£30) 2,856 2,856
Other tax payable HhfEIRIE 3,159 4,171
82,437 77,360

The amount due to a non-controlling party of a non-
wholly-owned subsidiary is unsecured, interest-free, and

repayable on demand.
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29. LEASE LIABILITIES

At 31 December 2020, lease liabilities were repayable as

Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 & ZE2020F 128331 HIEEE

29. THE&®E

1220205 12831H EEREESENT !

follows:
2020 2019
20205 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTFRT AR®ETT
Within 1 year 1R 14,084 10,013
After 1 year but within 2 years 1FRE2ZFER 9,685 10,557
After 2 years but within 5 years 2FEBBSEN 14,109 18,580
23,794 29,137
37,878 39,150
30. DEFERRED INCOME 30. REUWA
Government grants B 46 B
2020 2019
2020%F 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTFRT AR®ETT
Carrying amount at 1 January R1B1HZRmEE 20,453 22,962
Granted during the year FAEYE 503 352
Released as income (note 7) BREWA (H1527) (2,748) (2,861)
Carrying amount at 31 December R12A31H ZRmEE 18,208 20,453
Current portion included in deferred income, S FEIEIEIEW A ~ FESTE R &
accruals and other payables (note 28) H A FE T TRIE 2 BIRR &R
(Htz£28) (2,856) (2,856)
Non-current portion JERNERZER (D 15,352 17,597

The government grants have been received from various
government authorities specifically for the purchases of
qualified plant and equipment in respect of the production
of MLCC. Except for the condition that the government

grants must be specifically used for the purchases of
qualified plant and equipment in respect of the production
of MLCC, there are no other conditions attached to these

grants.

RABBRAREARRZBRFHEEREBE
EEMLCCZEENRMBRE KRR o BFREUT MRS
HABEFREBELEEMICCZEERKRE K
RBE—IREIN BEMAL EE MK
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31. BANK AND OTHER LOANS 31. RITRHEHMERR
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRT AR®ETT
Bank loan: RITEMN
Secured and repayable within one year ~ BRI AR —FEREER 8,000 -
Other loan that contain a repayment on BEERERFERZMBEXR
demand clause (show under current MRBHERETZY) BEEEZ
liabilities) but repayable: HMEMN :
Unsecured and repayable within a period IR A AN BB —FEFEA
of more than one year but not MERER
exceeding two years 212,136 -
Unsecured and repayable within a period T A AN BEMFEETEA
of more than two years but not hFERER
exceeding five years - 200,742
220,136 200,742

a) At 31 December 2020, the Group’s bank loan and
bank facility was secured by a corporate guarantee
provided by Chuzhou Puhui Financing Guarantee
Co., Ltd.*, an independent third party.

b) The carrying amounts of the bank approximated its
fair value.

Q) At 31 December 2020, bank loan of 8,000,000 was
at fixed rates 3.7%.

d) At 31 December 2020, other loans comprised
of outstanding principal and interests of
RMB212,136,000 (2019: RMB200,742,000) which
was due to the independent third parties to the
Group. The principal of the other loans bore interest
at the rate of 10% per annum.
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32. DEFERRED TAX IN THE 32. ZEMBERRARPEIEEIRIE
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION
a) Deferred tax assets recognised a) DEHRIBZELERESE
Credit loss Impairment
Provision allowance of items of
against of accounts property,
slow-moving and other plant and
inventories receivables equipment Total
FEUFRIE
R E MK L ERN T
BHEE REZEEE K&
BE EEEEE EHERE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB‘000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETRT ARBTT ARETT
At 1 January 2019 1R201951 818 12,569 2,043 9,440 24,052
Effect of foreign currency exchange JMEER =ZES 2
differences (note 9) (#7:%9) = 2 = 2
Credited/(charged) to the FARGEIEEN
consolidated statement of profit ~ EAthZEU R
or loss and other comprehensive 5t A/ (15&) (#7z29)
income during the year (note 9) 1,918 (72) (93) 1,753
At 31 December 2019 and 12019128318 K&
1 January 2020 20201 81H 14,487 1,973 9,347 25,807
Effect of foreign currency exchange JMEFEREFRFZE (H1:29)
differences (note 9) - (6) = (6)
(Charged)/credited to the FERRGEIER R
consolidated statement of profit ~ EAthZEU R
or loss and other comprehensive  (0BR) /FFA (#7:#9)
income during the year (note 9) (1,123) (839) 107 (1,855)
At 31 December 2020 112020412H31H 13,364 1,128 9,454 23,946
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32. DEFERRED TAX IN THE
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)

b) Deferred tax liabilities recognised

32. RAEMBRRRRPIIEERIE (&

b) BHREZELERERR

Depreciation
allowances in

excess of

Withholding related
taxes depreciation Total

i

MR ERN
SEL TERE #ast
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARBTT ARBFT

At 1 January 2019 72019 1H1H 28,047 15,860 43,907
Charged/(credited) to the FRNREEEIETR

consolidated statement of profit Hh 2| ma=

or loss and other comprehensive neg, GtA)

income during the year (note 9) (Hfz£9) (5,875) 8,104 2,229
At 31 December 2019 and 2019 12831H %

1 January 2020 2020F181H 22,172 23,964 46,136
Credited to the consolidated FARGEERKR

statement of profit or loss and Hh > mkm*

other comprehensive income st A (B7£9)

during the year (note 9) (944) (4,623) (5,567)
At 31 December 2020 $22020F12831H 21,228 19,341 40,569

Pursuant to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, a
10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to
foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises
established in Mainland China. The requirement is effective
from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31
December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be
applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland China
and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the Group,
the applicable rate is 5%. The Group is therefore liable
to withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those
subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect of
earnings generated as from 1 January 2008.
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32. DEFERRED TAX IN THE
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)

b) Deferred tax liabilities recognised (Continued)

At 31 December 2020, there was no significant
unrecognised deferred tax liability (2019: nil) for taxes that
would be payable on the unremitted earnings of certain
Group's subsidiaries.

Q) Deferred tax assets not recognised

As at 31 December 2020, the Group has unused
tax losses of approximately RMB120,926,000 (2019:
RMB41,976,000) available for offset against future profits.
No deferred tax was recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020
(2019: nil) since it is not probable that future taxable profits
against which the losses can be utilised will be available
in the relevant tax jurisdiction and entity. Expiry dates of
unrecognised tax losses are as follows:

32. REMBRRRPIIELERIE (&

b) BHIBZELZREER (&

R2020F12B31H  AEBETHWE AT R
EABAN MBI EANSRKBERZIEILERIE
BfE (20194 : ) o

0 RERZBREREEE

R2020FE 12831 H "EBB RS HERIEES
BHARM120,926,0007% (20194 : AR
41,976,0007T) A K EH R A EF - 522020
F12B31H HREBARTA iEERER
HAOEHBARKRERRA BUEBBRIERS
B HWERLCRBAEKEVBEREEXTESD
(2019F | ) - AR MNBEEBEBEVIHE AW
o

2020 2019
202045 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRT AR®TT

Unrecognised tax losses will expire in: REERMIBEER N U TREEIE
2024 20245 24,941 24,941
2025 20254 4,583 -
2029 20294 77,399 -
106,923 24,941
Unrecognised tax losses without expiry date M7 #EZ|HR H 2 R HERIRIEE 18 14,003 17,035
120,926 41,976
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33. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS

a) Share award scheme by the Company

On 14 July 2017 (the “Adoption Date"”), the Board adopted
a share award scheme (the “Scheme”) for the purposes
of (i) providing the beneficiaries with an opportunity
to acquire a proprietary interest in the Company; (i)
encouraging and retaining the beneficiaries to work with
the Company; and (iii) providing additional incentive
for the beneficiaries to achieve performance goals, with
a view to achieving the objectives of increasing the
value of the Company and aligning the interests of the
beneficiaries directly to the shareholders of the Company
through ownership of shares. A trustee, as an independent
third party, was appointed by the Company for the
administration of the Scheme. The award shares may be
satisfied by (i) existing shares to be acquired by the trustee
from the market; or (ii) new shares to be allotted and issued
to the trustee by the Company under the mandate sought
from the shareholders in its general meeting, in both
case the costs of which will be borne by the Company.
The trustee shall hold such shares in trust until they are
vested to the beneficiaries in accordance to the rules of the
Scheme.

The directors of the Company may, from time to time,
at its discretion select any employee of the Group for
participation in the Scheme and grant such number of
awarded shares to any selected employee of the Group at
nil consideration. The directors of the Company are entitled
to impose any conditions with respect to the vesting of the
awarded shares.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 & ZE2020F 128331 HIEEE

33. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

a) Share award scheme by the Company
(Continued)

The Scheme came into effect on the Adoption Date, and
shall terminate on the earlier of (i) the tenth anniversary
date of the Adoption Date; and (ii) such date of early
termination as determined by the directors of the
Company.

The aggregate number of shares, whether they are new
shares to be allotted and issued by the Company or
existing shares to be purchased on-market by the trustee,
underlying all grants made pursuant to the Scheme shall
not exceed in total 10% of the Company’s issued share
capital as at the Adoption Date (the “Scheme Limit”). No
account shall be taken into the calculation of the Scheme
Limit of any shares where the right to acquire such shares
has been released or lapsed in accordance with the
Scheme. The Scheme Limit may be refreshed from time to
time subject to obtaining of prior approval from the Board
(the “New Approval”) but in any event the aggregate
number of award shares administered under the Scheme
shall not exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the date of the New Approval.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, no share of
the Company has been purchased from the open market
(2019: nil). At 31 December 2020, no share of the
Company was held in trust by the trustee (2019: nil).

33. RELGEURMDARRZRS (&

a) FARZKRHEREE (B

ST R BEN UAFRUTRELIR
WEHB&LE ()BERMBBMESRTEE &
(IVERBEFAENRELIEAN-

RIBESERHEZFAARD (BEREX QSR A
ERETZFRONDAZFEARKTEHE LEBA
ZHRAERD BESHTEBBBERT N HRM
HEEBEITRAZ10% (T5t8] ER1) 5t
HEtE LIRE R B WEER B WA R
KUz ERARDAESFEERN B LR
REFGEAME (THLE) BARKEN
WRBEFSEEZRBROMBHER DAY
FERBBARANFHEBREETREAZ
10%

REE2020F12831HLEEE  HER AR
MEBATAERRABRMD (20194F : ) -1
2020F12H831H R A EUGEEENF
BEEAAEXABRM (201945 © #) o
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZE2020F 12831 H LEFE

33.

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

a) Share award sche
(Continued)

Movements in the number of awarded shares outstanding

during the years are as foll

me by the Company

OwWs!:

33.

a)

REGEBURDABRZR S (@)

AT ZRDERFE (B

FREHRTERBROBZELESHUT :

Number of awarded shares

®BRHYE
Balance at
31 December
Fair value Balance at Lapsed 2019 and Lapsed Balance at
Date of grant per share 1 January during 1 January during 31 December
Categories of awardees (Note 1) (Note 2) 2019 the year 2020 the year 2020
#2019%
128318k
BRATHE 120195 20205 120205

ERBARR RHRE (1) (W#2)  1B1RZ&H RERKXY  1A1HZES RERKH  12A3NEZER

Directors of the Company (note 4) 14 July 2017 RMB1 5,958,000 - 5,958,000 - 5,958,000

FRTEE (Hi24) 017E78148 AEEIT

Notes: B -

1 The date of award refers to the date on which the selected 1 #32E) B IS E R B R BR A TR BI AR (D AV AR
employees agreed to undertake to hold the awarded shares PEERERMITRRZ R M IZETEIRANRZ
on the terms on which they are granted and agreed to be HER-
bound by the rules of the Share Award Scheme.

2 The fair value of the awarded shares are based on the fair 2 BRBRH 2 AFETREBEENEHERZ AT EE
value at the date of grant. e

3 The awarded shares granted to the beneficiaries during the 3 REE2017F12B31HEEER T Zm A 2 525
year ended 31 December 2017 would be vested in three D =#EFE > SHE#31,986,00002 817 » & &
tranches of 1,986,000 shares each on the vesting date on HHBD B 220184« 20194 20203831 H ° fi
31 March 2018, 2019 and 2020 respectively. Subject to the KRR 2 ENET 8B W& > 15 E 5 B R A E ]
expiration of the Share Award Scheme, in the event that the IEEFEZITEREB 2 HiEMN B EE R BT
specific vesting conditions cannot be fulfilled on a particular > EE AR EER - RO REN T EIERE  E
vesting date of any given year, the entire vesting schedule a1 1 AR AT 18 15 2R 57 88 RO HE BN AR AP A 25 SR L A 23
shall be adjourned until such conditions are met. Upon expiry BIERRD ©
of the Share Award Scheme, any outstanding but unvested
award shares shall lapse and become returned shares.

4 5,958,000 awarded shares granted during the year ended 4 REBE2017F12B31HEFERTERERE

31 December 2017 were granted to Mr. Zhou Chunhua. The

share options lapsed due to the resignation of the director.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the vesting
conditions cannot be fulfilled and the vesting schedule has

been adjourned.

TIANLI HOLDINGS GROUP LIMIT
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 & ZE2020F 128331 HIEEE

33. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

b) Share award granted by the Company’s
shareholder

A share award arrangement was entered into by Mr.
Huang and Cosmic Riches Investments Limited (“Cosmic
Riches”), a shareholder of the Company, on 29 April 2016,
pursuant to which Mr. Huang acquired 49,600,350 shares
of the Company (“Interested Shares”) from Cosmic Riches
at a consideration of HK$101,681,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB86,690,000), which is payable by five
yearly installments and is offset by the yearly sign-on bonus
of the same amount for five years granted by Cosmic
Riches to Mr. Huang as an incentive to join the Company.
The Interested Shares are subject to a lock-up period of
five years and maximum of 20% of the Interested Shares
may be disposed of in each year thereafter. The vesting of
Interested Shares is five years.

The average fair value of each Interested Shares of HK$1.53
is estimated by using the fair value (that is market value)
of the Company’s share closing price at the date of grant
less the cost for securing put options (“Put Options”).
The Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model was employed
in deriving the fair value of the Put Options which was
estimated on the date of grant using the following
assumptions:

64.67% — 73.90%
1.54% - 1.77%
6 — 10 years

Expected volatility (%)
Risk free interest rate (%)
Lock-up period (years)

34. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Defined contribution retirement plans

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(“the MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees
employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined
contribution retirement plan administered by independent
trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its
employees are each required to make contributions to the
plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject
to a cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000.
Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

33. RELGEURMDARRZRS (&

b) AAFRRFREZRDER

BEEBRRAR (MM JiL—mKM®
HEZH Bl - BRAEOHBBKREESQ
349,600,350 KM (TEHZRM1) > K
BA101,681,0008 T (HERKY AR
86,690,0007T) ' ASFEDHAANIZ[ 1
MR EFTELEEANMARAT ZEEBHH
hEHESESHEMBESHBHE ERRMK
ELIEZ2ER 2 RESERSIVELERRD
FI20% EmBRMD 2 REBEHARE-

2016548290 > =L £ 8 KRB K E M
[

EREGRNZFHAFER1.538B7T b
BRARARMIEERHEXRZKRHEN R
A (TEhMR) 2 REMERZATE
(BT {E) (et - B Z A TEDHAR
Ne—SHNAEEERASYH  ERNEEA
HATR A P RR 511 ¢

FTEHA R 18 (%) 64.67% —73.90%
4 8 b K 2R (%) 1.54% —1.77%

ZEH (F)
34. EERHKEF

TERR TR RS E

6— 104

AEBRBESFBECRFIELABESAEKEAE) A
SEB(BEEI))EENRERILAFEA
Beste (MaBEestd)) - aEETE 22—
EHBUISEAESENCREMETEBARE R
ot BREREED P BZEENRRM
WAZ5%ME T8I (EH = AR B W AL
30,0008 T4 LR o @ &t 8 1F i B9 1 =R B B
il
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZE2020F 12831 H LEFE

34. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS
(CONTINUED)

Defined contribution retirement plans (Continued)

The Group also participates in a state-managed retirement
benefit scheme operated by the government of the PRC.
The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are
members of a state-managed retirement benefit scheme.
The subsidiaries are required to contribute a specified
percentage of payroll costs to the retirement benefit
scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the retirement benefit scheme is to
make the specified contributions.

The total cost charged to profit or loss of RMB4,642,000
(2019: RMB10,377,000) represents contributions paid
to these schemes by the Group for the year ended 31
December 2020. As at 31 December 2020, there were no
material forfeitures available to offset the Group’s future
contributions (2019: nil).

35. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
OF THE COMPANY

34. EEERKEF (&

EFEMMBAETE (2

FEBRTS2M-—BEBRAFERAFRINERE
BRAEHNGE -AEBEETTENBELASNE
EXN2NMBEREZRKEBHNFE -ZEHBEQ
BARFEMAZRHE B D LA BRAKEBF G
EMFEMRUAZERIEHRES - AEEM
WEERKREMNGFENE-—SEE/MIEEDN
R o

STABTAER A ANRTE4,642,0007T (2019
F: ARE®10,377,0007T) HAEE# E2020
F12A3VBLEEERBREHRMZHR-
JR2020F 128310 > WEE KB EEE A K
HAEBZ RRMER (20195F : &) -

35. EABMBEKRAR

2020 2019
20205 20194
Notes RMB’'000 RMB'000
izt AR¥FTxT ARKTT

Non-current assets ERHEE
Property, plant and equipment ME-BERZE 4 4
Investments in subsidiaries RB AT 2K E 252,255 252,255
252,259 252,259

Current assets RENEE
Due from subsidiaries A NG 895,607 925,719
Deposits and prepayments & RFENRIE 20 20
Cash and bank balances IBE K IRTT 5,353 978
900,980 926,717
Current liabilities Bt =K

Accruals and other payables FEST & A & H A FE S 7RIE 3,624 4,022
Due to subsidiaries FET K B A B = IE 490,142 498,118
493,766 502,140
Net current assets MENEERE 407,214 424,577
NET ASSETS BEFRE 659,473 676,836

CAPITAL AND RESERVES BARKEE
Share capital [N 36(a) 6,637 6,637
Reserves G 36(b) 652,836 670,199
TOTAL EQUITY 4ERE TS 659,473 676,336
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36. CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Notes to the Financial Statements

AA 5 e R MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & ZE2020F 128331 HIEEE

36. BAKHE

a)  Share capital a) MRKR#E
Authorised and issued share capital EEREEITRE
2020 2019
20204 20194
HKD'000 HKD'000
FHET FAEIT
Authorised: ETE
1,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 1,000,000,000R/% & I& EI{80.0178 7T
HK$0.01 each 2 ZiE 10,000 10,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRHE
At the beginning and end of the year TR K A 744,750,0008%
744,750,000 (2019: 744,750,000) (20194 : 744,750,00008%)
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each SREEC.01EB T EER 7,448 7,448
Equivalent to RMB’000 AREFTZ%EE 6,637 6,637

The owners of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to
one vote per share at general meetings of the Company. All
ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s

residual assets.

R A o

EERZEAEAEREEAFEIRNRE I
MERRNMEFTRARRAGLEA—FX
RE-FIEEBRAVARTDZAGFEEZA
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZE2020F 12831 H LEFE

36. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued) 36. BEXRKEHE @)

b)  Capital and Reserves b) EXRK#E

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements FEBRRAFERBTIFFEZRFEERERE
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the FRMBRRPIGEEEGEFHRETY
consolidated statement of changes in equity of the financial

statements.

Details of the changes in the Company’s individual FNEFRBARBENERN D 2 E B %
components of equity between the beginning and the end BENUWT -

of the year are set out below:
The Company ¥ AT

Attributable to owners of the Company

FATER AELL
Share Share
premium  Contributed award Accumulated Total
Share capital account surplus reserve losses equity
&in

ks  RivaBk - RERE 2 ZBES  RHEH BiEn
RVMB'0OO ~ RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'O00  RMB000  RMB'000
ARETT ARETR ARETR ARBTT ARETR ARETR

At 1 January 2019 201951818 6,637 491,518 364,952 3,062 (180,146) 686,023
Loss and total comprehensive FRBEBEREABERE
loss for the year - - - - (10,722) (10,722)

Recognition of equity-settled share-based HERRAR (7 12 B =1 8118 MR AR E
payment expenses under share award  BEMRBAERZ IHEZ

scheme (note 33(3)) (H1533()) - - - 1,535 - 1,535
At 31 December 2019 12019%12831H 6,637 491,518 364,952 4,597 (190,868) 676,836
At 1 January 2020 1202051818 6,637 491,518 364,952 4,597 (190,868) 676,836
Loss and total comprehensive FRBBERZMEEEE

loss for the year - - - - (17,741) (17,741)

Recognition of equity-settled share-based P52 R 17 52 B 2118 TR ikiE
payment expenses under share award S EMRNARR Z BT

scheme (note 33(a)) (H1533()) - - - 378 - 378
At 31 December 2020 172020E12A318 6,637 491,518 364,952 4,975 (208,609) 659,473

'I 90 TIANLI HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED XFZEREMERAE
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 & ZE2020F 128331 HIEEE

36. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)

<) Nature and purpose of reserves
i) Share premium

Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman
Islands, the share premium account of the Company is
distributable to the shareholders of the Company provided
that immediately following the date on which a dividend
is proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a
position to pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary
course of business.

ii) Contributed surplus
The contributed surplus of the Group represents:

- the difference of RMB203,536,000 being the excess
of the nominal value of the shares and contributed
surplus of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the
group reorganisation over the nominal value of the
Company’s shares issued in exchange therefor;

- the deficit of RMB2,823,000 arising from the
acquisition of Dongguan Eyang Technology
Development Co., Ltd. (“DG Eyang”) from the non-
controlling shareholders of DG Eyang;

- the deficit of RMB1,774,000 arising from the
disposal of Shenzhen Eycom Technology Co., Ltd. to
the related party;

- the credit of RMB9,468,000 arising from the
deemed contribution from the shareholders when
acquiring Shenzhen Eyang Energy Company Limited
and its subsidiary (the “Energy Group”) during the
year ended 31 December 2012; and

- the deficit of RMB650,000 arising from deemed
distribution to the shareholders when disposing the
Energy Group during the year ended 31 December
2013.

36. BAXKHE E
0 HEZEERAR

i) BR17EE

RIERSBEEREE (ES)  XRATAZKRMD
HERUDIKTFTEARDRE  BERERZD
KREERR KRB ERENBERBER
PHEEETS -

i) EHEE
NEBEBHMBRIE

— REEEE4HCEWENRBATIZRME
EREHBHBERAT TR MEETT
ZRmhEEzEZ%8 AR®203,536,000
7T 5

— HARETFHRXERARAA (TR
RFB) FERERRRBREFHME
FrRBmAANRTE2,823,0007T ;

= KA EEFITEENEEREAT
EEZEMARM1,774,0007T ;

= BE2012F12831HIEEE > £k iE
FINTFHRERBREABRENEB ARG
(TSERER)) B BIEREIEELE
2 #EIR AR %9,468,0007T 5 &

= HZE2013F12B31HLEEE ITHE
FEREBER BERREDIREEZE
4 AR #650,0007T °
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36. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)

<) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)
iii) Share award reserve

The share award reserve comprises the portion of the fair
value of unvested outstanding award shares granted by
the Company that has been recognised in accordance with
the accounting policy adopted for share-based payments in
note 2(t)(ii).

iv)  Exchange fluctuation reserve

The exchange fluctuation reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation of the
financial statements of foreign operations. The reserve is
dealt with in accordance with the accounting policy set out
in note 2(x).

v) Fair value reserve (non-recycling)

The fair value reserve (non-recycling) comprises the
cumulative net change in the fair value of equity
investment designated at FVOCI under IFRS 9 that are held
at the end of the reporting period (see note 2(i)).

vi) Statutory reserve

Pursuant to applicable PRC regulations, certain PRC
subsidiaries in the Group are required to appropriate 10%
of their profit after tax (after offsetting prior year losses)
to the statutory reserve until such reserve reaches 50%
of their registered capital. Transfers to the reserve must
be made before distribution of dividends to shareholders.
Upon approval by relevant authorities, the statutory
reserve can be utilised to offset the accumulated loss or
to increase the paid-up capital of the subsidiary, provided
that the balance after such issue is not less than 25% of its
registered capital.

TIANLI HOLDINGS GROUP LIMITED XFZEREMERAE
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i)  ROZBFEE

RNERMREFEEEARATDZREBHRITE
RERMDZATEERD  ZEDAFETIRE
BysE2(t) (i) B RAUKRMD A ERZ M XA
ZE S BRETHRENR

iv) EEREHFE

EXREECEREREBIINEFTHHTR
KFFEEZHNEER - REERZEMEE2(x)F
BBt HRREE-

v)  AFEFE (FATAE)

AT ERFE (FAERLD BERSHARMAFR
BERVBHRESZERNFINEE AR A FES
AEMEEWRZNREREZ ATERZ
B3R (RM&E2() °

vi) CEEFE

REBEEBRRBER c&EBETHENELQ
BIARHI10%FEMNEBEN (EREBATFEES
B DBELAERE BEERBEAMREZ
50% - EBEBRANRBRRDIKKRSAEL -
KAEMERMER AEMB A AR IEHERE
BIENENNBAR ZEBERZ  MEZIEH
B EHRAFDRHEEMEERZ25%°
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 & ZE2020F 128331 HIEEE

36. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)

d) Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group's capital management
are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business and maximize shareholders’ value.

The Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital
requirements except for one subsidiary licensed by the
Securities and Futures Commission which is obliged to
meet the regulatory liquid capital requirements under the
Securities and Futures (Financial Resources) Rules (“FRR") at
all times.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. For
the licensed subsidiary, the Group ensures the licensed
subsidiary maintains a liquid capital level adequate to
support the level of activities with sufficient buffer to
accommodate for increase in liquidity requirements arising
from potential increase in the level of business activities.
During the financial year, the licensed subsidiary complied
with the liquid capital requirements under the FRR at all
times. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or
processes for managing capital during the years ended 31
December 2020 and 2019.

36. BEXK#E &
d E&xEE

AEREAEEZTEZENRRAAERE
FECERERFEENERLER UXFER
TERRREBEZRAL-

FEBERIRRNEMIISHEMNZELRE
KROEEBSRMEEBEEREZE TR
—BNBE AR RKREABETES KRS (MHE
) RA (T HERFR) BTFHNRBMEESR

EERE-

FAEBEBREEAERBIBRELSERLE S
HEEHBAE ATHSTABABELAEE K
EENEABREREZRESZ T OREBEFE
BEAFETHRD - MIFEMBARTME » K
EERERBFENBADHIFTEUNIFER L
KFEZRERKFE  TEETRDNEHE
SO BEHEFT T KFEETEEME M
MBUBER - RAVBEER FRENBAF
—BHETHHRERFUNEBETHNREMEE AR
E B E2020F &2019F12A31BLEEE »
EEBEAZERE BRABERLEEE
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZE2020F 12831 H LEFE

36. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)

d) Capital management (Continued)

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio,
which is net debt divided by capital plus net debt. Net
debt is calculated as the sum of bank and other loans,
obligations under finance lease, lease liabilities, trade and
bills payables and accruals and other payables (excluding
deferred income and receipts in advance) less cash and
cash equivalents. Capital represents equity attributable
to owners of the Company (excluding share capital). The
Group's policy is to keep the gearing ratio at a reasonable
level. The gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting
periods are as follows:

36. BEXKfHEE &
d EBE&EE @)

AEBUEERRIERERESN EEA[LL
REFEFHEUBEEAMEFRE - BREBHR
ThEMER MEEERE -HEER I
NESMERBNRE Bt ERRAEMEN
RE(FEFEETERAREBWIEA) ZMiER
ERBEEEFBYSABT - BEXRELTRATAEEAZ
s (FEERE) AEEZBRRERE
ERRALEXERFESEZ KT L REREFHEXR
ZEERRLERNT

2020 2019
2020%F 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBFT ARBTT
Bank and other loans RITREMER 220,136 200,742
Lease liabilities HEaE| 37,878 39,150
Trade and bills payables eI B ZMIB RN R 71,570 44,550
Accruals and other payables FEST & A A E A & TIB 79,581 74,504
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (note 26) A : W& KIREEBEY) (H:226) (60,298) (175,257)
Net debt BET 348,867 183,689
Total equity excluding share capital WarEm (REERA) 864,046 861,251
Equity and net debt W fOR RS 1,212,913 1,044,940
Gearing ratios BEAELX 29% 18%
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37. COMMITMENTS

a) Operating lease commitments
i) The Group as lessor

The Group leases its investment property (note 15) under
operating lease arrangements. Leases are negotiated for
terms ranging from one to eight years, with an option to
renew the lease when all terms are renegotiated. None of
the leases includes contingent rentals.

At 31 December 2020, total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases in place
will be receivable by the Group in future period as follows:

37. KiE
a) T4 AR

) FEEFEZLHTEAA

FEERBESHOZHEHREY X (M
15) KENZHENEHRHIEESELRF |
EERENEAMARAKER ZFHEOT
BENAEE-

FR2020F 128310 > AEER X KRR AR R
BRAFCHHOCERNBERZZ RRREAE
TN

2020 2019

20205 20195

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTRT AR®ETT

Within one year 15K 1,768 5,321
After one year but within five years 1B EFRN 5,067 12,176
After five years 5% - 561
6,835 18,058

ii) The Group as lessee

The Group is the lessee in respect of certain of its factories
and office premises under operating lease arrangements.
Leases for properties are negotiated for terms of two to six
years, with an option to renew the lease when all terms
are renegotiated. None of the leases includes contingent
rentals. Pursuant to the lease agreements, the monthly
lease charges for certain leases is subject to review by the
landlord based on market terms every two years.

i)  FEEEHBEABA

AEERERNKERNZHBETETERE R
WMAMERNAKBA-WEBRN FHHEM
P2EECF R EERENEBAA FARE
BH - ZFHOTEEHRAEE - BREBOH
HOAETHANSEHEERARBEETIRED
SR EmEEITIEST -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZE2020F 12831 H LEFE

37. COMMITMENTS (Continued)
b) Capital commitments
Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December 2020

not provided for in the financial statements were as
follows:

37. K (&)
b) BRI

R2020F12B3 1B AR BHRERFEBZ
BRAENT

2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AREBTT ARETT

Contracted for: [EEES
Construction EH 123,748 =
Plant and machinery %% = Bz 1 25 36,360 102,527
Fund Investments HEERE 95,973 77,702
256,081 180,229

38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES

In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in
these financial statements, the Group had the following
transactions with related parties during the year and
balances with related parties at the end of the reporting
period:

Key management personnel remuneration
The key management personnel include directors of the

Company (note 10) and certain highest paid employees
(note 11), and their remuneration is as follows:

38. PBA X P REEEF

GRZEVBERREMEBFAZRZIN &
EERFRNERABR SRS RNBSHRA
R HG T 2 ASERAOE ¢

TEEEEASZHM
TEEERBAEREERR

- U

BEE (FFE10) &
ETREHES (WaE11)  HiFmzBuo T :

2020 2019

202045 20195

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETr ARBTT

Short-term employee benefits HES RN 25,175 23,607
Post-employment benefits EERBEET 169 104
Equity compensation benefits A mERT 378 1,535
25,722 25,246

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note

8(b)).
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39. PARTICULAR OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 39.

COMPANY

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December

Notes to the Financial Statements

AA 5 e R MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & ZE2020F 128331 HIEEE

ERABEIMBAB ZHBER

FTENBABNR2020F 12831 HZEBER

2020 are as follows: Wwr
Place of Issued and Percentage of
incorporation/ fully paid-up/ equity attributable to
Name operation registered capital the Company Principal activities
g AR SR ERTREREMEE FAFEMGREE AL TEEHR
Direct Indirect
B R
% %
Eyang Management Co., Limited BVI/HK 10,000 ordinary shares of 100 - Investment holding
US$1 each
EBREUHE/TE 1000085 RERIZETZ RETKR
EER
Hong Kong Eyang Holdings (Group) ~ HK/PRC 10,000 ordinary shares - 100 Investment holding
Co., Limited
EEFHER &E) FRAT &4,/ 10,0008% & 48 % REZR
Hong Kong Eyang Technology BVI/HK 50,000 ordinary shares = 100 Trading of MLCC
Co., Limited of US$1 each
HEEEUHE/EF 50000RERAEE BEMLCC
1ETZ BER
Hong Kong Eyang Electronics Limited ~ HK/PRC 500,000 ordinary shares - 100 Investment holding and
trading of MLCC
EEFHRETERAA &4,/ 500,0008% & &A% RERRKREEMLCC
A FERRERERAR* PRC/PRC Registered capital of - 100 Manufacture and sale of
RMB350,000,000 MLCC
i,/ s E A AR #350,000,0007 BUERIHEMLCC
Anhui Jineyang Electronic PRC/PRC Registered capital of - 100 Manufacture of MLCC
Technology Co., Ltd. RMB4,500,000
2HEFHEFREERAT e,/ HE &R AR 4,500,000 BEMLCC
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FAFsERAR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZE2020F 12831 H LEFE

39. PARTICULAR OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 39. KXATIMBARZHRER (&)
COMPANY (Continued)
Place of Issued and Percentage of
incorporation/ fully paid-up/ equity attributable to
Name operation registered capital the Company Principal activities
%8 MR EEME ERTREREMRE FAERIGRERSL FEXEH
Direct  Indirect
E# A
% %
BREFHN=EEERAT PRC/PRC Paid-up capital of - 100  Property holding
RMB11,000,000 out
of registered capital of
RMB20,000,000
i,/ HE AR #20,000,0007 ESSE
AMERRERHELR
AE#11,000,00070
ZHFBRERERERAT PRC/PRC Paid-up capital of RMB Nil = 100 Inactive
out of registered capital of
RMB100,000,000
i,/ HE AR #100,000,0007c £ BEREX
BEAREHERARES T
FITEFHBRRZERERAG"  PRC/PRC Paid-up capital of = 100 Inactive
RMB35,000,000 out
of registered capital of
RMB350,000,000
e,/ HE AR #35,000,0007¢ BRE%
AfMERRESELX
A #35,000,0007%
NER Management Ltd. BVI/HK 1 ordinary share of US$1 100 - Inactive
HERZHE /& \REEIETZEER BXREX
Tianli Financial Limited HK/HK 55,000,000 ordinary shares - 100 License corporation and
provision of advisory
services
FAHERERAT &8/ 5% 55,000,000 B 1& K R B R R AR
Tianli Investment Management Limited Cayman 1 ordinary share of US$1 - 100 Provision for fund
management services
HE IREEIETZEER RUEESERRY
Tianli Financial Group Limited Cayman/HK 1 ordinary share of US$1 100 - Investment holding
BE /&8 REEI1ZTZ B8R REER
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Notes to the Financial Statements

AA 5 e R MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & ZE2020F 128331 HIEEE

39. PARTICULAR OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 39. XRFEMBARZHIEER (&)

COMPANY (Continued)

Place of Issued and Percentage of
incorporation/ fully paid-up/ equity attributable to
Name operation registered capital the Company Principal activities
%8 MR EEME ERTREREMRE FAERIERERSL FEEH
Direct  Indirect
E# A
% %
Tianli Capital Limited Cayman/Cayman 1 ordinary share of US$1 = 100 Investment in private funds
e /He REEIZTZEBR hWEETERE
Tianli Global Opportunities Cayman/Cayman 1 ordinary share of US$1 - 100  General Partner of
Investment Partners Limited investment private fund
e/ He REEIZTZEBR MWEEETREEBEBA
Tianli China Opportunities Fund | Cayman/Cayman 1 ordinary share of US$1 - 100 General Partner of
Limited investment private fund
HE /He IREEIETZEER WEEEREEREBA
Tianli China Opportunities Fund |l Cayman/Cayman 1 ordinary share of US$1 = 100  General Partner of
Limited investment private fund
BHe/He REEI1ETZ B8R IWEESREERBEBA
Tianli UK Opportunities Fund Limited ~ Cayman/Cayman 1 ordinary share of US$1 - 100  General Partner of
investment private fund
BHe/He REEIZTZEBR MWEEEREEBEBA
Tianli US Opportunities Fund Limited ~ Cayman/Cayman 1 ordinary share of US$1 - 100 General Partner of
investment private fund
HE /He IREEIETZEER WEEEREEREBA
Tianli Private Debt Investment Cayman/Cayman 1 ordinary share of US$1 = 100  General Partner of
Partners Limited investment private fund
e/ /He REEIETZ B8R IWEESTREEBEBA
Tianli Private Debt Fund Cayman/Cayman 1 ordinary share of US$1 - 100  General Partner of
Investment Limited investment private fund
BHe/He REEIZTZEBR MWEEETREEBEBA
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FAFsERAR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZE2020F 12831 H LEFE

39. PARTICULAR OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 39.
COMPANY (Continued)

ERATEMBABZHIBER (&)

Place of Issued and Percentage of
incorporation/ fully paid-up/ equity attributable to
Name operation registered capital the Company Principal activities
0 MR EEME ERTREREMRE FAERIGRERSL FEXEH
Direct  Indirect
E# A
% %
Tianli Public Markets Investment Cayman/Cayman 1 ordinary share of US$1 = 100 General Partner of
Partners Limited investment private fund
BHe/ e REEIZETZEBR MWEETREEBEBA
Tianli Special Situations Investment Cayman/Cayman 1 ordinary share of US$1 - 100  General Partner of
Partners Limited investment private fund
GV REEIZTZEBR MWEEETREEEEBA
Tianli M & A Investment Limited Cayman/Cayman 1 ordinary share of US$1 - 100  General Partner of
investment private fund
e /He REEI1ZTZ B8R MEEEREEREBA
Asia Enhanced Income Investment Ltd.  Cayman/Cayman 1 ordinary share of US$1 = 100  General Partner of
investment private fund
BHe/He REEIZETZEBR MWEETREEBEBA
Wasen-Tianli Investment Cayman/Cayman 2 ordinary shares of - 100 Assets management
Management Limited US$1 each
GV JEEREEIET BT BEEE
Wasen-Tianli SPC Cayman/Cayman 1 ordinary share of US$1 = 100 Assets management
Be /He REEIETZERBR EEERE
Universal Blossom Limited BVI/Macau 10,000 ordinary shares of - 100 Investment holding
US$1 each
BEERRAT HERZHE/ BN 10000KERARIZETZ REZR
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39. PARTICULAR OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 39.

COMPANY (Continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements

AA 5 e R MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & ZE2020F 128331 HIEEE

EREMBABZHIBER (&)

Place of Issued and Percentage of
incorporation/ fully paid-up/ equity attributable to
Name operation registered capital the Company Principal activities
%8 MR EEME ERTREREMRE FAERIERERSL FEEH
Direct  Indirect
E# A
% %

Tianli Financial Holdings Limited HK/HK 2,000,000 ordinary shares - 100 Investment holding and
provision of financial
services

A ERERBRAT &8/ B8 2,000,0008% & %8 5% REZRIRESRRE

Tianhe Medical Investment Limited BVI/HK 1,000 ordinary shares of - 50.7  Investment holding

US$1 each
HEREYHE/EE 10008EREEIETZ RETKR
EER
First Promise Limited BVI/HK 100 ordinary shares of - 50.7  Financial investment
US$1 each
EEERHE /B 100RERERIZTZBER TR E
Star Chaser Ventures Limited Cayman/Cayman 10,000 ordinary shares of - 100 Financial investment
US$1 each
HE /B2 10,000REREEIXTZ SRS
LER
Asia Capital Real Estate V Pte. Ltd. Singapore/Singapore 5,316,169 ordinary shares of - 94.42  Financial investment
("ACRE") US$1 each and 100 ordinary
shares of SGD$1 each
Asia Capital Real Estate V Pte. Ltd. NS/ BN 5,316,169 EREE1ETL ERRE
(TACRE) EERRI00REREE
MK Sk
Tianli Investment Trading Limited HK/HK 20,000,000 ordinary shares = 100  General trading
RHRBEEZBRAT &5/ 58 20,000,0008% & & A% —fRE
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FAFsERAR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZE2020F 12831 H LEFE

39. PARTICULAR OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 39.
COMPANY (Continued)

ERATEMBABZHIBER (&)

Place of Issued and Percentage of
incorporation/ fully paid-up/ equity attributable to
Name operation registered capital the Company Principal activities
%8 MR EEME ERTREREMRE FAERIGRERSL FEXEH
Direct Indirect
B A
% %
Celestial Hope Limited BVI/HK 10,000 ordinary shares of - 100 Investment holding
US$1 each
KEBRAH EBRUHE/EE  10,000REREEIETZ REZR
EEpl
FmRERNEBRAT " PRC/PRC Paid-up capital of - 100 Financial technology
RMB70,000,000 out
of registered capital of
RMB70,000,000
g,/ AE#70,000,0007c 5% SRR
BAREHERARE
70,000,0007%
& These companies were established in the PRC in the form of & ZENB AR FEILINIINEEE R
wholly-foreign-owned enterprises.
# These companies were established in the PRC as PRC t ZENBARPERINTEARNERE AT

domestic-invested companies.

At 31 December 2020 and 2019, there is no subsidiary of
the Group which has material non-controlling interests.

The English name of companies established in the PRC are
for identification purpose only.

This company was established in the PRC in the form of sino-
foreign equity joint venture.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

AA 5 e R MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & ZE2020F 128331 HIEEE

40. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 40. HEMBAT

On 9 July 2020, the Group entered into share transfer 2020F 7B 9B AEBEHAPBE K TE X (FE
agreements with China Tian Yuan Capital (International) BR)IZERRBRATGIILKRMEENZ B L
Holdings Limited, for the disposal of several subsidiaries. EETHBAB -FREEZEEFBELT :

The net assets disposed are as follows:

2020
20205
RMB'000
ARBT T
Consideration received: BURARE :
Cash received BWIRE 2,251
Analysis of assets and liabilities over KEENEZEERGBZAN:
which control was lost:
Cash and cash equivalents BERIREEEY 2,491
Accruals and other payables FEST & B R H eI =18 (42)
Balance with fellow subsidiaries, net HE RN B ARG FRE (424)
Tax payables SR IE (198)
Net assets disposed of HEZFEE 1,827
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHBAE
Consideration received BB 2,251
Net assets disposed of HEZFEE (1,827)
Waiver of intercompany debts FbR A B EHMERS (424)
An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the disposal of HENBABZRERESNAT :
subsidiaries is as follows:
2020
20204
RMB'000
ARBTF T
Net cash outflow arising on disposal: HEEEZFREME ©
Consideration received in cash and cash equivalents MRS KRIBEEBYWRERZ RE 2,251
Less: Cash and cash equivalents disposed of B HEZRERIREEEY (2,491)
(240)
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FAFsERAR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZE2020F 12831 H LEFE

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 41.
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group's major financial instruments include the

HHBEREEZ BRREE

FEBZITESHITAGEUTRE!

followings:
Categories of financial instruments SR T EER
2020 2019
2020 20194
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AREFTRT ARETT
Financial assets ERMEE
Accounts and bills receivables JFE WSURR TE 7 FE U 2 4% 185,236 127,457
Other receivables HAth U srIE 17,057 12,434
Finance lease receivable FE U R & FE E Rk I8 - 12,437
Cash and bank balances 8% RIRITAS ER 60,298 175,257
Financial assets at amortised cost B AT ENSHREE 262,591 327,585
Financial assets at FVOC| BATESFARMEERENEMEE 25,893 11,353
Financial assets at FVPL AT EFAEGNEMEE
— Designated at FVPL —IEERB AT ESF AEBT 369,519 383,269
Financial liabilities ERaE
Trade and bills payables FET B 2 IE M BT B4R 71,570 44,550
Accruals and other payables FEST & B R H MR IE 76,422 70,333
Bank and other loans IRIT R EHMER 220,136 200,742
Lease liabilities HEaE 37,878 39,150
Financial liabilities at amortised cost B At E 2 SR8 6 406,006 354,775
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Notes to the Financial Statements

AA 5 e R MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & ZE2020F 128331 HIEEE

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise bank
and other loans, and cash and bank balances. The main
purpose of these financial instruments is to raise/provide
finance for the Group’s operations. The Group has various
other financial assets and liabilities such as accounts and
bills receivables, finance lease receivable, lease liabilities,
trade and bills and other payables, which arose directly
from its operations. The Group also invests in equity and
debt investments.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial
instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk,
credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s exposure to
these risks and the financial risk management policies and
practices used by the Group to manage these risks are
described below.

a) Fair values

i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair
value

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the Group's
financial instruments measured at the end of the reporting
period on a recurring basis, categorised into the three-
level fair value hierarchy as defined in IFRS 13 Fair
Value Measurement. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with reference to
the observability and significance of the inputs used in the
valuation technique as follows:

o Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only
Level 1 inputs, that is, unadjusted quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date.

41. HEEBEEZBERBE &

FEBZITETRIAGERTKREME
POBRERBRTER ZFEMIAZEIEHR
M AEAEBZREERE RHET - A5H
BEZHRERNCHEEELE ZEMERMEE
RaE fIMEKRRELREREE RIS
HERE HEER - BVESMERENER
BURHEMEMRIBE xEBTRENRKRER
BHKE-

FEEEMIAESRZ2IEZEARATXRE
ZHNERB EERBRRABEET AR &K
EEERzZFRRREAERREEZSTA
RFFRBZz EMEREBERRKE R &
o

a) AEE

)  BATEHNEZEHEERER

R FEFE

TREIFAEBN RS HRRESERE E5
EZEMIBZATE UREBERVYBERS
ZRBI3RTAFEFEBIFMREZAFER
BOR=-BATERBE - ATEFEE2ZEM
BREFMABABBZIBEREEREEN
oA AEEROT :

. F—EBHREE: AERE—EBERBA
B (EFERNREREEXNERERE
EETHIE EREHBEZRE) SFEQTF
=
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FAFsERAR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZE2020F 12831 H LEFE

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

a) Fair values (Continued)

i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair
value (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

o Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level
2 inputs, that is, observable inputs which fail to
meet Level 1, and not using significant unobservable
inputs. Unobservable inputs are inputs for which
market data are not available.

o Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs.

The Group has a team headed by the finance manager to
perform valuations for the financial instruments, including
financial assets at FVOCI and at FVPL which are categorised
into Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. The team reports
directly to the executive Directors and the audit committee.
A valuation report with analysis of changes in fair value
measurement is prepared by the team at each interim
and annual reporting date, and is reviewed and approved
by the executive Directors. Discussion of the valuation
process and results with the executive Directors and the
audit committee is held twice a year, to coincide with the
reporting dates.
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. BE_ERLE : @ﬁﬁ“‘ EEUN €7
(EIJTHS% Z&ZTE% 28 A #
B)) MECAESENATRERABE
SHEAFTE - FAIREHAHBEEL
REDBHRB 2@ AR

. FZEBREE: EREENTIEER
ABIBERATE-

AEEBEE—EHMBKEFTEN/NE HE
MITE (BEREALRTERBE=ZERNEZ
’\:FTEE#J\HT{H%ELI& s AT EST AR
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Notes to the Financial Statements

AA 5 e R MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & ZE2020F 128331 HIEEE

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

a) Fair values (Continued)

i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair
value (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

41. HEEBEEZBERBE &

a) QAFEGE

) BATFENEZZHEERER (B

R FEFRE (B

Fair value measurements as at
31 December 2020 categorised into
112020 12B31BN A FEHESHE

Fair value at
31 December
2020 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
#2020
12H31H
HNAFE BBk BB BB
RMB‘000 RMB‘000 RMB‘000 RMB‘000
ARBTT ARETR ARETRT ARETR®
Recurring fair value measurements &HEM AT (EHE
Assets: BE .
Financial assets at FVOCI BATESAHMZE
WEMNEHEE
— Unlisted equity instrument (note a) —JFrmEETH
(Hfzta) 25,893 - - 25,893
Financial assets at FVPL BATESABRN
THEE
— Unlisted equity instruments (note b) —FEmEHTA
(Hiztb) 369,519 - - 369,519
395,412 - - 395,412
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FAFsERAR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZE2020F 12831 H LEFE

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

a) Fair values (Continued)

i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair

value (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

41. HEEKREEZBERBE &

a) QAFEGE

)  BATFENEZZHEERER (B

R FEFIE (B

Fair value measurements as at
31 December 2019 categorised into
20191231 BN AT EFENE

Fair value at
31 December
2019 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
120194
12B31H
MATE E—EMR E_RBH%k E=BHR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETRT AREBTRT ARETR
Recurring fair value measurements &HEM AT (EHE
Assets: BE .
Financial assets at FVOCI BATESAHMZE
WEMNEHEE
— Unlisted equity instrument (note a) —JFrmEETH
(Hfzta) 11,353 - - 11,353
Financial assets at FVPL BATESABRN
THEE
— Unlisted equity instruments (note b) —FEmEHTA
(Hiztb) 383,269 - - 383,269
394,622 - - 394,622
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Notes to the Financial Statements

AA 5 e R MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & ZE2020F 128331 HIEEE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Fair values (Continued)

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair

value (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019,
there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or
transfers into or out of Level 3. The Group’s policy is to
recognise transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy as
at the end of the reporting period in which they occur.

41. HEEBEEZBERBE &

a) QAFEGE

) BATFENEZZHEERER (B

R FEFRE (B

HE2020FE K2019F 1283 1B LEEE» 5 —
BREAF _BHRoBETEEE TERE=ZR
HEBANESEH AEBRRESEELEEHE R
SHARERATEERESER 2B EE-

Notes: Kzt -

(a) The valuation techniques and key inputs used for unlisted (a) RIERFR BREZBRAFEFEZRLATFE
financial assets at FVOCI in level 3 fair value measurement at STARMEENERNIE FhemMEENGHEL ER
the end of the reporting period are as follows: FRBASTEAT !

Valuation Significant

techniques unobservable inputs Range

HERE EARFTABERHARE gE
Unlisted equity instrument Discounted cash flow Discount for lack of marketability 20%
FLmRE=mTA TRFERE (note 1) (2019: 20%)

RZ MG e TR (1)

Discount for lack of control
(note 2)

A Z PEh TR (HYAE2)

Weighted average cost of capital
(note 3)

MIEFHERRA (Hfa23)

Long-term revenue growth rate
(note 4)

RN RE (H/724)

Long term pre-tax operating margin
(note 5)

REAMATAS &R =R (B7E5)

(20194 : 20%)
15%

(2019: 15%)
(20194 : 15%)
10%

(2019: 10%)
(20194 : 10%)
13%

(2019: 14%)
(20194 : 14%)
31%

(2019: 27%)
(20194 : 27%)
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FAFsERAR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZE2020F 12831 H LEFE

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

a) Fair values (Continued)

i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair
value (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

The fair value of unlisted equity investment is determined
using the discounted cash flow adjusted for lack of
marketability discount and lack of control discount. The fair
value measurement is negatively correlated to the discount
for lack of marketability, lack of control discount and
weighted average cost of capital.

Notes: (Continued)
(a) (Continued)

1) At 31 December 2020, it is estimated that a general increase/
decrease of discount for lack of marketability by 3% (2019:
3%), with all other variables held constant, would have
decreased/increased the Group's other comprehensive income
by approximately RMB1,195,000 (2019: RMB524,000).

2) At 31 December 2020, it is estimated that a general increase/
decrease of discount for lack of control by 3% (2019: 3%),
with all other variables held constant, would have decreased/
increased the Group's other comprehensive income by
approximately RMB1,195,000 (2019: RMB524,000).

3) At 31 December 2020, it is estimated that a general increase/
decrease of weighted average cost of capital by 3% (2019:
3%), with all other variables held constant, would have
decreased/increased the Group's other comprehensive income
by approximately RMB16,374,000 (2019: RMB9,193,000).

4) At 31 December 2020, it is estimated that a general increase/
decrease of long-term revenue growth rate by 3% (2019:
3%), with all other variables held constant, would have
increased/decreased the Group's other comprehensive income
by approximately RMB2,097,000 (2019: RMB1,075,000).

5) At 31 December 2020, it is estimated that a general increase/
decrease of long-term pre-tax operating margin by 3% (2019:
3%), with all other variables held constant, would have
increased/decreased the Group's other comprehensive income
by approximately RMB790,000 (2019: RMB1,713,000).

(b) For unlisted equity instruments classified under Level 3 of the
fair value hierarchy, the fair values are determined based on
the net asset values of those investment funds determined
with reference to valuation of underlying investment portfolio
and adjustments of related expenses. The higher the net
assets values, the higher the fair value.
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41. HEEKREEZBERBE &

a) QAFEGE
) HEATEHAEZZHEEREE (B

R FEFE (B

FLETRERENAFEDRBERRZS
EREMITERRZEMNRITETUREZ
FRETREETE A TEFEBHRZTHR
BUEFE - RZERTERMEFTHERAE
2&aBm-

Hiat © (48)
() #)

1) R2020F12B31H EFFEEMESRIFTAE >
BRT BB mE TR, R 3%
(2019%F : 3%) At B AEBEMEZEKE
1N AR EE1,195,0007 (20194 @ AR
524,0007T) °

2) 220205128310 ' EFfE B ERIF A E 2B
TR BRI R R R R 3% (2019
F13%)  EtgLrEREMEERE R 18
& AR #1,195,0007t (20194 : AR #524,000
JT) ©

3) 20205 12831R EFfF A EME B RE R
ZBERT  IMEFHE SRR M, F 3%
(20194F : 3%) ' fhEt B AEEEMEEINE R
b 1B INH AR 1616,374,0007T (20194 © ARIE
9,193,0007T) ©

4) 1120205128310 EFTA HthE B RETE 218
R RAWAE REREEIZM, 3% (2019
F13%) At ELAEMEMEEREIEIN,
D # NE¥2,097,0007T (20194 © AR¥51,075,000
7T) °

5) R2020F12B31H EFFEEMESRIF A&
BRT  RERATAE RH KRR, R 3%
(2019%F : 3%) At AEEEMEZEKE
A0, E A AR #790,0007T (20194 @ AR
1,713,0007T) ©

(b) AR AFERBE=ERE TN ZIFLHERET
AME A FEDRBEZSREESTZEEFE
S2ERBMRBESZHEREE > WM FH
AR -BEFEUS AATEHS-



Notes to the Financial Statements

AA 5 e R MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & ZE2020F 128331 HIEEE

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 41. HHEEREEZHERBEKR &
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

a) Fair values (Continued) a) AEE )

i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair i) BATFEFAEZETHEEREE (B)
value (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued) WNFEZEE (B

Notes: (Continued) Kzt (&)

(@) The movements during the year in the balance of these Level (© ZEE=BHRATEFAEZEHFINERNEEWT

3 fair value measurements are as follow:

Financial assets

Financial asset at FVPL at FVOCI
BATE
st AEM
2EKkE
BATES ABaNEREE THMEE
Unlisted Unlisted Unlisted
debt equity equity
instruments instruments instrument
fAFHIA #&mTH HEITA
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTFIT ARETFIT ARBFT
At 1 January 2019 12201951 81H 110,530 368,076 9,524
Additions B 672,419 817 -
Disposals HE (782,949) - =
Share buyback R EEE] - - (8,644)
Net gain recognised in other REMEzEEERD 2 NERE
comprehensive income - - 10,237
Net gain recognised in stAMAZ KBTS 2 B aa*
profit or loss included in revenue* - 19,372 -
Exchange differences included in “exchange fluctuation &t A EthZ EHEE R R E )
reserve” in other comprehensive income ZERELE - 8,158 236
Dividend received EWRE = (13,154) =
At 31 December 2019 1R201912831H - 383,269 11,353
At 1 January 2020 1R2020F181H = 383,269 11,353
Disposals HE - (23,342) -
Net gain recognised in other REMZERERERZ W REE
comprehensive income - - 15,836
Net gain recognised in SEAMA Z KB s 2 Wa 38R
profit or loss included in revenue* - 35,184 -
Exchange differences included in “exchange fluctuation 5t A E fth2 m Uiz B SRR Eh 4 |
reserve” in other comprehensive income ZERERE - (18,671) (1,296)
Dividend received BKES - (6,921) -
At 31 December 2020 1220205128318 = 369,519 25,893
* Includes unrealised gains or losses recognised in profit or loss attributable to balances held at the end of the reporting period
* SPARSHRA G SRR EMIN B R ER 2 R BRI G N EE
2020 20204 = 35,184 -
2019 20194 = 19,372 -
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FAFsERAR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZE2020F 12831 H LEFE

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

a) Fair values (Continued)

i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair
value (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)
(© (Continued)

Included in other comprehensive income is an amount of
RMB15,836,000 gain (2019: RMB10,237,000) relating to
unlisted equity securities classified as equity instruments at
FVOCI (2019: equity instruments at FVOCI) held at the end of
the current reporting period and is reported as changes in fair
value reserve (non-recycling).

i) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities
carried at other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group's financial instruments
carried at cost or amortised cost are not materially different
from their fair values at 31 December 2020 and 2019.

b) Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default
on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to
the Group. The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable
to accounts receivables. The Group’s exposure to credit
risk arising from cash and cash equivalents and bills
receivable is limited because the counterparties are banks
and financial institutions with high credit ratings assigned
by international credit-agencies, for which the Group
considers to have low credit risk.

Accounts and bills receivables

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of each customer rather than
the industry or country in which the customers operate and
therefore significant concentrations of credit risk primarily
arise when the Group has significant exposure to individual
customers. At the end of the reporting period, 16% (2019:
28%) and 52% (2019: 78%) of the accounts and bills
receivables was due from the Group’s largest customer and
the five largest customers respectively.
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a) QAFEG@E
)  BATEAEZEZHEERERE (B

W EZEE (B)
Kzt © (48)
(© #)

Hh 2w s AR 15,836,000t (2019
£ AR #10,237,0007T) B AR S BARFr i 48
AERATFEFAEMEERG 2 ERTAZIEER
RAES (20194 | HAFEFAEHMEEKEZ
EHTH) B M2RA AT ERBES (R &
[al) o

i)  BRAFEUINRZZHEEREEZL
g

NEBERE AN BIELTINRZEHIAEZ

BREEHEEN2020FEK%2019F 128312 A

FEITEEARAEE-

b) FEER

FEERBERXZBEBRHFAABITHEN
EEﬁ'ﬁ %&W%lﬁ( MHEBERZRAR A&
EzEER ERBEBEWRIE - AEBEFE

Xéfﬁﬁﬁ’zfﬁﬁfﬁf%u&%l& 3 YA

BRAER BARFHABEREEREGT
I—JTDTTDH&B’HE ThzMEB ~EERRH
EFEERBRRE-

FEW TR IB R B 15

AEEFMEGNEERAR FESETRNE
IS E MU EREREAMKEMNITE
EEFEEE@I%:ﬁ&t“ﬂx%@@ﬁuum%uéﬁa@
EAREARE BRELESEETNEERR PV
WEHHR lk%.ZEijté)i)i'zﬂji%ﬁZ@J
HEWRTIEREREEDBIZE16% (20195 :
28%) %52% (20194 : 78%)
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AA 5 e R MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & ZE2020F 128331 HIEEE

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

b) Credit risk (Continued)
Accounts and bills receivables (Continued)

Individual credit evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount. These evaluations
focus on the customer’s past history of making payments
when due and current ability to pay, and take into account
information specific to the customer as well as pertaining
to the economic environment in which the customer
operates. Accounts receivables are due within one to four
months from the date of billing. Debtors with balances
that are more than four months past due are requested
to settle all outstanding balances before any further credit
is granted. Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral
from customers.

The Group measures loss allowances for accounts
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which
is calculated using a provision matrix. As the Group's
historical credit loss experience indicate significantly
different loss patterns for different customer segments,
the loss allowance based on past due status is further
distinguished between the Group’s different customer
bases.

The following table provides information about the Group’s
exposure to credit risk and ECLs for accounts receivables of
MLCC segment as at 31 December 2020 and 2019:

41. HEEBEEZBERBE &

b) FEEEAR @)
B IBE RN (&

AEBHFMAEERGEBRBRETENER
ETENEEFE ZSHEETRERB
FEEBIPRBZLCRKRER ZERET
TEBRERFZREENURBEMALEIR
BZREEN BBREREHRER -
BRAREIHH XREaABEMNERSNEH AR
RENFAERBEFRERE HEEREAERM
EE - —RMz  AEEFEZREFREMHET

=]
an °

AEBRBASNE2NRAGEERR 8
BRKNREBEZEGEEER ARTSELERER
EEGFESH - AEAEENEEEEHFRER
BETRARZERIBZEREBRAEERERE &
ROEAREAENBEEEREFTERTRAS
FEBE—FED

TRHEFHEBAREBMLCCH 2B 2 FE U HIE R
2020 %2019F 123 1HEEMNEE A &
AHEEREZER

Expected Gross
loss carrying Loss
rate amount allowance
TEHARSIE X IRE4EZE E51E#EE
% RMB'000 RMB'000
2020 20204 % ARETT ARBTT
Current (not past due) BNER (kA ER) 0% 37,846 =
1-30 days past due AHA1ZE30H 1.5% 19,436 292
31-60 days past due #HHA31E60H 2.0% 10,337 206
61-90 days past due #HA61E90H 3.4% 3,981 137
91-180 days past due #EA91ZE180H 10.0% 1,063 106
181-360 days past due #HA181E360H 69.0% 2,952 2,027
More than 360 days past due AEAEE360H 100.0% 5,500 5,500
31,115 8,268
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FAFsERAR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZE2020F 12831 H LEFE

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

b) Credit risk (Continued)

41. HEEKREEZBERBE &

b) EFEEAR @)

Accounts and bills receivables (Continued) FEW B R [EI ZHE (42)
Expected Gross

loss carrying Loss
rate amount allowance
TEHARSIE X IRE4E%E E51EEE
% RMB’000 RMB’000
2019 20194 % AREFT ARBTT
Current (not past due) BNHR CGR#1ER) 1.5% 36,640 549
1-30 days past due #IRA1ZE30H 5.0% 14,386 719
31-60 days past due #AEA31E60H 10.0% 7,437 744
61-90 days past due #HR61E90H 20.0% 5,378 1,076
91-180 days past due #HA91E180H 50.0% 5,120 2,560
More than 180 days past due HHRB®180H 100.0% 8,059 8,059
77,020 13,707

The following table provides information about the Group’s
exposure to credit risk and ECLs for accounts receivables
of investments and financial services segment and other

TREBHBEAASERR2020F %20195F128
BSITHMERERERBRE S B REM—KE
AWZzERFREEENEERRE REHREE

general trading segment as at 31 December 2020 and BEZzZER
2019:
Expected Gross
loss carrying Loss
rate amount allowance
TEHARS A= IRE42%A REiER A
% RMB'000 RMB'000
2020 20204 % ARBTT ARBTT
Current (not past due) BNER (GR#A ER) 0% 88,508 =
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Notes to the Financial Statements

AA 5 e R MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & ZE2020F 128331 HIEEE

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

b) Credit risk (Continued)

Accounts and bills receivables (Continued)

b) FEER @

B IBE RN (&

HHEREEZBRREEK (&

Expected Gross
loss carrying Loss
rate amount allowance
TEHARSIR =R IREAEEE EiaEE
% RMB'000 RMB'000
2019 20195 % ARBTIT ARETRT
Current (not past due) BNER (R ER) 0% = =
1-30 days past due AHA1ZE30H 0% — =
31-60 days past due AHA31E60H 0% - -
61-90 days past due #HA61E90H 0% 7,590 =
91-180 days past due AHA91E180H 0% 5,133 =
More than 180 days past due BHABE180H 0% 47,990 —
60,713 -

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience
over the past 2 years. These rates are adjusted to reflect
differences between economic conditions during the period
over which the historic data has been collected, current
conditions and the Group’s view of economic conditions
over the expected lives of the receivables.

An ageing analysis of the bills receivables that are neither

8o

FHEEXDERNBEMEZEREIEL
o Z FHERLBAE  URMUITEFE L B8R
HABZ2EERR - BARTERERARNZFE
WRIBEZRHRFTHBBASERRE ZZBEH

WIRER N ERERBEZERERZRE

individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is as DI
follows:
Expected Gross
loss carrying Loss
rate amount allowance
TEHAKSIE IR 4% B5iE 1
% RMB’000 RMB’000
2020 20204F % AR T ARETTT
Current (not past due) BNER (R ER) 0% 23,881 =
Expected Gross
loss carrying Loss
rate amount allowance
TEHAKSIE R IR 4% K581
% RMB’000 RMB’000
2019 20195 % ARETT ARETT
Current (not past due) BNER (CGR#AER) 0% 3,431 =
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZE2020F 12831 H LEFE

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

b) Credit risk (Continued)
Accounts and bills receivables (Continued)

Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of
accounts receivables during the year is as follows:

41. HEEKREEZBERBE &

b) EFEEAR @)
BB R B (8

FRNRKRRBZ GREGEREFHUWT :

2020 2019

20205 20194

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREBTRT ARETT

Balance at 31 December 2019 FR20195%F 128318 2 &8k 13,707 12,769

Reversal of impairment A EREE(] (5.775) (599)

Written off [=E 6! (47) =
Impairment losses recognised FRER 2 RERE

during the year 457 1,532

Exchange realignment BE D s B (74) 5

Balance at 31 December 2020 2202012831 H 2 458k 8,268 13,707

Q) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash
flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. The Group's interest rate
risk arises primarily from bank deposits, bank and other
loans, bond payable and lease liabilities.

Bank deposits and bank loans at variable rates and time
deposits, bank and other loans, bond payable and lease
liabilities at fixed rates expose the Group to cash flow
interest rate risk and fair value interest rate risk respectively.
The management continuously monitors interest rate
fluctuations and will consider further hedging interest rate
risk should the need arise.

Bank deposits are carried at low interest rates and the
interest income thereon is not significant.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 & ZE2020F 128331 HIEEE

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Q) Interest rate risk (Continued)

The effective interest rates of the interest-bearing financial
instruments of the Group are set out below.

i) Interest rate profile
The following table details the interest rate profile of the

Group's interest-bearing financial instruments at the end of
the reporting period:

41. HEEBEEZBERBE &

o FERRR @)

AEEGFEEMIAZERMEFHN T

i) ViIE -9

TERHALFTEBFEEHMIARBSHRZ
FEIFR

2020 2019
20204 20194
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
BIEFE ERHE
% RMB’'000 % RMB'000
% ARETFT % ARETT
Fixed interest rate EE =&
Financial assets EREE
Bank deposits RITERR - - 0.3-1.35 10,374
- 10,374
Financial liabilities TRIBE
Bank and other loans RITREMER 3.7-10 (220,136) 10 (200,742)
Lease liabilities HEBE 3.37-8.86 (37.,878) 3.37-8.86 (39,150)
(258,014) (239,892)
Net L] (258,014) (229,518)
Variable interest rate FEFE
Financial assets EREE
— Cash at bank —iRfTIRE 0.00-0.35 60,289 0.35 164,832
Fixed rate liabilities as TEBEN
a percentage of total interest-bearing Bt EEREEZ
financial liabilities Bt 100 100
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZE2020F 12831 H LEFE

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Q) Interest rate risk (Continued)
ii) Sensitivity analysis

Bank deposits, bank and other loans, bond payable, lease
liabilities and obligations under finance lease of the Group
which are fixed rate instruments, are insensitive to any
change in interest rates. A change in interest rates at the
end of the reporting period would not affect profit or loss.

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based
on the exposure to interest rates at the end of the reporting
period. For variable-rate financial instruments, the analysis
is prepared assuming the financial instruments outstanding
at the end of the reporting period were outstanding for
the whole year. A 100 (2019: 100) basis points increase
or decrease is used when reporting interest rate risk
internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in interest rates. The analysis is performed on the
same basis for 2019.

At 31 December 2020, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 100 (2019: 100) basis points in
interest rates for variable-rate financial instruments,
with all other variables held constant, would decrease/
increase the Group's loss after tax and increase/decreased
retained earnings by approximately RMB503,000 (2019:
RMB1,376,000). This is mainly attributable to the Group's
exposure to interest rates on its variable rate cash at bank.
Other components of consolidated equity would not
change in response to the general increase/decrease in
interest rates.
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UTBRESMEBRERKRSHERZAER
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 & ZE2020F 128331 HIEEE

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

d) Currency risk
i) Exposure to currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through
sales and purchases which give rise to receivables, payables
and cash and bank deposits that are denominated in
a foreign currency, that is, a currency other than the
functional currency of the operations to which the
transactions relate. The currencies giving rise to this risk are
primarily United States Dollars (“US$"), HK$ and Japanese
Yen. The Group ensures that the net exposure is kept to
an acceptable level by buying or selling foreign currencies
at spot rates when necessary to address short-term
imbalances.

The following table details the Group’s exposure at the
end of the reporting period to currency risk arising from
recognised assets or liabilities denominated in a currency
other than the functional currency of the entity to which
they relate. For presentation purposes, the amounts of the
exposure are shown in RMB, translated using the spot rate
at the end of the reporting period.

41. HEEBEEZBERBE &

d S¥ER
) BEBEEEE

FEBTERNELEUEXZAERBNEBFRY
RBIIETNBE G 15 > B LASN IS 5T BY B AR IR ~
BARBEARERBTERNEERZ MK
RERAR -SIRZABRNERETER/ET
BATKkBE sEEBZEZBN L ERZANAER
BEASEHING > U REHA RS B ILRRF
R EEPRERFRAER Z KT

TRFNFEBRBSHAAAZHNERR
B EEBERRAZAMERININESR
LS EBSHENERIEENAERME
F-MEHRBNME > ABRBBUAREI R
IR SRR AV BN HAEE R 55 o

Exposure to foreign currencies (expressed in RMB)

SMERERE UARBEREMD

2020 2019
20205 20194
Japanese Japanese
HK$ Yen us$ HK$ Yen
ETT AT =] ETT BT H
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETn ARETRT AREBTRT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Accounts and bills receivables  FEUIB R FE W ZE K K
and other receivables H e TR IS 20,441 1,244 - 39,754 8,541 =
Deposits and other receivables  #<& K EL M EURIE 72 - - - -
Cash and bank balances RERIRITHER 19,514 7,314 3,681 40,727 36,551 -
Trade and bills payables and e B 5T IB K E{
other payables ERRHEMBEMRIE (18,126) (3,988) (8,722) (12,232 (6,772) (4,092)
Net exposure arising from EREIEERK
recognised assets and liabilites ~ Bf&E% 2 Bk F58 21,829 4,642 (5,041) 68,249 38,320 (4,092)
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FAFsERAR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZE2020F 12831 H LEFE

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

d) Currency risk (Continued)
ii) Sensitivity analysis

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end
of the reporting period to a reasonably possible change
in the US$, HK$ and Japanese yen exchange rates, with
all other variables held constant, of the Group’s loss/profit
before tax.

41. HEEKREEZBERBE &

d &%ak @
i)  HEESH
TORBEMRAEBZIERNAEGEE G H

EX -BTKRBEZEXGEAIEEH 28R
B o

2020 2019
20204 20194

Decrease/ Decrease/

(increase) (increase)

Increase/ in loss Increase/ in loss

(decrease) before (decrease) before

in rate income tax in rate income tax

FRERIEIR BRETISHR

A58 byl

EEiES BV EEEE A/

(F218) (121m) (48) ()

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000

ARETRT ARBEBFTxT AEETR

Us$ X7 5 1,091 5 3,412
(5) (1,091) (5) (3,412)

HK$ ABTT 5 232 5 1,916
(5) (232) (5) (1,916)
Japanese Yen H 5 (252) 5 (205)
(5) 252 (5) 205

Results of the analysis as presented in the above table
represent an aggregation of the instantaneous effects on
each of the Group entities’ profit/(loss) before tax measured
in the respective functional currencies, translated into RMB
at the exchange rate ruling at the end of the reporting
period for presentation purposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in foreign
exchange rates had been applied to re-measure those
financial instruments held by the Group which expose the
Group to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting
period. In this respect, it is assumed that the pegged
rate between the HK$ and US$ would not be materially
affected by any changes in movement in value of the US$
against other currencies. The analysis is performed on the
same basis for 2019.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 & ZE2020F 128331 HIEEE

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

e) Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including the
short-term investment of cash surpluses and the raising
of loans to cover expected cash demands, subject to the
parent company’s board approval.

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using
a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the
maturity of both its financial liabilities and financial assets
(for example, accounts receivables) and projected cash
flows from operations.

The Group's policy is to maintain sufficient reserve of cash
and cash equivalents and have available funding through
bank loans to meet its working capital requirements.

The maturity profile of the Group’s non-derivative financial
liabilities as at the end of the reporting period, based on
the contractual undiscounted payments including interest
payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating,
based on rates current at the end of the reporting period
and the earliest date the Group can be required to pay, is as
follows:

41. HEEBEEZBERBE &

e) HRBEZEMR

AEEETZENEEEREABTEER:
BRI SEREBEFZERRERERE
RUBMEAREER ERAESELRIES
T ER DRI ET

AEBRCRARBRERDESHAI TAERHES
TRRER - LTEEZEHEEREEREME
E (EWmE 2 HEREKEZRE

3 =
TRER ©

AEBZHREEFERARRERRESEY
B RBEBRTENESTRESZUENHE
EEEEFE-

RBEEc SEE T ETESME@RE
WARBERIE (QEUEHRIZR (NEZH
FIR) RN REEE T BEIAEH BRI AR
E) > HBERRAEEAR NS 0B
T

2020
20204
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
HESEiigik k]
More than More than
1 year but 2 years but Carrying
On Less than less than less than amount at
demand 1 year 2 years 5 years Total 31 December
ZME E2yk:3 128318
RERE DRE B 24E {BNA5E st ZIREE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETrt AR%®Tx AREBTRT AR®BTRT AR®ETRT ARETRT
Non-derivative financial JEfTE£RIE &
liabilities
Bank and other loans RITREME™R - 251,430 - - 251,430 220,136
Trade and bills payables & & ZHIERK
SRS - 71,570 - - 71,570 71,570
Accruals and other FEEH & B R H e (T
payables EE] - 76,422 - - 76,422 76,422
Lease liabilities HE&RE - 14,434 10,560 16,586 41,580 37,878
- 413,856 10,560 16,586 441,002 406,006
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FAFsERAR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE2020F12831H IEFE

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 41. HEREBEEZBERBE (&
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
e) Liquidity risk (Continued) e) THRBEBEEAK E)
2019
20194
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
SIARITIRBERE
More than More than
1 year but 2 years but Carrying
On Less than less than less than amount at
demand 1 year 2 years 5 years Total 31 December
E2NE:S L4 128315
SEKEF DR BR245 B/pA5E w5t ZAREE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT AR®TR ARETT ARETT AREBTT
Non-derivative financial ~ JFfTEERERE
liabilities
Bank and other loans RITREMER - 249,328 - - 249,328 200,742
Trade and bills payables ~ E{TE ZTIBREMNE
% - 44,550 - - 44,550 44,550
Accruals and other FEEH & B R H (T
payables FRIE - 70,333 - - 70,333 70,333
Lease liabilities HE&RE - 12,763 12,390 20,607 45,760 39,150
- 376,974 12,390 20,607 409,971 354,775
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AA 5 e R MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & ZE2020F 128331 HIEEE

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2020

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
IASB has issued a number of amendments, new standards
and interpretations which are not yet effective for the year
ended 31 December 2020 and which have not been early
adopted in these financial statements. These include the
following which may be relevant to the Group.

IFRS 17

Amendments to

Insurance Contracts and the related
Amendments'
Reference to the Conceptual Framework?

IFRS 3

Amendments to

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions?

IFRS 16

Amendments to

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 2¢

IFRS 9, IAS 39,
IFRS 7, IFRS 4
and IFRS 16

Amendments to
HKAS 1

Amendments to
HKAS 16

Amendments to
HKFRSs

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-
current and related amendments to Hong
Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)'

Property, Plant and Equipment — Proceeds
before Intended Use?

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-
2020?

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2022

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021

42. #HFE2020F128B31BLEECE M
BERERZIETE  FsT £ K2
B2 BELE

BEVBERRTEEH BREHENEZES
BEMETESIA HeTER RERE IS
IR -] ZA REBNREZE2020F124
BSTHLEFERAREN BRRMBHRERPRE
FRW - HAPEEUTAREAREERRRE -

EEMBREENETE  RRAORERET

B PR 5 R o5 22 A 5635 BMSERZ 2R
PACHES

BRPHREELE165  ECOVID-19B R/
PACHES HEEE

B B R S 2E A 5595%
IR & TR $395%
BEFR 1 B 4R 5 ZE R 5675
BUFRA B4R S 2 RSB43 R
BFR R 5 R  2E A 551657

RIS E % — M

pACHE
ERYHERS IR BaENEARBIIER
(CHES KB AR ESSARRRBT
(2020%) |
BRI ENS65%Y ME B R R
(N —{EREAZRN
FrigaaE:
ERUHRRELENZBITER 2018FEE2020FF BT
R 2E B Y A

12023F 1 BB 2 Bz FE AR EX

2 R2022F 1 B1HS Z BB 2 FERBERN

3 1220206 B 1Bl 2 Bt 2 FE B EX

4 021 1AV HS 2 Btz FEBREX
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42.

43,

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2020 (Continued)

None of the amendments have had a material effect
on how the Group’s results and financial position
for the current or prior periods have been prepared
or presented. The Group has not applied any new
standard or interpretation that is not yet effective for
the current accounting period.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

On 2 February 2021, First Promise Limited, an
indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Group
entered into the share repurchase agreement with
Nancy International, pursuant to which First Promise
Limited agreed to sell and Nancy International
agreed to repurchase the repurchased shares at
an aggregate consideration of HK$23,440,071.43
(equivalent to approximately US$3,023,316.02). For
details, please refer to the announcement of the
Group dated 2 February 2021.
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42,

43,

#HF2020F12831H L FECEH
BRI REMZIETER  FsTER K2
BZ2BELE B

ZEETHMGRRUZIN ZAERBRN K
HESNBTEHBZEZE R BRI E
EREATE - AEBUERARAES
StHIB A ARER ZEM T EQ SR
T o

HEHREIR

R2021F2R828  AEB 2 E#EIFELE
B /& A BlFirst Promise LimitedE2Nancy
Internationals] iZ B 17 B [B] 77 5% » 3%
It > First Promise Limited[@ & & & & 15
miNancy Internationall@ & il &% £ &
5 8RR 1E%23,440,071.438 7T (HHE
#93,023,316.02%7T) ¥ 1B5B2H
AREBRHEA2021F2828Zz 2%






	封面
	目錄
	財務概要
	公司資料
	主席報告
	管理層討論及分析
	董事會及高級管理人員
	企業管治報告
	董事會報告
	獨立核數師報告
	綜合損益及其他全面收益表
	綜合財務狀況表
	綜合權益變動表
	綜合現金流量表
	財務報表附註
	封底



